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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited focuses on ports and
infrastructure development and investment, and the operation of ports
and logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region of China. It also engages
in land and property development and investment in association with ports
and infrastructure development. In addition, PYI provides comprehensive
engineering and property-related services through Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited.
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Financial Highlights

MR E

2015 2014

Turnover (HK$m) gXEBE(BEHT)
The Group AEE 524 999
Share of associates and joint ventures SN EeE 5,634 4,926
Gross profit (HK$m) EF(EEBT) 126 163
Earnings before interest and taxation (HK$m) KM ELBB BT (BEET) 399 371
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) BEEEEF(BEBT) 86 86
Shares in issue (m) BEITRO (FER) 4,577 4,577
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 1.06 1.08
Earnings per share (HK$) FREF GET) 0.019 0.019
Dividend per share (HK$) SREE GET) 0.010 0.010
Total assets (HK$m) BEE@BEBET 9,432 9,097
Quick assets (HK$m) REEE(BESET) 1,572 1,670
Net current assets (HK$m) MBEEFE(BEEBT) 1,334 1,381
Net debt (HK$m) FaEEgET) 1,045 750
Shareholders’ funds (HK$m) BEERES(BEEBT) 4,844 4,923
Current ratio MENH & 1.64 1.68
Quick ratio RELE R 0.76 0.82
Net debt/equity ratio FREEEARLE 0.22 0.15
Gearing ratio ERBELE 0.49 0.46
Return on equity RS e U 25 1.8% 1.7%
Total shareholder return IR B 42 U 25 2% - 4%
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1. Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year
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2. Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI

shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

€@ The Board proposed a final cash dividend of
HKO.5 cent per share, together with the interim
cash dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share paid in
January 2015, amounts to a total dividend of
HK1 cent per share, representing a payout
ratio of 53% for this financial year.
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Tom Lau
25R
Chairman and Managing Director
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of PYl and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2015. The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of
about HK$524 million (2014: HK$999 million), a decrease of
48% from that of the preceding year. Profit for the year
attributable to the owners of PYI was about HK$86 million (2014:
HK$86 million), and earnings per share was HK1.9 cents (2014:
HK1.9 cents). Shareholders’ funds decreased by 2% to
HK$4,844 million (2014: HK$4,923 million), representing net
asset value per share of HK$1.06.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) proposed a final
cash dividend of HKO.5 cent per share, which together with the
interim cash dividend of HKO.5 cent per share paid in January
2015, amounts to a total dividend of HK1 cent per share (2014:
HK1 cent per share), representing a payout ratio of 53% for this
financial year.

In the environment of slow recovery of global economy, China’s
economic growth showed sign of deceleration with GDP growth
of 7.4% in 2014. Coming into the first quarter of 2015, China’s
economic growth slowed down further with GDP growth of 7.0%
when compared with the corresponding quarter last year.
During the year, PYI achieved steady performance under its
Yangtze Strategy. A detailed review of the Group’s operations
this year is set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

The central government’s “Yangtze River Economic Belt”,

“One Belt, One Road” and “21st Century Maritime Silk Road”
strategies will provide PY! with valuable opportunities for
optimizing its port network in China. PY| remains positive on the
outlook of its port business in the Yangtze River region and will
stay in line with such national strategies. Looking forward, PYI
will pursue strategic growth in both our Yangtze ports as well as
the resort and leisure development at Xiao Yangkou with a view
to maintain long term business growth and generate sustainable
returns to our shareholders.

During the year, PYI adopted an Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) policy with an aim to manage ESG issues
in a refined manner. PYI will continue to pursue effective internal
control measures and endeavor to enhance the quality of our
overall corporate governance measures. We maintained
transparent communications with investors and stakeholders,
persisted to pursue consistent and effective internal control and
audit programs, and offered relevant trainings across our offices
in the Mainland.

PYI demonstrated a strong commmitment to corporate social
responsibility addressing on education and youth development
by sponsoring educational exchange program for students
coming from Nantong. During the year, PY| also donated,
together with Paul Y. Engineering, HK$1 million to Friends of
Hope Education Fund to support their educational works in the
Mainland and Hong Kong. With our unceasing effort in building
better communities, we were awarded with the title of “Caring
Company” for the seventh consecutive years by Hong Kong
Council of Social Service in recognition to our ongoing effort
and corporate citizenship in caring the community, environment
and employees.

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices and
corporate social responsibilities are included in the Corporate
Governance Report.

| wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to my fellow Board members for their valuable guidance and
monitoring to the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express our appreciation to the Group’s staff for their dedication
and contribution that give impetus to the development of the
Group. | would also like to send our gratitude to our
shareholders, clients and partners for their continuous support
and confidence to the Group. | wish them all prosperity and
continued success in the coming year.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR D

PYI| remains positive on the
outlook of its port business in
the Yangtze River region.

REHHEHR T REMEE M
EBREEERE -

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Ports and Logistics

PY! achieved satisfactory progress in implementing its Yangtze
Strategy during the year. The Group’s network of cargo ports
was strengthened and was generating synergy value.

Nantong Port Group (45% owned)

Nantong Port Group contributed about HK$73 million (2014:
HK$87 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
The decrease in contribution was affected by the rise in
operating and finance costs following the initial operation of a
new container terminal expansion in 2014.

Nantong Port is a major river port in the Yangtze Delta Region,
one of China’s category-one national ports opened to foreign
trade and an important hub port of the country. The main
cargoes handled by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals,
cement, steel, coal, fertilizers, grains and edible oil. Nantong
Port provides easy access to the Yangtze region by road and
waterway and is an ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment in
the Yangtze Delta Region.

Annual bulk cargo throughput of Nantong Port Group in 2014
maintained steady level at about 64 million tonnes (2013: 64
million tonnes), while the container throughput in 2014
increased by 10% to 550,000 TEUs (2013: 501,000 TEUSs).

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W R DN

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$2 million (2014:
HK$15 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
Its operating result was affected by the drop in revenue from
higher margin coal and phosphate bulk trans-shipment and
logistics services.

Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three
Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei Province. Yichang Port Group is
principally engaged in transport logistics and minor properties
investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and
discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, port logistics
and port equipment rental services and commodities trading in
Yichang Port.

Annual bulk cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015 increased by 16% to about 6.6
million tonnes (2014: 5.7 million tonnes). Its annual container
throughput increased by 23% to 134,000 TEUs (2014: 109,000
TEUSs).

HEBBREE(FHE1%ER)

FAN HEABKEEARD B ZEERENT B
492008 75 7T (2014 : 15008 B L) - BN K B &
BEMZHEREBBEAZARPERY RS
WARD  REEERMIBTE -

HEEAUREIRE  RANIEEES T =K
RE HEABKEETIEZEEEANRFTESY
mRLEMERE RHEH EVEKH B
R BOMPRIE BERE BOWRRE
ARBEHERBEAMES -

EEEBERHZ2015F3ABEFEZAR
BE2FAME FF16% % 496608 IE (2014 :
5708 M) - HERMEEFAEML 2R L H23%ZE
134,000 B2 %48 (2014 : 109,000 A2 #48) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WK D

i o

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)

Jiangyin Sunan continued to provide a stable contribution of
about HK$10 million (2014: HK$10 million) to the segment’s
operating profit for the year.

Jiangyin Sunan is principally engaged in containers loading and
discharging as well as the storage, maintenance, washing and
leasing of containers. The container terminal operated by
Jiangyin Sunan is the only container terminal in Jiangyin City.

Annual container throughput of Jiangyin Sunan in 2014
increased by 10% to 459,000 TEUs (2013: 417,000 TEUs).

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is a core pilot feeder port in
Zhejiang Province under the plans of Ministry of Transport. The
port started commercial operation in the first quarter of 2015
after declared soft open in mid-2010, and becomes the first
container feeder port in the Yangtze Delta Region with
comprehensive customs and logistics services. The port was
going through its startup operation and did not contribute to the
segment’s operating profit for the year (2014: Nil).

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is situated at Nanhu District of
Jiaxing City. It is principally engaged in loading, discharging and
storage of containers. A customs office is located in port area
for efficient consignment, declaration and clearance at one
stop. The port also features a range of integrated logistics
supporting services such as examination, quarantine, storage
and information services, etc.

P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W R DN

Annual container throughput of Jiaxing International Feeder Port
for the year ended 31 March 2015 increased by 19% to about
175,000 TEUs (2014: 147,000 TEUSs).

LPG, CNG and Logistics (100% owned)

The LPG and CNG distribution and logistics businesses of
Minsheng Gas recorded an operating loss of about HK$44
million (2014: HK$84 million) during the year, which included an
one-off write-down in the value of LPG assets of about HK$27
million (2014: HK$41 million) (included in distribution and selling
expenses) due to transformation of certain LPG fueling stations
into CNG fueling stations. After excluding effect of the one-off
expense, operating result of Minsheng Gas had shown
promising improvement which was attributable to the decline in
LPG procurement cost, as well as all five transformed CNG
fueling stations becoming operational. Although operating profit
was achieved by the LPG and CNG retail and distribution
business of Minsheng Gas, such profit was insufficient to cover
losses in the logistics business, resulting in the overall operating
loss.

HE2015F3A3TALFE  ZERBEFISE
MEFEEHBEME FFH19% = 175,000 fE 1Z #
#6(2014 : 147,000 1EIZ #45) -

BILEHR BEXAKEYARGFE
100% #& %)

FRN REABENREEHERREERAR
DHEEMRESESLE BB N4408 8 T
(2014 : 84008 L) HFBEE TR A E
FANEBHRERBBRBRAI MR % HEE
#492,7008 78 L (2014 : 41008 B ) 2 w1k A
HMREEE—XNEMR(BEESHERHEESR
A)-JIfr— X MEBRANTEE AR BRIEHR
REBRATK M EREXRZEREEXAR N
RURALEE REABNECEEBEERBE
wE -BEREABNBICABREESEXR
REERDHEBHBEESH M2 s F I
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WK D

The central government’s
strategies will provide PYI
with valuable opportunities
for optimizing its port network
in China.

R_ B
= A& O

As at 31 March 2015, Minsheng Gas has nine LPG and five
CNG fueling stations in Wuhan City. Since Minsheng Gas
successfully obtained qualification for natural gas operation in
March 2013, five LPG fueling stations had been transformed
into CNG fueling stations, of which two stations were
transformed last year and three stations were transformed
during the year. The overall sale performance and profitability of
Minsheng Gas is expected to be strengthened as the
management has implemented logistics enhancement
measures to aim for cost savings, as well as the three newly
transformed CNG fueling stations will have a full-year
contribution in the coming financial year.

Ports Development
Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

There was no contribution from Yangkou Port Co to the
Group’s operating profit for the year (2014 Nil).

PYI continues to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port
through the remaining 9.9% equity interest, which is intended to
be held for long-term investment purpose and is classified as an
investment in equity instrument. As at 31 March 2015, the
investment in Yangkou Port Co is stated at fair value (through
other comprehensive income) of about HK$484 million (2014:
measured at cost of about HK$401 million).

14 P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEER W& DN

Engineering Business TE¥EK

Paul Y. Engineering (47.5% owned) RERX(BFHAT5%ER)

Paul Y. Engineering contributed about HK$40 million (2014: HE2015F3A3ALFE REZEAADT
HK$38 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year 2RSS T B B #74,0008 78 7T (2014 ¢ 3,800
ended 31 March 2015. HTT) o

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering recorded a turnover of FRN REZEHBTZEEFELN106.961EE T
about HK$10,696 million (2014: HK$9,244 million) and secured (2014 : 92.441& & 7T ) - I B 15 48 {8 4952.64 18
new contracts of about HK$5,264 million (2014: HK$6,336 BIL(2014: 633 B L) ZH IR AL -
million) in aggregate value. As at 31 March 2015, the total value ~ 20153 B31H  RER L FEF AN LAY
of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about 314761878 7t (2014 : 264.921B 8 T) » Fler T72

HK$31,476 million (2014: HK$26,492 million) and the value of 48{E #9100.62 (88 7T (2014 : 144 568 7T) -
work remaining was about HK$10,062 million (2014:
HK$14,456 million). ES

FRN MEEBRARE 2 LK&E BT EBA3.73
BT (2014 : 369 ETT) - ZAMEERE A
The property business contributed about HK$373 million (2014:  F 7 A /¥ O E & £92.88F 75 A £ (2014 : 3.89
HK$369 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year. The T HF A B) 23188 ¥ 2 & (4 W 25 494.0818 % 7T
profit was mainly attributable to the gain on revaluation of (2014 : 38218 L) » At AHB 2 BRLEFIEL
certain investment properties with an area of about 2.88 sq km 1.92B & 7L (2014 : 1558 L) - EEHT K&
(2014: 3.89 sq km) located at Xiao Yangkou amounted to about R/ OERIEE 2 F 3% & BIF 541,500
HK$408 million (2014: HK$382 million), before the relevant BB 7T (2014 : 2, 70088 7T) °

deferred tax charges of about HK$192 million (2014: HK$155

million). The operating result included net development

expenses for resort project at Xiao Yangkou of about HK$15

million (2014: HK$27 million) incurred during the year.

Property
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER RN

The Group has 11.5 sg km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou
of Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, which is under
development as a regional tourism site of national standard with
hotspring and recreational facilities. As at 31 March 2015, about
6.88 sg km (2014: 5.88 sq km) of the land bank had reached
the developing stage or the developed and serviced stage.
About 0.88 sg km (2014: 0.88 sqg km) of the developed land
and about 2 sq km (2014: 1 sq km) of the land under
development at Xiao Yangkou were classified as investment
properties and measured at fair value of about HK$1,080 million
(2014: HK$613 million). The remaining of about 2.11 sg km (2014:
2.11 sg km) of the developed land and about 1.89 sq km (2014
1.89 sq km) of the land under development were classified as
trading stock as at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2015, a gross floor area of about 6,000 sq m of
“Nantong International Trade Center”, a commercial and office
development in the central business district of Nantong City,
had been rented out for hotel operation. Rental income of the
investment properties amounted to about HK$5 million (2014:
HK$5 million) was contributed to the Group’s turnover during
the year. The Group also holds a gross floor area of about
15,000 sg m of “Nantong International Trade Center” for sale.

In the main urban district of Yichang City along Yangtze River,
the Group holds certain commercial, residential and industrial
properties with gross floor area of about 71,000 sq m (inclusive
of commercial shops of about 5,000 sgq m) through Yichang
Port Group. Rental income of the investment properties
amounted to about HK$7 million (2014: HK$6 million) was
contributed to the Group’s turnover during the year.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group holds jointly with Paul Y.
Engineering an office building known as “Pioneer Technology
Building”, which has a gross floor area of about 20,000 sg m.
The building was almost fully leased out as at 31 March 2015
and generated rental income of about HK$13 million (2014:
HK$12 million) during the year.

P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Treasury

The treasury investments contributed about HK$54 million (2014:
HK$56 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year.
During the year, listed securities held for trading recorded a fair
value gain of about HK$24 million (2014: HK$11 million) and
generated dividend income of about HK$5 million (2014: HK$2
million). The high-yield loans and Renminbi bank deposits in
Hong Kong generated interest income of about HK$25 million
(2014: HK$30 million). During the year ended 31 March 2014, a
reversal of impairment loss on receivable of about HK$15 million
was recognised as a result of recovery of an aged loan
receivable.

As at 31 March 2015, (a) total value of the Group’s portfolio of
listed securities held for trading amounted to about HK$102
million (2014: HK$85 million), equivalent to about 1.1% (2014:
0.9%) of the Group’s total assets; and (b) portfolio of high-yield
loans receivable amounted to about HK$74 million (2014:
HK$76 million), equivalent to about 0.8% (2014: 0.8%) of the
Group’s total assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There were no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
and associates during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events occurred since the end
of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of about HK$524 million (2014: HK$999
million), representing a decrease of 48% from last year. Taking
into account the share of turnover of associates and joint
ventures, the turnover was about HK$6,157 million (2014:
HK$5,925 million), representing an increase of 4% from last
year. The Group’s gross profit decreased by 22% from last year
to about HK$126.3 million (2014: HK$162.8 million), which
represented a gross margin of 24% (2014: 16%) of the
consolidated turnover. The decrease in turnover and gross
profit were mainly attributable to the fact that there was sale of
certain lower margin property stocks in last year, and no such
sale was recorded during the current year.

During the year, the Group achieved a profit before taxation of
about HK$332 million (2014: HK$318 million) which was
composed of:

()  net gain of about HK$40 million (2014: HK$38 million) in
Paul Y. Engineering Group mainly engaged in
management contracting and property development
management businesses;

(i)  net gain of about HK$41 million (2014: HK$15 million) in
ports and logistics business;

(i) net gain of about HK$373 million (2014: HK$369 million)
in property business;

(iv)  net gain of about HK$54 million (2014: HK$56 million) in
treasury business;

(v)  net corporate and other expenses of about HK$109
million (2014: HK$107 million), which included acquisition-
related costs of about HK$30 million (2014: HK$35
million); and

(vi)  finance costs of about HK$67 million (2014: HK$53
million).

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of PYl was

about HK$86.0 million (2014: HK$85.6 million) and basic
earnings per share was HK1.9 cents (2014: HK1.9 cents).

P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31
March 2014, total assets increased by 4% to about HK$9,432
million (2014: HK$9,097 million). As at 31 March 2015, net
current assets amounted to about HK$1,334 million (2014:
HK$1,381 million), whereas current ratio in respect of current
assets to current liabilities decreased slightly to 1.64 times (2014:
1.68 times). After taking into account (a) the net profit of about
HK$86 million; (b) the net decrease in carrying amount of equity
investments not held for trading of about HK$114 million
recognised in negative investment revaluation reserve (comprised
net decrease of about HK$180 million disclosed as other
comprehensive expense for the year and net increase of about
HK$66 million disclosed as an adjustment to balance brought
forward, as recognised in accordance with the Hong Kong
accounting standards HKFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments
adopted during the year); (c) the deficit from Renminbi exchange
translation of about HK$5 million; and (d) the dividend
distribution of about HK$46 million to PYI's shareholders, equity
attributable to owners of PYI was decreased by 2% to about
HK$4,844 million (2014: HK$4,923 million), representing
HK$1.06 (2014: HK$1.08) per share as at 31 March 2015.

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$163
million (2014: inflow of about HK$11 million), which was mainly
attributable to (a) the purchase of higher level of LPG inventories
at lower cost with an aim to enhance control of seasonal price
risk; and (b) the incurred pre-development expenses and
development costs of stock of properties at Xiao Yangkou of
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, which is under
development as a regional tourism site. Net cash inflow from
investing activities was about HK$17 million (2014: outflow of
about HK$61 million) and that from financing activities was
about HK$29 million (2014: outflow of about HK$440 million),
resulting in a net decrease in available cash and cash
equivalents of about HK$117 million (2014: HK$490 million)
during the year.

Financial Review
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total assets of HK$9,432
million (2014: HK$9,097 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit
facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to five years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi, and no financial instruments had been used for
hedging purpose during the year. The Group adopts a prudent
funding and treasury policy and manages the fluctuation
exposures of exchange rate and interest rate on specific
transactions.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to about HK$2,384 million (2014: HK$2,274 million) with about
HK$1,626 million (2014: HK$1,586 million) repayable on
demand or within one year and about HK$758 million (2014:
HK$688 million) repayable after one year. Borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollar of about HK$872 million (2014:
HK$851 million) bore interest at floating rates. Borrowings
denominated in Renminbi of about HK$890 million (2014:
HK$829 million) bore interest at floating rates and about
HK$622 million (2014: HK$594 million) bore interest at fixed
rates. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.49 (2014: 0.46), which
was calculated based on the total borrowings of about
HK$2,384 million (2014: HK$2,274 million) and the Group’s
shareholders’ funds of about HK$4,844 million (2014:
HK$4,923 million).

Bank balances and cash of the Group as at 31 March 2015
amounted to about HK$1,045 million (2014: HK$1,227 million),
of which about HK$1,008 million (2014: HK$1,061 million) was
denominated in Renminbi, about HK$37 million (2014: HK$166
million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and about
HK$0.2 million (2014: HK$0.2 million) was denominated in other
currencies. Also, about HK$408 million (2014: HK$474 million)
had been pledged to banks to secure general credit facilities
granted to the Group, which included about RMB320 million
(equivalent to about HK$400 million) (2014: RMB353 million,
equivalent to about HK$441 million) deposited in Hong Kong to
secure banking facilities denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
available in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a
net debt position (being bank borrowings net of bank balances
and cash) of about HK$1,045 million (2014: HK$750 million).

P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had contingent liability in
respect of a guarantee provided to a bank for banking facilities
granted to a third party of about HK$25 million (2014: HK$25
million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment and bank balances of the Group with an
aggregate value of about HK$1,596 million (2014: HK$1,388
million), as well as the Company’s investments in certain
subsidiaries of about HK$412 million (2014: HK$217 million)
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure
general credit facilities granted to the Group.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment
and properties interests in a total amount of about HK$12
million (2014: HK$6 million).

Financial Review
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Business Development

EBERRE

PYI will stay in line with China’s national policy and general
development directions on implementation of our Yangtze Strategy.

= o

NANTONG PORT GROUP YICHANG PORT GROUP

MEROKHE HEBKEH

MINSHENG GAS YANGKOU PORT
FAE

22 P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report



Business Development

EBRERE

REEENEREARIKBRESHESIEERARERARZES M
RIE—=-

o

JIANGYIN SUNAN CONTAINER TERMINAL JIAXING INTERNATIONAL FEEDER PORT |
IEHEERERERR = T 9 5 Bl PR AR SR

PYI PROPERTY PAUL Y. ENGINEERING
REFME

il sesmsman 20554 ﬂ



Nantong Port Group
A Y

MBEEOKS

Nantong Port is one of China’s category-one national ports opened to foreign trade and an important hub port of

the country. As a major river port in the Yangtze Delta, Nantong Port provides easy access to the Yangtze region
by road and waterway and is an ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment in the Yangtze Delta Region.

Nantong Port owns a shoreline of 4.2 km and a land mass of 1.5 sgq km with 4 major terminals namely Tongzhou
Terminal, Jianghai Terminal, Langshan Terminal and Container Terminal, and they together operate 24 berths.

The main cargoes handled by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals, cement, steel, coal, fertilizers, grains and
edible oil.

Nantong Port Group recorded an annual bulk cargo throughput of about 64 million tonnes and container
throughput of 550,000 TEUs in 2014.
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Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei Province. Yichang
Port Group is principally engaged in transport logistics and minor properties investments, providing transportation,
cargo loading and discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, port logistics and port equipment rental services
and commodities trading in Yichang Port.

Yichang Port devotes to capture the opportunity afforded by growing demand on logistics and transportation
services along the middle and upper reaches of the Yangtze. Yichang Port consists of 54 berths with annual bulk
cargo throughput of about 6.6 million tonnes and container throughput of 134,000 TEUs in financial year 2015.
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Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal
IREHREEERTE

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal operates the only container terminal in Jiangyin. Business scope of Jiangyin
Sunan includes containers loading and discharging as well as the storage, maintenance, washing and leasing of
containers.

4

The terminal occupies a land area of 0.49 sq km, a shoreline of 589 m long with 3 berths of 50,000 tonnes
maximum capacity and a secondary shoreline of 1,090 m long with 8 berths for barges of 5,000 tonnes
capacity each. It has an annual container throughput of 459,000 TEUs in 2014.
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Jiaxing International Feeder Port

= HE A B RIS

Situated at Nanhu District of Jiaxing City, Jiaxing International Feeder Port occupies a shoreline of 570 m and

a land mass of 326,000 sgq m. Currently, the port has 10 berths with total annual throughput capacity of 200,000
TEUs. A customs office is located in port area for efficient consignment, declaration and clearance at one stop.
The port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting services such as examination, quarantine, storage
and information services, etc.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is a core pilot feeder port in Zhejiang province under the plans of Ministry of
Transport. The port started commercial operation in the first quarter of 2015 after declared soft open in mid-2010,
and becomes the first container feeder port in the Yangtze Delta region with comprehensive customs and logistics
services. Its annual container throughput in financial year 2015 reached 175,000 TEUs.
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Minsheng Gas
RERMH
/
Based in Wuhan, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) river terminal and

storage-tank farm in mid-stream Yangtze. Through its mature wholesale and distribution network, Minsheng Gas
has captured a substantial share of the Wuhan LPG market for automotive consumption.

Minsheng Gas established a Vehicle Conversion Research and Development Center to support the application of
its research and development on the construction of LPG fueling stations, conversion of motor vehicles to

LPG vehicles and gas fueling. It has also transformed certain LPG fueling stations to compressed natural gas (CNG)
fueling stations for CNG operation. Minsheng Gas operates nine LPG and five CNG fueling stations in Wuhan in
financial year 2015.
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Yangkou Port
OB

Yangkou Port is an offshore type deep-sea harbour along the South East Coast of Jiangsu Province, which has
declared soft open in October 2008. The port comprises mainly a harbour-front industrial and logistics park of 38
sq km, the 12.6 km Yellow Sea Crossing and a 3 sg km man-made island connected to 29 berths in the deep
draft port district. Strategically located near the mouth of the Yangtze River, Yangkou Port is ideally situated to
become one of China’s largest trans-shipment hubs for dry and liquid bulk cargoes.

PYI completed the disposal of 50.1% interest in Yangkou Port Co to further crystallize the value of our investment
in Yangkou Port in May 2011 and PYI's equity interest in Yangkou Port Co decreased from 60% to 9.9%.
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PYI| Property
RERME

PYI captures the opportunities to extract revenue arising from property development and investment.

Xiao Yangkou is situated about 35 km west of Yangkou Port. The Group has 11.5 sg km land bank situated at
Xiao Yangkou, which is under the development as a regional tourism destination in support of the Yangkou Port
industrial zone.

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office development in the heart of CBD of Nantong City
with a gross floor area of some 80,000 sg m. A gross floor area of about 6,000 sgq m had been rented out for
hotel operation.

Wanhua Zijin Garden is a residential property development near Yangkou Port with a gross floor area of 65,000 sg m.

Pioneer Technology Building is an office building with gross floor area of some 20,000 sg m situated in the
Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of Bingjiang, Hangzhou City which is jointly held by PYI and
Paul Y. Engineering. It was almost fully leased out by the end of this financial year.

The Group holds certain commercial, residential and industrial properties near Yangtze River in the main urban district
of Yichang City with gross floor area of about 71,000 sg m through Yichang Port Group.
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Paul Y. Engineering
REER

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated to providing full-fledged engineering and
property services with operations in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Macau and Singapore. For over 60 years,
Paul Y. Engineering has played a significant role in shaping Hong Kong'’s skyline with its world-class
infrastructure, including major commercial and residential buildings, public housing, institutional facilities,
highways, railways, tunnels, port works, water and sewage treatment facilities etc.

As at 31 March 2015, the total value of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about HK$31,500 million.
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Board of Directors

EER

MR LAU TOM KO YUEN
BIERELE
Chairman and Managing Director
FEFE

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 64, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. He is also a
member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee, and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr Lau has over 40 years of international
corporate development and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well as construction and
engineering services involving the road, rail, port, power,
telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in
the Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company as an
executive director in 1993 and was appointed as the
Deputy Chairman in 1995. Mr Lau was also appointed
as the Managing Director of the Company in 2005 and
has been responsible for the Group’s corporate
development strategy, and overall performance. He had
been re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman
since 26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the deputy
chairman and an executive director of Louis Xl
Holdings Limited (0577.HK) and the deputy chairman
and a non-executive director of Prosperity Investment
Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
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MR CHAN YIU LUN, ALAN
BRI TE

Executiv_e‘Qirector
HITEF

Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 31, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company in November
2011. Mr Chan is also the director of corporate finance
of the Company. He graduated from Trinity College of
Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United States of
America, with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political
Science — International Relations. Mr Chan previously
worked in the investment banking division of The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. He is currently an executive
director of ITC Corporation Limited (0372.HK) which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions of
Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the
Directors’ Report, an executive director of ITC
Properties Group Limited (0199.HK) and a director of
Burcon NutraScience Corporation, the securities of
which are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(BU.TSX), the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (BNE.FWB)
and the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.NASDAQ). Mr
Chan is also an adviser of Bisagni Environmental
Enterprise (BEE Inc.). He is a son of Dr Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles who is a substantial shareholder of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests
and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders/Other
Persons” in the Directors’ Report.
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MR CHAN SHU KIN
IR et
Independent Non-Executive Director

BN TEF

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2004. He is also the Chairman of the
Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee and Share
Repurchase Committee. Mr Chan has over 38 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management services. He graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of
both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, as well as an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan, Certified Public Accountants. He is also an
independent non-executive director of PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (0850.HK) and Addchance
Holdings Limited (3344.HK).
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MR LI CHANG AN
ZEZRE
Independent Non-Executive Director

BULIWTEF

Mr Li Chang An, aged 80, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
in January 2007. Mr Li was the Vice Secretary of
Shangdong Provincial Party Committee from 1983 to
1987 and was further appointed as the Governor of
Shangdong Province in June 1985. He was the
Deputy Secretary-General of the State Council
between 1987 and 1993, and was elected as an
alternate member of the Eleventh CPC Central
Committee and a member of Twelfth CPC Central
Committee. Mr Li was the executive vice chairman of
China Poly Group Corporation from 1993 to 2001
and was also the chairman of the board of China
Orient Telecomm Satellite Company, Limited from
1995 to 2003.
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MS WONG LAI KIN, ELSA
EBRuL
Independent Non-Executive Director
BUFHTEE

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 49, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in November 2012. She is also a member
of the Company’s Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee. Ms Wong
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Law from The University of Hong Kong, as well as a
Master’s Degree in Corporate Finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a solicitor
of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and the
Supreme Court of England and Wales and holds the
Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Ms Wong
has over 25 years of experience in the legal
profession, with majority years working as corporate
counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong listed
companies (including the Company during the
periods from February 1995 to January 2000 and
from May 2003 to December 2007). Ms Wong is
currently employed as Senior Legal Director of
Alibaba.com China Limited. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Prosperity
Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
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MR MOK YAT FAN, EDMOND
E-tisksE

Independent Non-Executive Director

BUFHTEF

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond, aged 65, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. He is also a member of
the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee. Mr Mok has
over 39 years of experience in corporate management,
project management, property development,
construction management, hotel and hospitality
management and architectural practice in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada. He graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with Bachelor Degrees in Arts
(Architectural Studies) and Architecture and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a
Registered Architect and an Authorised Person
(Architects List) under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr Mok was an
executive director and chief executive officer of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (formerly a subsidiary of the
Company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) under stock code 0577.HK) from June
2006 to August 2008 and also a director of Paul Y.
Properties Group Limited (formerly listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange under stock code
0276.HK) from September 1998 to August 1999.

Board of Directors
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Senior Management
EREEE

MS YANG YAN
mELt
Chief Representative — China

HEERBHREFAX — FE

Ms Yang Yan, aged 47, joined the Group in 2003.
She is the Chief Representative of the Company in
China and is responsible for originating and monitoring
the performance of the Group’s investments in the
Mainland, and holds directorship in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Yang has many years
of experience in corporate development and general
administration and holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Business Administration.

Bzt (RF475r) N2003FIMAREE @ RARFELZ
FREREFRNPREZERERER  wEIBZAERBREE
AEBETPEZCXREER  YREARBAZZIHER
RIZEFRN - BREINEREERRE (THREE ST EE
BZHEER URATIHEREL M -

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report

"; 1

MR WONG YIU HUNG
HEREELE
Chief Financial Officer
EEHHE

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 50, joined the Group in
2004. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
and is responsible for all financial management and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr Wong holds
directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 27 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management in both
international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr
Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Chinese Law from
Peking University. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong.
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LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL

MS SIU TIN HO
Company Secretary

MS MEI HONG

Legal Counsel, China

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM

Financial Controller

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH

Treasurer

MR LEUNG HO MAN

Group Chief Accountant

INVESTMENT

MR ZHU YONG MING

Investment Director, China

MR SU ZHI JUN

Investment Consultant, China

INTERNAL CONTROL

MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN

Group Senior Manager — Internal Control &
Risk Management & Corporate Compliance

INTERNAL AUDIT

MR CHU WAI YEUNG

Group Internal Audit Senior Manager

MR WANG BAO GUO

Senior Director of Internal Audit, China

Corporate Support Team
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Operation Team
= E E KX

MR WEI WEN KUI

Director and General Manager

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MR WANG WEI GUO

Director and General Manager
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR CHEN FA YI

Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG

Director and General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO XI

General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN

Director and General Manager
Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JIN JUN

Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited

MR LIU DONG

Financial Controller
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR WEI JIANG TAO

Financial Controller

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MS TSANG SAU YING

Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN KAI

Deputy Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LI YONG

Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PYI Corporation Limited (“PY!” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold high
standard of corporate governance and maintain well-established
corporate governance practices for the benefit of shareholders
of PYI and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2014
annual report (which can be viewed on PYI's website:
www.pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for the deviation
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), and adopted some of the recommended best
practices for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, PYI continued to
comply with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code and
adopt some of the recommended best practices, except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen , the Managing Director (equivalent
to CEQ) of PYI, has been appointed as chairman of PYI
(“Chairman”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and
CEO with effect from 26 September 2011.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) believes that it is
appropriate and in the interests of PYI for Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen
to take up both roles at the present stage as it helps to ensure
consistent leadership within the Group and enable more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
The Board also believes that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with more than half the
number thereof being independent non-executive directors.

In addition, to demonstrate PYI's continued commitment to high
standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a Board
Diversity Policy, a summary of which is set out at page 48 of
this report, in June 2013.
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PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI
directors as well as relevant employees of PYI. After having
made specific enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of
PYI have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during this financial year 2014/2015.

Since the launch of the Code of Conduct of PYI (the “Conduct
Code”) in October 2009, all PYI directors, senior management
and staff have been under specific obligations to comply with
the ethics and principles under which our business is conducted
and have been allowed to report actual or potential violations of
the Conduct Code through stated procedure. Non-compliance
with the Conduct Code will result in disciplinary action. During
the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with the
Conduct Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEEREE
The structure below shows the key parties involved in our REBZLEERTFREBE BPRZEEK
corporate governance practices and policies within the Group. BLRBEHMT :
SHAREHOLDERS OF PYI
RERR
Approval of key Reporting )
corporate actions [ 3 Repoitlng
R EE- NS 1) HE ¥R
Appointment
=
OTHER BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STAKEHOLDERS BEERH
OF PYI
REHMEFGE
In\{estors Appointment Reporting Appointment Reporting and/or
REE ZE b ¥R ZE recommendation
Lenders FEHR R/ RHER
BERA - l

Regulators

REE
Customers
EE
Suppliers
fit FE R

Communication
B

MANAGING DIRECTOR
£k

Supervision Reporting
B &

h 4

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREERE
Supervision Reporting
B I ]

Review
— &w

Reporting
HEE 3R

Reporting
I 3

BOARD COMMITTEES
EERZEY
Corporate Governance and
Compliance ¥ &A% %R
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Remuneration &
Share Repurchase B 172 &
Audit E#

INTERNAL AUDITOR
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Conducting
internal audit
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OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP
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External Parties
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PYI is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYl has
established a Shareholders” Communication Policy (which can
be viewed on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com) setting out
various channels of communication with shareholders and
investment community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for
PYI shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders. Also, simultaneous translations in English and
Cantonese are arranged during the meetings to ensure that the
shareholders understand the content of the issues discussed
during the conduct of the meetings.

P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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TEERRSE
During the year, PYI held one general meeting. Voting on RER REBITT -ARRERE - REREH
resolutions put forward at the general meeting has been taken ARBRAUKREHFRRA -FERENER
by way of poll and the poll results have been published on the EEREMBEXGREEMBRAGI(ES
websites of PYIl and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing RGNz BuHE FTERZRERE L1
Limited (“HKEX"). All resolutions put to shareholders were EVEBEEHAREGRBA - FIRECZCERELRENE
passed at the said general meeting. The resolutions and the MERZZHE - JIFHOT
percentage of votes cast in favour of the resolutions are set out
below:
PYI’'S GENERAL MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR
ERAEERTHRERRAE
Annual General Meeting held on 5 September 2014 % of Votes Cast For
R2014F9ASHBITHRRBFRE BEREHHLE
v Approval of the 2014 audited accounts 100%
RA014FENKEZRE
v~ Declaration of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 100%
SIRBE2014F3A31HIEFE 2 RARE
v Re-election of Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as director 100%
EERBBELERES
v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000 100%
per annum for all directors
BBATERESHAETHBEF400000FTHESHES
v Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to 99.92%
Board to fix their remuneration
HAEZEEY - BERSTGHMITAZHMREREETRETAM S
v Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to issue shares 93.20%
BTEFBIROO—BRERERRE
v Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to repurchase shares 99.99%
BTEFLBERMO D — K RERERE
v Extension of the share issue mandate to directors 93.20%
BABETEEETRMDZED
v Approval of the amendments to the bye-laws of the Company 99.99%
BABARARRBMAZIEET
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Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PY! also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as the publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual) so as to provide extensive information
on the Group’s activities, financial position, business strategies
and developments to enable them to make informed decision
on matters relating to their investment and the exercise of their
rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available
on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com and the HKEX’s website.

Our website is an effective mean of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through the website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.

At pages 69 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYI and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI and details of top shareholders as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that

shareholders’ rights are protected. In accordance with PYl’s
bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI’s
shareholders are entitled to attend or be represented by proxy
and vote at general meetings. PYI's shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of PYI carrying the
right of voting at general meetings have the right to require a
special general meeting to be convened and propose
transaction of business.

All PYI’s shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors and in
our Shareholders Communication Policy.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance
of the Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated the Managing
Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the
Group. The senior management of the Group, on the other
hand, is responsible for the management and administrative
functions and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the
supervision of the Managing Director. The corporate governance
structure of PYI as disclosed in this report at page 41 shows
the detailed relationship between the Board, the Managing
Director and the senior management as well as other
stakeholders.

Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for
the Board:
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BRI k-
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RERBEAREET BRAEEMITHREAE
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SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD
EEREEERNAEER

v Financial reporting and control
BT E R B iR

v Equity fund raising
BARER

v Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions

BB R E A D IR EE TR

v Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information under the

Securities and Futures Ordinance

(EHRADFANAE T RAHNEERS R(EFZRAERIDAMENATHEE

v Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group
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Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
concerning its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 90 and 91 of this annual report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, there are 6 directors in our Board
consisting of 2 executive directors and 4 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors
represented more than half of the Board members, thus
exhibiting a strong independent element which enhanced
independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu Kin, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

EERYGRCHBRERNEM

EERERBEEERUAKRERAMBRE
THERERRAEBSEAVERRFREETE
BRMABNER -

ARG EBZBMAAERGAUBHRERER
FRAERRECNEBR HINAFREOR
NEBZEMBEER -

EEFAAK

RABESHY EERAANUEEAR  BEM
MATEER N BIIFRNITES - BILIFH
TEFHEFTRAEBBFE  tMRFEA
BB TR BRI A o AR RIBILIENTT
EEREBREEABLETRINDELNEE R
XER NEHAUAANMTEREER -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS X5
(as at the date of this report AR & H HA)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [# B2 5 4= +
Mr Li Chang An ZEE %54
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Flsa & BB 4+
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —i 54

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2|5 R4
(Chairman & Managing Director 3 & # 42 %)
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan B ES 5t 4

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the
Board and senior management.

P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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There was no change of directors and committee members
during the year except that (i) Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr
Chan”) retired as a non-executive director of the Company, and
ceased to be a member of the Company’s Nomination
Committee (alternate to Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen) at the conclusion
of PYI’'s annual general meeting held on 5 September 2014 (the
“2014 AGM”); (i) Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan ceased to be the
alternate director to Dr Chan at the conclusion of the 2014
AGM,; (i) Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph retired as an
independent non-executive director of the Company, and
ceased to be a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee and Share
Repurchase Committee (alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin) at the
conclusion of the 2014 AGM; and (iv) Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee of the
Company with effect from 5 September 2014. Brief biographical
details of each director (including his/her age, gender, term of
office, professional qualification and experience) are set out on
pages 32 to 35 of this annual report and also available on PYI's
website: www.pyicorp.com.

PYI has also maintained on its website and HKEx’s website an
updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
directors of the Company.

Each independent non-executive director is required to inform
PY! as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement under the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PY| and its associated corporations, if
any, during the year. Interests and short positions of PYI's
directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of PYI
and its associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’
Report on pages 82 and 83 of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy

As mentioned above, a Board Diversity Policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board was adopted in
June 2013. Under the policy:

(@ the Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level
as an essential element in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company;

(b)  the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying and selecting suitable individuals to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to the Board; and

(c) selection of candidates for directorship with the Company
will be based on diversity of perspectives which can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, skills, knowledge and independence
(if applicable).

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the policy and review the policy, where necessary, to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year are
issued well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating
more participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the
year, 5 Board meetings were held and the overall attendance of
Board meetings attained 100% and 100% attendance was also
recorded for Board committee meetings.

P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the request for
seeking such advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/
she be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.

Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI’s bye-laws, all directors (including non-
executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at least
once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any new
directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject to
re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following general
meeting after their appointment.
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All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.

In the 2014 AGM, Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, who retired from
office by rotation, was successfully re-elected as director of PY].

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election as director at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Li Chang An and Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr Li Chang An will not offer himself for re-election
while Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, being eligible, will offer herself for
re-election as director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The biographies of Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa and Mr Mok
Yat Fan, Edmond are set out in the circular for re-election of
directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PYI
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PY! of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PY| as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.
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Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Conduct Code, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that it is
effective to enhance corporate governance through regular
training within the Group. Apart from reading monthly
management updates, directors are encouraged to keep up to
date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings
and seminars at the expense of PYI on an ongoing and regular
basis.

This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PY| operates businesses and
applicable guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities
and attended seminars organised by professional bodies and/or
been provided with materials of such seminars. Our Hangzhou
training centre is responsible for organising regular internal
training for management of the Group. In addition to regular
attendance at Board and Board committees meetings, directors
including all independent non-executive directors have
participated in field trip to Jiaxing in September 2014.
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All directors and senior management are required to provide
PY!1 with their training records on an annual basis, and such
records are maintained by the Company Secretary for regular
review by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee. The training records of the directors and senior
management for this year were reviewed by the Committee in
June 2015.

According to the records, PY! directors received the following

training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a

director of a listed company in compliance with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:

Directors
EE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin [ 4 4

Mr Li Chang An Z=E& &4

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa #EE 4+

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —l 44

FMEEERkaREREYNASFRRERHfM4
PIMENRE M SR A METE U
BErEEARERZESTHEN -ZTEED
R20156F6 ABEREERAREEERNAFEN
BIlaE ek -

RELE REEERAFEEEXTEREE
EHRAREEAE BELEEZFI UKFE
(BETADZ TANEX EABLIRZHRTE

Type of Training
3= 313 Bl

Attending
internal and
external
seminars or
conferences
R E b B
HIERER

Reading
materials

v
v
v
v

AN N NN

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R %4
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan B4 &
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Board Committees

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established
five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles,
authority and functions as detailed in the respective written
terms of reference which are available on PYl’s website:
www.pyicorp.com. A majority of members of all Board
committees are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including
independent board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve
projects as it deems necessary.

All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board
and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to
the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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BOARD COMMITTEES EE/5Z 5§

Corporate
Governance and Share
Board Remuneration Nomination Compliance LETES EEN Shareholders
BER % ¥ i R’RA TEERARER & 17 Bl B BR=

Number of meetings held during the year
REREBTEHRE 5 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin & 1] B2 5 & 5/5 1M
MrLiChang An & & & 5t &£ 5/5 0N
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa % & & 2z + 5/5 11
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & — i, 5t 4 3/3 -

(appointed with effect from 5 September 2014

E2014F9 75 AL EZ(E)
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 22 5 45 5t & 2/2 01

(retired with effect from 5 September 2014

H201449 A5 H R (T)
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2]/ R 5 £ 5/5 11
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan [ 12 & 5%t 4 5/5 0N
Non-Executive Director
FHUTES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles [ B 34 & + 2/2* 0N

(with M( Char] Yiu Lug, Alan as alternate

RRBBEERETESE)

(retired with effect from 6 September 2014

B2014%F 985 H iR (T)
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
SEERBERVTIUE
Mr Ko Hiu Fung 1= B I& %t & 5/5 11

* Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan attended a board meeting in the capacity as the alternate director of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
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TERERBME
The following tables show the composition of the Board committees, LTI RBETRIRFANESRZEGNENX H

their respective roles and functions and a summary and/or report of the AEEBERETIERER SRS
works performed by them during the year:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FMESEE

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
A8 R BYFHITES HITES N
Mr Chan Shu Kin f& 1 B2 5t 4 (Chairman 2 &) + Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2l i R 5t 4

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & — i, % &

Role & Function* Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company
p=R=Rich 4o AT 2N A &) B B B BOR
7 Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and
senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing a policy
on such remuneration
B EFHESRERERN S MBOR R - AR R EZ 35 5B & L — B E R B %6
EWREF REERBEDES
7 Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment
BEARMEEREABMARTESRSREEENREFMEE  BREEMMNG - RKSHER
REECH(BEANBRANR FABEHEEMENNERABEES)
V4 Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

MEEREHIFNITESH N

Summary of work Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2014 AGM
performed BEREZNSHAE HREAE014FREBAF RS LHLE
ITHERE

V4 Reviewed the share incentive schemes
8 & AR 17 B 51 &

7 Considered and approved the key performance indicators of Managing Director and Senior Management
for the financial year 2013/14 and the grant of variable bonus for the financial year 2013/14 to Managing
Director and Senior Management

TR ER0IBAMBFRERNRERSRELZENERAEBERRARA LS RERE

v Considered and approved the grant of additional incentive bonus
Z R R ER HEINHEN LA

v Reviewed the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior Management for the year 2014/15
BB RS RERER2014/15F E 1 556

v Proposed and/or approved the grant of share options to Managing Director, Senior Management and
independent non-executive g_irectors
BER/RHERALEE SRAEERERBUIENTESRRLBARE

7 Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the increase in the director’s fee
EHRAEERIZZAAESHES

NV Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the director’s fee of a newly appointed
independent non-executive director

EHRMESREZMEZEBUFATESNESES

v Approved the grant of housing allowance to a member of Senior Management
HAEMER -—EZEREBEEKNERLEREZMH]

NV Approved the grant of discretionary year-end bonus for the financial year 2014/15 to Managing Director

HEAE A 48 B 72 2014/15 81 AR 2 B B9 4B F 4R TE AT

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.

* BRE—HFHE FHE LHARES  www.pyicorp.comZ H I Z B g BEEHEE -
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Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, the duties and responsibilities of a director,
employment conditions elsewhere and the time committed by
the director.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an
integral part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future
awards to employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy
include:

v toattract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v tosupport the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized;

v toalign employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

v equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in
light of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence
on the Group’s performance and share price.

PY1 effectively deploys an appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option
scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan as well
as cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
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TRERBRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

REZESE

Composition

21

Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
BAFHTES HITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin B f& 8 % & (Chairman F /&) + Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2 & JR £ &£
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & — i, %& &

Role & Function*
p=ReR:ch 4o

Reviews the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
ELEFRIEEHNEE ABRZT(BREETRERMER  Fik XEERBEER &

Mr BERTERFE LR Kt MBERBRBFHR) T ERBRELHRAEEFREES

|dentifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships

NEABEERNAGEANRECTEERKE MBI ETRRELRZARALTHEES

Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors

B IFMITE RN B

Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and Managing Director

REFZAXENZE UREF(LHRIFEAR) ETCHIRNEZRRLEZS

Reviews and recommends to the Board for adoption of measurable objectives for achieving and improving
diversity on the Board
REBLHEEERUESZ T RAREBAGERRTESFRE B LM

Monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy (a summary of which is set out on page 48 of this
report)
ERBEERNES TIEBR (HBEHINAREFICE) NBITIER

Summary of work
performed

THERE

Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2014 AGM

RERTESHE04FRRBFARG LREE T

Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
ERRIZBEIFRTESTRRB(ETARADEIAKMB R FE B ER K
Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board

RN EERDRERE  ABLAEK

Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy

BNEEFRKEZ TLBR

Recommended to the Board for appointment of Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond as independent non-executive
director

HEBEZRZER - NELERBIYFATES

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
* BRE S BT LHMNMRENL  www.pyicorp.comZ REEZ B S HEEHE -
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TERERRE
NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND BERER - BREURER

CRITERIA

Nomination Nomination Committee Nomination Committee The Board makes

Committee makes identifies individuals selects or makes formal invitation to

recommendations suitably qualified to recommendations to the selected persons for

to the Board on become directors Board on the selection of appointment to

any proposed changes persons nominated for the Board
directorships

REZSSFHEM REZESSYEAR REZESSHRES EERAEkKEAL
RIESBOESS BEAERIEE RESRELEZENLE BHEREIEEN
RHEE EEHAL BEALHEES EBFER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
CEERREREES

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Company Secretary

AR BYFHTES ARWE
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 1 B 5¢ 4 (Chairman 3= /&) == Mr Ko Hiu Fung & B 1§ 4 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa # B & 2 + (Ceased to be a member with
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & — i} 4& 4 effect from 22 May 2015

E2015F5 22 HEE(LHL B

Role & Function* ./ Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
£ B R A recommendations to the Board
HERBAARBNCEERBRRELER TAEERIRHER

v Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management

BAREREERSREEBNEIIRSEEXRER

7 Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and meets with the management of the Company to assess the Company’s compliance
policies, programs and procedures
B RERARAEEFTERAREERETEANBERER WEHAQRNEREERTEH
NFFREARBNEREEK - FREER

v Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable

to employees and directors of the Company
HE e ERMBFREARARAREEREENEFATAEILARFMENE)

7 Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or potential
compliance violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
AES R AEMCEE AR ERZESRRNEMNERERIEBETERBR

v Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report

BHARABFCETRADAZ(RETADNER RBH(REE RS AN E

*

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for
further details.
* BREE ST FRHELHMNRER  www.pyicorp.comZ PEEARABRTE SR ESE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (continued)

TCEXEARERZESES (H)

Summary of v Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
work performed EHEZE2014F3ANBIEFEZ(EEERKRS)
IERBE

7 Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries

EHUARARETEIENBRARMNENERENLRSE

Va4 Reviewed the form for confirmation of directors ™ participation in training provided by each director in
compliance with the CG Code

EMREFRUCEFT2 AR 2ERRSE  ABEF(RETRD

v Reviewed the policy on disclosure and public relations
B8 SN R ENIE 6

7 Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the environmental, social and governance policy

EHREBRE HLERERBRRTEERELR

7 Reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy
I8 5 AR B B ELBUR

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE

BRABEBZEES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Director Executive Director
AR BYkHITES + HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 1 B2 5% £ (Chairman %= /&) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 21 & 8 %t 4

Role & Function* v~ Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYlin
£ s A accordance with the Listing Rules, PY1" s bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda

REBCETRAD REQRDMUNRBAREERER TERRETEEROBRERD
ZEN

Summary of work During the year, no meeting was held by the Share Repurchase Committee

performed REA ROCEZESYEEHREZH
ITHERE
* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.

* ERAE B FAE LHNRERL - www.pyicorpcomZ RIP B R E E € HAESE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

EXEBEY

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors
AR BYFHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin f& #&f B2 5 4 ¥ (Chairman % /&)
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa & B8 B2 2 +
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & — i}, & 4

# Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services.

BREBREERR - ZREGHEN ERE AV BEERE I AHRALELR -

Role & Function* Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor
AEEBRE REEIEZBMMEERRLEZSR
v Reviews the Group’s financial information
FRAREENTEE R
v Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
EEAEENBERGE RREELABEZERLS
v Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for approval
ERREZRILAEZA  BEXNAEETHMKIAES

v Reviews financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s external and internal auditors
EHMERMAINEEIEEE - WA AUt B & W& IR AN 2 51 ME % BAD K R #B 2= T

SIREVES DS S
Report on work v Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated
performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
TEHE EHAEBEACERNPPREEUBRRRECECZNEFERAVBRE  TEZESR
[ERic]

v Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
EHAEBRRNITEZERRARERBIESR

7 Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group
ERRERNAEEMETRTENAMEE BEERERANBES THENERRSE
7 Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group’s 2014
final results

BOENE B A B R AR E2014F RPEETRENREE

v Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the review of the Group’s 2015
interim results

HAEINEREMA B A EE015F P REETEZNOREE

7 Approved the engagement of external auditor to provide non-audit services on reviewing the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2014

BAEZEIIBZBAMIBHENEE2014F9A30H IE 2 R EM AL S M B WK 2 IFZH

AR %5

v Reviewed connected transactions of the Group
EHAEBECHERS

v Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor at
2014 AGM

BZR20UMFRRAFARES LENEAED « BMEMR S SA1T A ANEEINEZ BAD
v Met with external auditor in the absence of executives of the Group

EREAEEBTRABESNERT - & RINBEEED

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.

BRI — SRS R R REA  www.pyicorp.com 2 B E H & B 0 8 -
il seemsman 20554 ﬁ
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board considers that sound risk management and internal
control systems are vital to the achievement of the Group’s
strategic objectives and acknowledges its responsibility to
establish, maintain and review the effectiveness of such
systems.

Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group to achieve the following business objectives:

v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v Reliability of financial reporting

v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aims to

provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee performs review of the effectiveness of

the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reports to the Board at least on a quarterly basis.
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N A
TERERBRS
The table below shows the roles of the key parties in our risk TEERFIEZAEERMOREREENA IS
management and internal control systems: TEMANAMEENAR :
Board of Directors
E=R
v Sets strategic objectives v~ Evaluates and determines the v Provides direction on the
i 7E B A B AR nature and extent for the importance of risk management
v Oversees management in the Group’s principal risks and risk management culture
design, implementation and BT 2N &8 [E 1 3 22 [ B R ) B E R B E I B B AR B B B
monitoring of the risk MEMEE LRt 75 M)

management and internal
control systems
EETHEEHRREEMAIE
ERBER  TNEER

Audit Committee

Managing Director & Senior Management

BERESREER EREEE

v Assesses risks and mitigating measures Group- v Reviews the effectiveness of risk management
wide and internal control systems
5= [ 22 88 ) A8 AT Mk 3L B RN o E R B B B B WA EREIREMABEEIE RGN G RIE

v~ Designs, implements and monitors the risk
management and internal control systems Internal Auditor
Rt ROTREBERRERNANEZRR RERE ST ED

v Provides confirmation on the effectiveness of the ~ Supports the Audit Committee in reviewing the
risk management and internal control systems to effectiveness of risk management and internal
the Board control systems
HRBREEBNABEZEZARNERERESERER TEEREECUERRSENNSEEZS Y X
R 1 {1 ) 3

Operation Management
EEEERE

v Implements and monitors the risk management and internal control procedures across business operations
and functional areas
MITREERXBEENBETFINRREREMANIEZRT

il seemsman 20554 ﬂ
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Risk Management Framework

The diagram below shows the risk management framework
adopted by the Group:

Strategy K&

Vision

Statement

=EH

Process &2

Identify
Bl

~ D’

A Risk

Management
Process

‘ J_LI“-% EIE/AL*E l

BE ¥R

Monitor Respond
=] — @pgg

Elements 7TE

Human
Resource
Mechanisms

Organization
Structures

SRS

Management
Commitment

EEEAGE

Performance
Measure

ARIER
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Communications
and Training

AR BERE

Assurance

EHEZR
T R AN 5 AT AR A 0 L B I AE 2R

Risks are considered
when setting strategy.
7 5 X SR B B
EZRERAZE -

Process applies standard
procedures, assessment
tools and market practices.

BIZPER TIREMER
FHE AR TISHOE

Elements that are brought
together to support, promote
and drive risk management
throughout the Group.

P BX 2 5~ (RSB ER M
’E CERREEMBNITE -
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Risk assessment is performed to evaluate the nature and extent
of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk assessment
process, the Group has identified key risks facing the Group.
The risks are prioritized according to the likelihood of their
occurrence and the significance of their impact on the
businesses of the Group. Moreover, risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular training is
provided to our management to strengthen their awareness of
risk and capability to manage risks.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Group’s systems of internal control were developed by
making reference to the Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 2013
and the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Management at business units level is required to perform
control self-assessments annually at both company and
business process levels to assess the effectiveness of their
systems of internal control. The control self-assessment is in the
form of questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated
Framework. These five interrelated components are Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring.

During the year, the Legal, Finance and Accounts as well as
Internal Control departments of the Group have carried out
reviews on operational, financial and compliance controls of all
subsidiaries in China to ensure their compliance with the
Group’s risk management and internal control policies and
procedures and the accuracy of relevant reports submitted to
the Group.

In addition, the internal audit department has carried out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control according to
the approved three-year internal audit plan for the Group. This
audit plan was determined using a risk-based approach and is
re-assessed annually to ensure adequate audit resources are
deployed to achieve the objectives of the internal audit plan.

TRERBRSE
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AEEMANIEIE XGRS E X B Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadvvay
Commission (COSO) #2013 F #7 & 2 A &6 B2
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Finally, management has formulated remedial action plans to
address the gaps and weaknesses identified during control
self-assessments, internal control reviews and internal audits.
The PYI head office has conducted follow-up reviews
periodically to ensure remedial actions are taken on a timely
basis, and has reported the results of the follow-up reviews to
the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board was not aware
of any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

In order to comply with the new requirements as specified in the
“Consultation Conclusions on Risk Management and Internal
Control” published by the HKEx recently, PYI has performed
reviews of its risk management and internal controls policies
and procedures to ensure alignment with the new requirements
and to explore opportunities for any further improvement in
existing risk management and internal control systems.

Review of Accounting, Internal Audit and Financial
Reporting Functions

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group’s accounting , internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget, and was
satisfied with the results of the review.

Procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The revised Policy on Disclosure and Public Relations was
implemented on 20 June 2013 in response to the statutory
requirements for disclosure of inside information. Proper
measures have been taken by the Group to ensure compliance
with the disclosure requirements. Such measures include
establishment of the inside information identification, reporting,
and disclosure protocol and procedures; in-house training to
senior management and relevant officers at Group level and
business units level; and review of the procedures and controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information by
internal auditor.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit department of PYI set up in November 2007 is
headed by Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who reports
directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an important role
in the internal governance of the Group. With the assistance
from external internal audit consultant, the internal audit
department is primarily responsible for conducting audit on the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and
internal control periodically.

The internal audit department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required
in performing internal audit review. Moreover, the department
comprises well qualified and capable staff and is provided with
adequate resources to perform its duties.

Since 2008, internal audit assignments have been directed by
an internal audit strategic plan approved by the Audit
Committee. This strategic plan is developed by adopting risk-
based approach for every three years and reviewed annually. In
addition, ad hoc internal audit assignments are performed on
request by the management or assigned by the Audit
Committee. In the past seven years, the internal audit
department has completed two three-year internal audit
strategic plans and the first year of its third three-year plan.

During the process of audits, the internal audit department
identified internal control weakness, made recommendations for
improvement, obtained remedial action plan of management
and followed up remedial status of the management action plan
and its timeliness. Besides, in order to ensure the continuity of
the ISO9001 certification for the Group’s corporate support
centre in Hangzhou that provides in-house legal, internal audit,
HKGAAP accounting, in-house training and data backup
services to the Group’s business units, the internal audit
department has performed internal audit review for the
corporate support centre on the compliance of the ISO9001
certification requirements.

TRERBRSE
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed as
the Company’s external auditor at 2014 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 18 June 2015 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
2015 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the
same view as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.

ShES R BED

EHeAEM A ERTANIT([EE]) BER2014F
BRERAFAS LESHEZTABEARRIINEZHE
B EBRT—EBRRBFRGERAL BFZZE
BEgN2015F6A18H 2 @& LEZ E2015F
BRAEAFAKSLEFZTEHHEQRIINEZ
HE MEEREEZZESCER —-

BRTRFEBILE BHTEAARAKELR
AUBHRREREBERSE  ARTSEEZHS
VHREERE UKAERZESHENIER
RS

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

ENFIENTFEHINKBRFLBRBEME

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

Services Rendered 1= 14t 19 PR 7% FEx FAT

Audit services ZE RS 4,073 4,071

Non-audit services IEZ AR

Review of interim condensed consolidated 2=t Bif§ R 4R &

financial statements B IR & 1,390 1,388

Taxation advisory T TE 75 ) 169 80

Special engagements HrEEE 13 12

Total ] 5,645 5,551

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws (in
both English and Chinese) are available on the websites of PYI
(www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX.

Shareholders approved amendments to the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”) at the 2014 AGM to bring the
Bye-laws in line with certain amendments made to the Listing
Rules and to incorporate certain housekeeping amendments.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2014/2015, the Group continued to discharge its corporate
social responsibility in many areas, both internally and towards
the community.

Since 2012, PYIl and our associate, Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul. Y Engineering”), have donated HK$1,000,000
each year to Friends of Hope Education Fund for four
consecutive years as a token of our support to education works
in both Hong Kong and the Mainland China, which include
sponsorship of tuition fees for Hong Kong students with
financial difficulties and AIDS affected students in Hubei. In
September 2014, PYI and Paul Y. Engineering donated a total
of HK$1,000,000 to the said fund.

In July 2014, PYI was honoured to have sponsored a study tour
to Hong Kong for 30 outstanding secondary school students
from Nantong for the eighth year. PY| organised trips to the
Legislative Council Complex, amusement parks and universities
in Hong Kong with an aim to educating the students on the
educational and commercial operations in Hong Kong as well
as cultivating their interests in science and care of nature.

At PYI, our businesses are intricately connected to the
environment. With a sense of social responsibility towards the
environment, we supported the global “Earth Hour” campaign
organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature (“WWF”) by
turning off the non-essential lights in our office for an hour at 8:30
p.m. on 28 March 2015. We also encouraged our staff to
support “Earth Hour” campaign through our internal
communications. In appreciation of our efforts, PYl is pleased to
have received thanks from the WWF.

During the year, PYI has adopted an environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) policy with an aim to setting out the
approach to ESG issues of PYI. During the year, we have
engaged external consultant to conduct an Environmental,
Health and Safety Review for our “liquefied petroleum gas” and
“compressed natural gas” businesses in Wuhan to ensure their
compliance with applicable regulatory requirements in the
Mainland China.
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“Staff” is a valuable asset to the Group. While PYI remains
committed to the good of the society, both locally and
regionally, we also focus on caring for our staff’s well being. To
this end, safe workplaces have been provided to all staff and
workshops have been provided to enhance their awareness
over occupational health and safety issues. Training has also
been provided to improve our staff's knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. We also encourage our staff to
maintain a healthy work-life balance and continue to support
their efforts towards voluntary work. In addition, PYl is proud of
being accredited, for the seventh year running, with the title of

“Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

As we progress into the new financial year, PYl would like to
maintain our focus to be a responsible and caring corporate
citizen, contributing to the community while driving profitability
for our shareholders.
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PYI| and Shareholders

The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed to pay a final cash dividend of HKO.5 cent
per share, which together with the interim cash dividend of
HKO.5 cent per share paid in January 2015, amounts to a total
dividend of HK1 cent per share, representing a payout ratio of
53% for the year ended 31 March 2015. Subject to the approval
of PYI's shareholders in the 2015 annual general meeting to be
held on Friday, 4 September 2015, cheques for payment of the
final cash dividend to shareholders whose names appear on
PYI’s register of members as at the close of business on
Wednesday, 23 September 2015 are expected to be
despatched to shareholders by post on or around Wednesday,
7 October 2015.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of PYI will be closed during the period
from Monday, 21 September 2015 to Wednesday, 23
September 2015, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share(s) of PYI will be effected. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfer document(s), accompanied by the
relevant share certificate(s), must be lodged with PYI’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 18
September 2015.
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PY| and Shareholders
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SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings as recorded in PYI's register of members as at
31 March 2015 are as follows:

IR R

FHERERRAMZBER

R20154F3A31H -
BREWMT :

Approximate Approximate
% of % of issued
Size of registered No. of shareholders share capital
shareholdings shareholders HRREE No. of shares HEBITRAE
BRRRERE RREH ZBHNBED REHOEE 2N B
500 or below AT~ 339 56.78% 43,172 0.00%
501 — 1,000 33 5.53% 24,355 0.00%
1,001 — 10,000 116 19.43% 398,028 0.01%
10,001 — 100,000 72 12.06% 2,709,641 0.06%
100,001 — 1,000,000 23 3.85% 5,610,044 0.12%
1,000,001 — 10,000,000 9 1.51% 23,430,904 0.51%
10,000,001 — 100,000,000 1 0.17% 11,259,933 0.25%
Above 100,000,000 A _E 4* 0.67% 4,533,884,495 99.05%
Total &3t 597 100.00% 4,577,360,572 100.00%
*  The four shareholders were:  ZPUfIRE DRI A :
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited ~ &F#&hhEE (RIEA) GRAF
Clearing Participants/ rEzEE )/
Custodian Participants AEmSEE 3,098,826,386 67.70%
Investors Participants WEEFPOFEABA 81,100,073 1.77%
Hong Kong Securities EAhARLEHE
Clearing Company Limited BIRAT 576 0.00%
3,179,927,035" 69.47%
2 Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 21.74%
3 Jadeview Limited 201,210,772 4.40%
4 Rich Concept Investments
Limited 157,692,718 3.44%
4,533,869,594 99.05%

The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees
Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Participants
Shareholding Report (the “PSH Report”). The number of shares registered
in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the PSH Report is different from
that shown on PYI’s register of members because some shares
withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been

re-registered.
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PYI| and Shareholders

=+ 1
REEE R
FINANCIAL CALENDAR Bt 3% A &
Event Date
E1g =]
2014 final results and final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 20/06/2014
FMH2014F RAFHE K FR0.578 U 2 RERAR B
2014 PYI AGM 05/09/2014
201 MRERRBAF R
2014 final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share paid 24/09/2014
IR 20145E FRR0.5578 1l 2 AR EAAR B
2015 interim results and interim dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 21/11/2014
S 72015 R BRZEAE & FAR0.678 1L 2 R B 2
2015 interim dividend of HKO.5 cent/share paid 07/01/2015
IRT2015F FRR0.5 1l 2 F EARR &
2015 final results and final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 19/06/2015
FH2015F RAFHEE R FRR0.58U 2 RAAAR B
2015 PYI AGM 04/09/2015
2015RERFBFRE

2015 final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share payable
IRT2015F FRR0.578 1l 2 RAARR B

Around#97:07/10/2015

il seemsman 20554 ﬂ
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SHARE INFORMATION

Share Listing

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
on 21 September 1993.

Stock Code
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW

Board lot 2,000 shares

Securities in Issue
Shares

As at 31 March 2015
As at 19 June 2015

4,577,360,572 shares
4,577,360,572 shares

Rt &EH#
KL

RERMMNI993FOA2IBHE REERE

£
KRG

BB AT
EH RS R T

ﬁ

BEEHMN(BF)
B #1Ti% %
&)

M201543 A31H
R 201546 A19H

8 32 B

498
PYW

2,000 %

4,577,360,572 %
4,577,360,572 %

— Share price (cum dividend)*
RRECGES)*

— Share price (ex dividend)

B (R
HKs 1.0
BT
0.8
06 |
04 |
0.2 k
0.0
< < <t < < < <t < < [Te) %o} w
= = = = =z = = = = = 2 2
o o o o o o o o o o o o
<t Yo} © N~ [e0) [ (@) — [aV) — [aV) (a0}
(@) (@) o o (@) (@) — — — o o (@}

Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of

PYI shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993

* RECGEBIRERE GRS RBRERMESSE LH.2 A (1993F9 A 21

MARKET CAPITALISATION

Total Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2015
As at 19 June 2015

HK$746 million
HK$1,190 million

Public Float Capitalisation*

As at 31 March 2015 HK$537 million
As at 19 June 2015 HK$857 million
* Public excludes all connected persons (including substantial shareholders

and directors) of PYI.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (“PY1” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2015 are set out in Note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 92 of this annual report and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim cash dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 of
HKO.5 cent per share amounting to a total sum of approximately
HK$22,887,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors have resolved to recommend for shareholders’
approval the payment of a final cash dividend for the year ended
31 March 2015 of HKO.5 cent per share to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members as at the close of
business on 23 September 2015. The estimated total sum
payable in respect of this final dividend is approximately
HK$22,887,000.

Details of the distribution are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the turnover of the
Group. The five largest suppliers and the single largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 57% and 21% of the
total purchases of the Group respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
close associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, has an interest in any of the five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2015,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$2,383,865,000 with approximately HK$1,626,389,000
repayable on demand or within one year, approximately
HK$757,476,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank
balances and deposits as at 31 March 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$1,044,743,000. The Group’s current ratio
(calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 1.64 and the debt to equity ratio (calculated as
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 0.49 as at 31 March 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group transferred approximately
HK$23,246,000 from project under development to
construction in progress, and spent approximately
HK$31,887,000 in respect of the construction of ports and
approximately HK$29,889,000 on the other property, plant and
equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$25,250,000
on investment properties, and transferred approximately
HK$44,031,000 from project under development to investment
properties. All investment properties were revalued at the end of
the reporting period.

Details of these and other movements in the investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

1. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general
meeting held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Purpose

To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

(2) Participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time),
executives or officers, directors (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued) % 17 3% B 51 & ()
1. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 1. BEREZ #E)
(3) Total number of shares available for issue B AFBRITZRMAH
(a) Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b) (@ IR — X ()T

below, the total number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
issued shares as of 6 September 2013, being
457,736,057 shares.

(b)  Overriding Limit — The Company may by
ordinary resolutions of its shareholders refresh
the Mandate Limit as referred to in the above
paragraph (a) provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit on the
number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued (©)]
shares from time to time.

(c) As of the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares in the Company available for
issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 325,728,857 shares, which represented
approximately 7.12% of the issued share
capital of the Company (that is, 4,577,360,572
shares) on that date.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

1. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

4)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. However,
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with the relevant
participant and his close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) (or his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) if the participants is a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining
from voting and provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought, the Company may grant a
participant options which would exceed the
aforesaid limit.

Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, save that such period must not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it is vested

The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it is vested, shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any
minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option and
period for acceptance

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date
on which the offer was issued; or (i) the date on
which the conditions for the offer are satisfied.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

1.

Pyl

"~
L 4

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

)

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant
of the relevant option but shall not be less than the
higher of: (i) such subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (ji) the
nominal value of the share of the Company.

Remaining life

The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is
10 years commencing from 10 September 2012 and
will expire on 9 September 2022.

Details of the movements in the share options, which were
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, during the
year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

B 4 88 E 5 8l (m)

1. BEREZ #E)
8)

BEERBEEZEE

RBEEHEERN L EEERE
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Q) EERZBEMB

012F BE R B B 2B KH A10
F - BH2012F9A 108 B - W i5
20229 A9R fEim °

1R #5 2012 4F B R #E 5T 1 M 2015F 3 A31 H
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™

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise

of the share options

REREBTEREFRITZROEE
Granted
Exercise during the
Date of price per As at year ended As at
Grantee grant share 01.04.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 Exercise period
REBZE
i 31.03.2015 i
EBA R AH BRITHEME  01.04.2014 FERH 31.03.2015 T
(Note ffz+4)
HK$
BT
Directors
i
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 27.06.2014 0.1624 — 15,000,000 15,000,000  27.06.2014—26.06.2017
A5 R 27.06.2014 0.1624 - 15,000,000 15,000,000 27.06.2015—26.06.2017
27.06.2014 0.1624 - 15,000,000 15,000,000 27.06.2016—26.06.2017
Chan Shu Kin 29.09.2014 0.1720 — 4,500,000 4,500,000  29.09.2014—28.09.2017
BoR 151 B2
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 29.09.2014 0.1720 — 4,500,000 4,500,000 29.09.2014—28.09.2017
BER
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond 29.09.2014 0.1720 — 4,500,000 4,500,000 29.09.2014—28.09.2017
BE—1
Sub-total /NaE — 58,500,000 58,500,000
Employees 27.06.2014 0.1624 - 24,502,400 24,502,400  27.06.2014—26.06.2017
=32 27.06.2014 0.1624 — 24,502,400 24,502,400  27.06.2015—26.06.2017
27.06.2014 0.1624 - 24,502,400 24,502,400 27.06.2016—26.06.2017
Sub-total /NaE — 73,507,200 73,507,200

Grand total #&3t

132,007,200 132,007,200
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

1. The offer of grant of share options entitling Mr Li Chang An (who is
an independent non-executive director of the Company) to
subscribe for a total of 4,500,000 shares made by the Company
on 29 September 2014, which was not accepted, lapsed on 29
October 2014.

2. All share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2015 were/will be vested on the
commencement date of each respective exercise period.

3. 0] The closing price of the shares of the Company on 26 June

2014 was HK$0.161 (being the closing price of the

Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant).

(ii) The closing price of the shares of the Company on 26
September 2014 was HK$0.173 (being the closing price of

the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant).

4, The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or capitalisation issues or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

5. No share options were exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Share Award Scheme

This scheme, adopted by the Company on 23 February
2006, allows the Company to make bonus payments to
eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company’s shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

During the year, no shares of the Company were awarded
under this scheme.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

3. Share Financing Plan

This plan, adopted by the Company on 14 February 2006,
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on a
non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to the
Company as security, subject always to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the Listing
Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was
provided by the Group under this plan.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$1,411,006,000 (2014: HK$1,024,998,000).

2015 Annual Report

B 17 & E 5t 8l (@)

3. Ru@E: 2

200652 A14 B B AR RN 2 A5 &
RHFRERAT(BEAEBZEES &
FBE BRARRBAAEREER
WEBTHEARARARRKANEBAN—RAAE
FUBEAQARIZHKERD MBS
BHEBGEARGIERERR  HAFAS
(EmBENEREER S REMERKEX
ZHTE

RER AEBLERBEAAENEER
ATREEARE -

BEROIEF 2L

BB R E 2 B RE BN RFRAEME
Bk FHER NRBHE MK E QB BER
TEMZHEMEARARBDEEAZBEALRRT
FEMEMEABRBZEOHESMESHER -

Al 5k 7
MR2016F3A31H Al DR FRE Z AR A

% /% #71,411,006,0007% 7T (2014 : 1,024,998,000
AL °



DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin
Li Chang An
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond
(appointed with effect from 5 September 2014)
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBs, JP
(retired with effect from 5 September 2014)

Executive directors

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
(Chairman & Managing Director)
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Non-executive director

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(with Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate)
(retired with effect from 5 September 2014)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws,

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond will retire from office at the

forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer

himself for re-election as director at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Li Chang An and Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa will retire

by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Li

Chang An will not offer himself for re-election while Ms Wong
Lai Kin, Elsa, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election as
director at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.
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ESRBESE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EEC2RBEN

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual BREBRTZREEFAS FERETCE
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is EWEBEAEETVUAEER —FRTAET
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment FEECEATREERBRIINBBER TRIEZRES
of compensation (other than statutory compensation). #) o

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBRESTHAERERS  HER
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, BRESEZEZRRE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

R2015F3A31H ARRIEBERESTHAES
As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of each RARB ZKRMD RABBERDTEEVELER
of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the BEB(BEERLBEBRIEBIETFTURE 2 &8
shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in MRKIRECETAREBDKSE T ETREITAZE

the register required to be kept under section 352 of the ERTEFISWZES AN ([GEEST D)) &
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise BRARNBINELBAEZTSTAR QB ([HBX
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Frl) Rz Em kAR EIOT

Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are set out below:

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BER®G HERDEE
(Note ftz#1)
Approximate
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total share capital
BEE B8 HEBRITRAE
TRAEER g4 BAEZ Rk#Ez LREzE HEz By ZEYES
(Note fifzE2)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner 59,672,605 - - — 59,672,605 1.30%
2= R EmfEA A (Note fff 7 3)
Chan Shu Kin Beneficial owner 4,500,000 — — — 4,500,000 0.10%
ek A B2 EREAA (Note fff i#4)
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa Beneficial owner 4,500,000 — — - 4,500,000 0.10%
HER EmfEA A (Note fff 7 4)
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond Beneficial owner 5,625,102 - - - 5,625,102 0.12%
E—M EREAA (Note 1} 3% 5)
Notes: Bfa -
1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. FRAARBROD RMBEIRGO Z2ERZG ABITFE
Company were long positions. None of the directors and the chief R2015F3A31H  ARREERERTHRAE
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares and BMEARKAGEOREEIRHOPRIEERE -

underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2015.
2. AR 201543 A31H 2 4,577,360,572 A A& 2
2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,577,360,572 shares BT BEAE
as at 31 March 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
3. Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen comprised:
(i) 14,672,605 shares; and

(i) 45,000,000 underlying shares in respect of share options granted
to him on 27 June 2014 pursuant to the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, further details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Incentive Schemes” above.

4. All these interests held by such directors were underlying shares in
respect of share options granted to them on 29 September 2014
pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme, further details of which are
set out in the section headed “Share Incentive Schemes” above.

5. Such interests held by Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond comprised:
0] 1,125,102 shares; and

(i) 4,500,000 underlying shares in respect of share options granted to
him on 29 September 2014 pursuant to the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, further details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Incentive Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2015, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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ESRBESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS

EEREZEGaNP RS

ARREBEFEARARBHEEMME R AR FHE
FENEMEEITLZ2EZANTHEEEX
GEE PN

FERF HATzEBZRAR
R20156F3A31H  ARAIZEER&REITHRA

SMAM TERR HMATRARRRD KA
MO HEAEACHERREBEGES RBEEHH)

3361578

As at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the directors and T
the chief executive of the Company, the interests and short

positions of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO

are as follows:

(1) Substantial shareholders

(1) TERHF

FREZBERMAN T ER AR D

Number of Approximate
shares/ % of the
underlying issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held capital
BEkRG HERITRA
REREB g4 HERGEE ZBABE DL
(Note [z 1) (Note fffz+2)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Beneficial owner 35,936,031 0.79%
Bk B 58 EREBA
Interest of controlled corporation 1,226,971,695 26.80%
XA E =
(Note f17£3)
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse 1,262,907,726 27.59%
R 51 38 Be 1B #E 5
(Note ff17#4)
ITC Corporation Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,226,971,695 26.80%
EECESEAR AR RiEEE R
(Note f15+3)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,226,971,695 26.80%
RiEEE
(Note f{:+3)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,226,971,695 26.80%
EmEB A
(Note ff17#3)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS (continued)

(2) Other persons

Directors’ Report

EESRRESE

FERR HMEATZRERKE
(#0)

@2 HMAL

Number of Approximate

shares/ % of the
underlying issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held capital
BER#®B HEBTRAK
BRRERE 514 HERGH A ZEHANBE I
(Note fffz£1) (Note fffz#2)
FIL Limited Investment manager 412,132,000 9.00%
HEKE

Notes: K e -

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. FRARTRDEEERD 2 EZHE A

Company were long positions.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,577,360,572
shares as at 31 March 2015.

3. Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
[TC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”) (which was, in
turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”)),
owned 1,226,971,695 shares in the Company. Accordingly, ITC
Investment and ITC were deemed to be interested in the said
1,226,971,695 shares held by Hollyfield. Galaxyway Investments
Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by Dr Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles (“Dr Chan”), owned approximately 15.96% of the
issued share capital of ITC. Dr Chan also personally held
approximately 20.66% of the issued share capital of ITC. By virtue
of his aggregate interest of approximately 36.62% in ITC, Dr Chan
was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Hollyfield.

4, Ms Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr Chan, was deemed to
be interested in the said 1,226,971,695 shares held by Hollyfield
and 35,936,031 shares held directly by Dr Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

R

2. LAR201543 4310 24,677,360,572/1% 7
RADETRAREE-

3. ITC Investment Holdings Limited ([ITC
Investment]) (Bl XS @ ER QA
([EELEDZ2ENBRR) 22 &K
B ‘A &) Hollyfield Group Limited ([Hollyfield ])
% 51,226,971,6950% A ~ 7 & 19 &
It ITC Investment & 12 #f 1 % 4 1R B R
Hollyfield £ A = _ #lL1,226,971,695 % i 17
FHEAED - ARBERE L (HRIEL)E
# 2 & % B 2 2 7 Galaxyway Investments
Limited Q| EE EHE L EB B ITRALY
15.96% ° I T IMA AR EZ BEF
P EBBHITRAL20.66% > ARG L#E
BREELEAHN36.62%EE ' MERA
M Hollyfield 8 2 2SR MO P HEAER -

4. BRELTZEELBE X T HERE AR
Hollyfield # & L+ it 2 1,226,971,695 % i% 17
RS E %A 235,936,031 % % 9
PR -

Br £ XX Fr# 5 & SN R2015F3A31 8 -
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ESRBESE

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2015, the
Group employed a total of 1,619 (2014: 1,759) full time
employees. Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well
as performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing
support of the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

Under the Group’s existing emolument policy, pay rate of
employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to
the merits, qualification and competence of the employees while
promotion and increments are based on performance of the
respective employees.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of a
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director.

Further, the Company has implemented three share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff both in
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 55 of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set
out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 39 to
68 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at least 25% (that is, the prescribed public float
applicable to the Company under the Listing Rules) of the
issued shares in the Company were held by the public as at the
date of this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, the Group did not have material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.
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ESRBESE

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Changes in directors’ information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out
below:

(1) Mr Chan Shu Kin was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Addchance Holdings Limited
(8344.HK) with effect from 15 June 2015.

(2)  As recommended by the Remuneration Committee at a
meeting held on Thursday, 18 June 2015, the Board
resolved on Friday, 19 June 2015 that with retrospective
effect from 1 April 2015, (a) the director’s fee for each
director and (b) the fee for being a member or the
chairman of any Board committee be increased by 5%. As
such, the director’s fee has been adjusted, from 1 April
2015 onwards, in the manner as follows:

(@ inrespect of the following fee(s) payable to each
independent non-executive director:

()  the annual director’s fee has been increased
from HK$450,450 to HK$472,973;

(i)  the annual additional fee for serving as a
member of any Board committee has been
increased from HK$30,030 to HK$31,532; and

(i) the annual additional fee for serving as the
chairman of any Board committee has been
increased from HK$30,030 to HK$31,532;

(b) inrespect of the following fee(s) payable to each
other director:

()  the annual director’s fee has been increased
from HK$346,500 to HK$363,825; and

(i)  the annual additional fee for serving as a

member of any Board committee has been
increased from HK$23,100 to HK$24,255.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1)

2

Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2015, advances to entities did not
individually exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

Financial assistance and guarantees given to
affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of the
financial assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated
companies (as defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) did not exceed 8% under the assets ratio as
defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31
March 2015, there was no guarantee given by the Group
for facilities granted to its affiliated companies.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$500,000 (2014: HK$1,007,000).

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZEMBRES

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYlI CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to
230, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 June 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

e lER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FER FAET
Turnover o
The Company and its subsidiaries YiN/NIE] S =AU J S R/NE] 6 523,557 998,652
Share of associates and joint ventures i (EH L N a AL D 5,633,874 4,926,481
6,157,431 5,925,133
Group turnover EELERE 6 523,557 998,652
Cost of sales Fi=K=—§ DN (897,284) (835,838)
Gross profit EF 126,273 162,814
Other income Hiplg A 8 23,766 23,157
Administrative expenses THER (166,375) (166,540)
Distribution and selling expenses DEREHEER (100,525) (123,716)
Other gains and losses HElzm R EE 9 23,871 23,743
Other expenses Hib & A 10 (45,619) (61,514)
Finance costs B & AR 11 (66,771) (52,781)
Gain on fair value changes of REMERTFEBEZHZ
investment properties I 25 18 412,660 390,228
Share of results of associates H(EH L N R EE 123,132 122,164
Share of results of joint ventures BB hEES 1,437 744
Profit before taxation % F BT 7 13 331,849 318,299
Taxation 18 14 (203,434) (182,360)
Profit for the year FEm A 128,415 135,939
Profit for the year attributable to: ARATEEFERT
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE PN 86,028 85,586
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 42,387 50,353
128,415 135,939
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share P& 23 F 16
Basic earnings per share A% B AN & A 0.019 0.019
Diluted earnings per share 5L ESE 2 0.019 N/A i@ A
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

GEETHEWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHET FAET
Profit for the year FEEHF 128,415 135,939
Other comprehensive (expense) income H#2H (BIx%) k#
Item that will not be reclassified B IrEEN D ARERRZHEE
to profit or loss
Change in carrying amount of investments T AREZREAAEY
in equity instruments (179,890) 35,029
Items that may be subsequently reclassified AIRABEH DHEEZZ
to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences arising from translation BEBINEBEMEEZ
of foreign operations R (3,411) 1,839
Share of exchange differences of associates BB ENARAEELEL
and joint ventures [E 3 =% (2,015) 585
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEMZ2E (X)W
for the year (185,316) 37,453
Total comprehensive (expense) income FE2E(AX)WFZEEE
for the year (56,901) 173,392
Total comprehensive (expense) income WTFTATEGEFEZ2®E (FX)
for the year attributable to: s 4a g -
Owners of the Company ZN/NESIEZ RN (98,947) 123,095
Non-controlling interests FEEIRE = 42,046 50,297
(56,901) 173,392

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ



Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

e B AR R

At 31 March 2015
MR20153A31H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FER FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B R 17 1,590,300 1,585,828
Investment properties EYE 18 1,340,016 859,327
Project under development HEPIEAE 19 188,146 256,064
Prepaid lease payments B E K E 20 328,434 333,446
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 21 59,932 65,581
Interests in associates Bt N AR 22 1,745,688 1,688,875
Interests in joint ventures ARDERER 23 89,058 87,730
Investments in equity instruments EETAERKE 24 588,210 702,754
Other non-current assets HiIEREEE 25 93,096 93,025
6,022,880 5,672,630
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepaid lease payments AN EKIA 20 5,255 3,053
Stock of properties MEFE 26 1,791,947 1,723,474
Inventories of finished goods AnEFE 39,685 28,152
Loans receivable EUWE = 27 74,000 76,000
Dividend receivable from an associate FEUR — R EEE N FIRR B 47,280 —
Amounts due from associates FE UL B & N T 3R 28 37,494 38,470
Amount due from a non-controlling interest  f& U 3F 4% A% #£ 25 ;I8 29 - 1,250
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B 5 K& H i fE UL ,EE Fd
prepayments HESS&ENE/ ! 30 267,129 242,299
Investments in equity instruments held HEEERERDZT E& =
for trading 31 101,510 84,984
Pledged bank deposits BIRHEITER 32 408,448 473,683
Short term bank deposits MHERITHE R 32 213,389 312,639
Bank balances and cash RITEFLRS 32 422,906 440,548
3,409,043 3,424,552
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

At 31 March 2015
7201553 HA31H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &% FHER FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other creditors and B 5 REMEMERR
accrued expenses FEFTF 2 33 393,299 397,200
Amounts due to associates AN NG E 34 140,016 140,918
Amount due to a joint venture B —MAaERERE 35 130 131
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & 3E 1= IR HE 25 X IA 36 2,497 9,225
Taxation payable e B 4,475 2,381
Bank and other borrowings — due within ~ — & R Z| 8~ 877 &
one year Hibh g 37 1,534,562 1,494,149
2,074,979 2,044,004
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,334,064 1,380,548
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEARDEE
LIABILITIES 7,356,944 7,053,178
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBARE
Bank and other borrowings — due after —FRINAZRITR
one year HAb g3 37 747,488 675,619
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FERHIEIE IR RE S R 1B 36 9,988 12,500
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEEE 38 937,191 747,449
Deferred income IR FE U A 39 56,042 53,459
Other payables H b 8 A< BE 3K 33 53,662 57,541
1,804,371 1,546,568
5,652,573 5,506,610
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE B AR 3R
At 31 March 2015
MR20153A31H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=2 FHET FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE

Share capital % A 40 457,736 457,736
Reserves B 4,386,298 4,464,938

Equity attributable to owners KARHBAZEEERZ
of the Company 4,844,034 4,922,674
Non-controlling interests JEFERR RS 50(b) 708,539 583,936
TOTAL EQUITY R 5,652,573 5,506,610

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 230 were &N F92E 2308 v g & M MK D R 201556
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson  FA19OBEE =R E R KETZE Y h T E

19 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: ERRESREE:
Tom Lau 25 Alan Chan 2B

Chairman and Managing Director 3= 3##4%
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
EEZEE X

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ERARAEBAZEMLES
Investment Non-
Share Share Capital revaluation Other Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve  profits Sub-total interests  equity
REEM
BAE ROEE EXGHE e HtRE ERREHE REEA Nt FERRER EZAE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FERT TET TEX FTELT TER FTEL TFTHET  TER FTET THn
At 1 April 2013 M2013F481H 457,736 494,694 (95,368) 25,829 76,787 419,243 3,462,254 4,841,175 531,174 5,372,349
Exchange differences arising BEGNEBT
from translation of foreign EECERZE
operations - - - - - 1,895 - 1,895 (56) 1,839
Share of exchange differences of BEBERAR
associates and joint ventures AEEY
EXER - - - - - 585 - 585 - 585
Change in carrying amount of BETAEREZ
investments in equity instruments REEZE - - - 35,029 - - - 35029 — 35029
Profit for the year FEE - - - - - — 85586 85586 50,353 135,939
Total comprehensive income for FEZENREE
the year - — - 35,029 — 2,480 85,586 123,095 50,297 173,392
Distribution (Note 15) 2k (Ht5E15) - - - - - —  (45774) (45,774 —  (45,774)
Share of other reserves of BEBERAR
associates and joint ventures AEPEZ
Hih G - - - - 4,178 - - 4,178 - 4,178
Transfer of reserves of subsidiaries & & [ B 2 7 2 & - - - - 1,543 — (1,543) - - -
Dividend distributed to MIERRER DKL
non-controlling interests e - - - - - — - — (63) (63)
Contribution from FERERLE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 2,528 2,528
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3A31H 457,736 494,694  (95,368) 60,858 82,508 421,723 3,600,523 4,922,674 583,936 5,506,610
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEBEAZEERES
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other pay t Tl lati Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
Y3
REEMR XHRE
BA RGEE BEHEHE i HitRE wE  ERARHE REEA Nt FERERE BEAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 — HKS000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEL  TER  TERL TEL  TER  TERL TETL  FTER  TAxR  TET  TAR

At 1 April 2014 201454108 457,736 494,694  (95,368) 60,858 82,508 - 421,723 3,500,623 4,922,674 583,936 5,506,610

Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 201454418
(2009) at 1 April 2014 (Note 2) RNEBHERS
%8895 (2009%)

F&(Hz2) - - - 65,347 - - - - 65,347 - 65347
At 1 April 2014 — restated R201454A1H
—B&5| 457,736 404694  (95368) 126205 82,508 — 421,723 3500523 4988021 583936 5571,957
Exchange differences arising from (R &GN E B
translation of foreign operations FE‘ZE}E%%’E - - - - - - (3,070) - (8,070) (841) (3,411)
Share of exchange differences of BB L AR R A%
associates and joint ventures ¢¥ZEE§§E - - - - - - (2,015) - (2,015) — (2,015)
Change in carrying amount of BRTAKEZ
investments in equity REESZ
instruments - - - (179,890) - - - - (179,890) - (179,890)
Profit for the year ERHEF - - - - - - - 86,028 86,028 42,387 128,415
Total comprehensive (expense) £ E2E (F%)
income for the year Ui - - - (179,890) - - (5.085) 86028  (98947) 42,046  (56,901)
Distribution (Note 15) P (Hi7E15) - - - - - - - (45774)  (45774) - (45774
Share of other reserves of BEBERAZ
associates Hif# e - - - - 3,149 - - - 3,149 - 3,149
Recognition of equity-settled ﬁ§ DR E L
share-based payment expense B3 X2 (4 BRI % - - - - - 2,068 - - 2,068 - 2,068
Transfer of reserves of subsidiaries % # if & 1\ 7] 2 G4 & - - - - (3,034) - - (1,449) (4,483) 4,483 -
Dividend distributed to MIEERBRDIRLZ
non-controling interests it & - - - — - - — - - (1,794) (1,794)
Contribution from non-controlling ~ JF¥% ik 135 £ &
interests - - - - - - - - 79,868 79,868
At 31 March 2015 201543431 A 457736 494604  (95368)  (53685) 82623 2068 416638 3,539,328 4844034 708539 5552573
The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair BN E AN E BTN B A ) 2 SN E 2%
value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and By HBEERAB Y A FEHESEER {g R
liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests in vEmE-ABeEEN L EN % NE RS
subsidiaries acquired by the Group. The amount would be HBAEAE UREEAE)STERB SN P
charged to retained profits upon disposal of interests in the
subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is earlier. 1B E G R g VESHABIETELEATE
BEFATEANRNERTIARECREBEE
The investment revaluation reserve represents the changes in I
carrying amount of investments in equity instruments designated
as fair value through other comprehensive income since its HiE I EHERETEARAMBE(HEH])
initial recognition. VERR B R B 2 BT B A R 2 R E R R
HETHOIBEECHE REBELRBERFRE
Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the KA B B o

appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as pursuant to the PRC regulations and share of other
reserves of associates and joint ventures.

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Profit before taxation B 5 Bl & A 331,849 318,299
Adjustments for: FTYIEBETHE
Finance costs B & Bk AR 66,771 52,781
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BREIHBZER 914 1,382
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments HEEMNBEEREZ K (1,394) -
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE—HMegrEZEHIE - 8,014
Share of results of associates BIGmE AR EE (123,132) (122,164)
Share of results of joint ventures BEeEEER (1,437) (744)
Release of prepaid lease payments FEEMAAERE 3,253 3,359
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b 8 E 1,989 10,348
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M R RREINE 68,502 77,743
Share-based payment expense LARR 7 Z PR E 2 B 2 2,068 —
Gain on changes in fair value of investments in RBEEERRTAREZ
equity instruments held for trading ANEEBEEH W (24,065) (11,320)
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties WEWENTEEZSE 2 WS (412,660) (390,228)
Interest income B A (19,687) (20,312)
Dividend income from investments in equity BEEEEFZIAREY
instruments held for trading f% B A (4,950) (2,144)
Impairment loss reversed on receivables W EIEZ REBIERERD (12) (16,210)
Operating cash flows before movements in working AT B EESEYN2ELEES
capital ReRE (111,991) (91,196)
(Increase) decrease in stock of properties WEFE GG R (55,813) 416,270
Decrease in loans receivable FE U B TR 2,000 12,000
(Increase) decrease in inventories of finished goods BmEE (g m) R (11,568) 35,357
(Increase) decrease in trade and other debtors, BHREMBUIRR  FTe Rk
deposits and prepayments TE A 3R IE (48 hn) # 4> (51,782) 121,981
Increase in amounts due from associates JRE i Bt 5 N ] FRIE L N (24) (470)
Decrease in amount due from a non-controlling interest & iz 3F 12° & 42 25 3 38 8 > 1,250 —
Decrease in investments in equity instruments BIEEERRTARERD
held for trading 7,533 10,015
Decrease in deposits received for pre-sale of properties  #t B & ¥ 2 ~ 2 ik 4 B - (25,974)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other creditors B REMEMNERERREFFX
and accrued expenses 100 Gl 4>) 68,156 (409,901)
Decrease in amounts due to associates FE T & R B SRIE R A - (7,815)
Increase in amount due to a joint venture S — A & EFRIEE - 38
Cash (used in) generated from operations (AR REReaxKzRe (152,239) 60,305
Overseas tax paid E AT B INEL IR (10,665) (49,109
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTVITIES (BAR)RHEEREK 2 REZE (162,904) 11,196
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

VAN L= E=
I%T\ ==} EE ﬁ PIE==8 %‘:Z
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Release of pledged bank deposits FABEDIMWETER 473,683 646,520
Dividend received from associates 2 AR E 20,282 19,102
Interest received 2 F B 19,522 37,592
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments HEBENEEREMGRIE 8,282 4,714
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant BB - B R R B AT ?% |
and equipment 7,474 5,926
Dividend received from investments in equity PUFIFEERRTAERA Y
instruments held for trading iz & 4,950 2,144
Government grants received B U5 K T 7 Bh 2,650 2,535
Repayment from an associate GRAlNEIR 1,000 6,000
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEMSRIE 179 3,036
Additions to pledged bank deposits B2 ERITFFIE M (408,448) (473,683)
Payment for property, plant and equipment MEE RN ERE TR (44,861) (166,760)
Payment for project under development TRHPIEE 2NN (34,996) (52,842)
Additions to investment properties & ) FE I N (25,250) (82,171)
Additions to prepaid lease payments TE & R IA L N (6,819) (253)
Prepayment for acquisition of properties Uk B W ZE TR R (187) (4,594)
Refund of deposits paid for potential projects REBTHBEZENES - 50,000
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HE—HeEbEMERIE - 5,106
Proceeds from disposal of investments in HEES T AKREMBIE
equity instruments - 81
Advance to an associate ﬁ Hﬁ? EWNIEE - (44,000)
Contribution to joint ventures EETELA - (14,540)
Payment for transaction costs on deemed %E 1’E HEMBRABIZZGHAZ
disposal of subsidiaries 3% - (4,000)
Additions to other intangible assets HivfmE & EE N - (1,130)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES REARBREXBZEHESFE 17,461 61,217)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31HILFE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank and other borrowings raised FIRRIT R EAMER 4,021,426 2,294,602
Contribution from non-controlling interests FERERLE 79,868 2,528
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BEERITREMER (3,907,500) (2,611,798)
Interest paid EEREAIES (108,190) (104,260)
Dividends paid B E (45,774) (45,774)
Repayment of amounts due to non-controlling BEEMIEEREREFTE
interests (9,225) (13,127)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BN EARFFERER ZKRE
of subsidiaries (1,794) (63)
Advance from an associate FR B 2 A A B K - 38,023
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING RE (AR BEEZH RS TE
ACTIVITIES 28,811 (439,869)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRERSEZEEBRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (116,632) (489,890)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE SIEERNE T
CHANGES (260) 7,471
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT RERERESEEERRA
FORWARD 753,187 1,235,606
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED REeRERESEEBERLEE
FORWARD 636,295 753,187
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRERSEZEFEBAEABRINT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short term bank deposits HHRTHER 213,389 312,639
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFRERS 422,906 440,548
636,295 753,187
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

1. GENERAL 1.

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in Note 50. 2.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures
HKAS 36 for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments

During the year, the Group has early adopted an earlier
version of HKFRS 9 (i.e. adoption of the HKFRS 9 version
issued in 2009), which is in advance of the effective date
of HKFRS 9 issued in 2014 that is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. This earlier
version of HKFRS 9 covers only the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The Group has chosen 1
April 2014 as its date of initial application (i.e. the date on
which the Group has reassessed the classification of its
financial assets in accordance with requirements of
HKFRS 9 (2009)). The assessment of classification is
based on the facts and circumstances as at 1 April 2014.
In accordance with transition provisions set out in the
amendment to HKFRS 9 “Mandatory Effective Date and
Transition Disclosures” issued in 2011, the Group has not
restated comparative information and has provided
additional disclosures on the transition in these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015, and any difference on the measurement of
the Group’s financial assets as at 1 April 2014 arising from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2009) is recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve at 1 April 2014 based on
the facts and circumstances of the business model in
which the assets were held at that date. HKFRS 9 (2009)
does not apply to financial assets that have already been
de-recognised at the date of initial application.

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

ERFHFITIRLEREBUERE
ZRA((HBMBEREED] @)

& B B 7 3R & 2E B £ 95 (2009 )
SETH

FRN AEECDRERNESUHRE%E
Al v MEM A (BNR M & A 15 W
2 A€ BI| 25 957 1A 2009 FF M8 4 Z iR AR ) + 8RR
2014F MM 2 BEEUBRMEEAFEIRRN
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2009) contains new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. As a
result, the Group has classified its financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on its business model for managing
those financial assets and the assets’ contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets which are debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All equity instruments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. As permitted by HKFRS 9 (2009), the
Group had made an irrevocable election, on instrument-
by-instrument basis, to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of all equity instruments held by the Group
as at 1 April 2014 except those that are held for trading
purposes, in other comprehensive income (“OCI”), with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
The Group has classified all the equity instruments with
intention for trading to be measured under HKFRS 9 (2009)
at fair value through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERHFITRKRERETEBUBRE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ZA([HAMBHREED]D @
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

& B B 7 3 & X B £ 945 (2009 £F )

HKFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments (Continued) LAl T A (1)

The following summarises the classification and TR 2014F 4 1B (AREEE IR E
measurement changes for the Group’s financial assets on BEEEERESERL E0% (20094 ) 7 H
1 April 2014, the Group’s date of initial application of ) AREEsRMEEZDERTEETE -

HKFRS 9 (2009).

Original measurement New measurement
category and carrying amount category and carrying amount
as previously stated under HKFRS 9 (2009)
BRERBHBREENEIR
MEF AR RAGEERRREE (2009%) 2 ¥t B BB K RE &
Remeasure-
Fair value ments upon Fair value
through application  through Fair value
profit Available- Loansand of HKFRS 9 profit or through Amortised
or loss for-sale receivables (2009) loss ocCl cost
ERERHE
WE%ER BAY
BRF E9% BAF EBESA
EE® ERREWR (2009%F)% EEFA Hit
BRE wHHE RE EXFE BHRE 2EKE #BHEAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET FTET FTET FTET
Equity instruments BETAE
— Held for trading —REEER 84,984 - - - 84,984 - -
— Not held for trading ~ — 3 3E 45
5 - 702,754 - 65,347 - 768,101 -
Loans and receivables & 3% % [iE Uz
A - - 323,452 - - - 323,452
Pledged bank deposits & # # $7 17
7% - — 473,683 — - - 473,683
Cash and cash RekERe
equivalents £(EEA — — 753,187 — — - 753,187
84,984 702,754 1,550,322 65,347 84,984 768,101 1,550,322
Further details of the financial assets impacted by the XERWHMEATE L CREEZE— P
adoption of the new standard are set out in Notes 24, 31 BERAKIFE24 31 242 0
and 42.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Except as described above, the application of other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported and/or disclosures

set out in these consolidat
Group.

ed financial statements of the

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have
effective:

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 201

been issued but are not yet

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions*
Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle*
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®
Financial Instruments’
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®

5 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

with earlier application permitted

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
is early adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on 1 April 2014. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014), other than those
relating to classification and measurement of financial
assets covered in HKFRS 9 (2009) which has been early
adopted by the Group, are described below:

In addition to the requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009),
debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount of outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

2015 Annual Report

ERFITIRLEREBUERE
ZRA((EHBMHEREED] @)

EBUEIREERFIFE (2014 4F)
(€@ T A]|#)

BRI B HRELDEIR(20145F) 2 X2
REBAEECRFRABTETBRE
EAEHE(2000F) S REREEZD IR
REF82REINFLT

. b &8 B 7% R 5 22 Al 2 955 (2009 4F)
ZHEN REERXBEAEMENA
KBAHBEESRERHESRHEE
ZEBIA URSBEEANER
SRETEHEACHRSRERA
SNEAeRAEERAG 2B ZE
BIAE EAFEEZAEZME2EEK

=1
WmETE °

|/

s BMAEREEARAFEEFAR
RZeRABEMNS  BEVHRE?
AIF95 (2014 5F) ERXAL WM AEE
ERBRAEMEHHEATFEESE
ZHREIREMEEKEL2 BRIE
REMEZERDERZAEREER
b B FEGELARBEBAREBREZ
SRR AlERm - HERAERE
ERBREYMEREAFEEZE
PHETSGENSEEEAR - RE
ERGFEAER  BEREA
FEESABEaRkzEREBEZR
MAFEEEIXEHINERPE
5] o

<

i3

+

%

. REMEEZREMS  BEES
EBFIRBENIROCELEREEREIE
BAFTEER BV BEREERSE
95k (2014 ) M T IR TBHIE EEER
XetE - FEHEEEEEXN R TESE
REREEBRBEREEBBRZ
SR EEBBZEHAR R
EERKRBVBERNARZZE) -
EmM2 BEABGEEGEESHIE
RIEEEEBRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014)
in the future (excluding the scope of HKFRS 9 (2009) that
has been adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on 1 April 2014) may have impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until a detailed review has been
completed.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new or revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FE&F BE #)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o g BkEms A FEBETER
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based BAFTEEFE2H ABBUBETIEE R
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BAHBHEQT F BfEvEBET
measurements are observable and the significance of the DHEEFE R ZRIE=F - FHaw
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which T

are described as follows:
. E-RHP A ABBEEERENTERY
o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in AARGENEREERBRBEREGR
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that MiE 2 B (REFHE)
the entity can access at the measurement date;
J FE_ABARBEREEXEBER
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices ESEE A B R i A B (F—
included within Level 1, that are observable for the HABEDRERIN &
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
e FEERBABBREAEXEENT
o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset A] B 5 o A BUiE o
or liability.
FESHEEREAINOT o
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

mERE
Basis of consolidation BARBER AR ARAD A2
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the CEBREMNBARIZHBERE =2
financial statements of the Company and entities AN :
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company: . AW ETITHEREN
e has power over the investee; . B2EEKRER %7}’5‘ B 15 7] & 3 ¥
e R
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and . B hEREHEBEHSZE O -

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ji) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 (2009), when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction in
progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, and land under development for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

An investment property carried at fair value is transferred
to properties for sales when there is a change in use
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale of the relevant properties. The fair value of the
property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost of the
property for its subsequent accounting in accordance with
HKAS 2 “Inventories”.

Land under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised and
classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process after the intended
purpose of the land development can be determined and
transferred from project under development. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the land under development and its carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties under development for sale or
property, plant and equipment or investment properties,
as appropriate, when the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined upon commencement of
land leveling process.

Stock of properties

Stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average cost method.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the end of the reporting period,
or, if not yet sold after the end of the reporting period, by
management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Stock of properties is transferred at fair value to

investment properties upon the commencement of a lease
as evidence for a change in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or
a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate
or a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion
thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9 (2009). The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates

On acquisition of additional interest in an existing associate
whereby the Group continues to have significant influence
but not gaining control, the cost of acquiring the additional
interest is added to the carrying value of the associate.
Goodwill or gain arising on the purchase of the additional
interest is calculated as the difference between the cost of
the additional interest acquired and the share of the net
fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate attributable to the additional interest acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequently accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) and
compressed natural gas (“CNG”) for sales, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FTE&F X &)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that

form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)

through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments.

Financial assets — accounting policy applicable
from 1 April 2014

On initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial

assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost

or fair value, depending on its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method and net of any
impairment loss, if:

o the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise,

on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets — accounting policy applicable
from 1 April 2014 (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those classified as financial
assets measured at amortised cost are classified as
measured at fair value, with all changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, except as stated below.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group may elect at initial recognition, on an
instrument by instrument basis, to present gains and
losses in OCI. For such investments measured at FVTOCI,
gains and losses are never reclassified to profit or loss,
and no impairment is recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends earned from such investments are recognised
in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a
repayment of part of the cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Group’s policy on impairment of financial assets
measured at amortised cost is the same as that described
below for loans and receivables under the accounting
policy applicable before 1 April 2014.

Financial assets — policy applicable before 1 April
2014

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets — policy applicable before 1 April
2014 (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° on initial recognitions, it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

LLoans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, loans receivable, trade and other
debtors and deposits and amount(s) due from a non-
controlling interest/associates) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or are not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL or loans and receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets — policy applicable before 1 April
2014 (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale investments and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale investments relating to dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets — policy applicable before 1 April
2014 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets — policy applicable before 1 April
2014 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, loans receivable and amount(s)
due from associates/a non-controlling interest, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to
be impaired, cumulative losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
carried at fair value will not be reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amount(s) due to associates/a joint venture/non-controlling
interests, other payables and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event
that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and
delivery of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included
in the current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services is
recognised when the respective services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense or capitalised in contracts in
progress, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve. When the share options
are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the goods or services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties

As described in Note 3, for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences
in respect of investment properties are assessed
based on the best estimate of the tax consequence
upon sale of the properties directly or sale through
entities holding these properties or consume
substantially over time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(@) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land and
buildings, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
reputted.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the
developed land and land under development are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or
sale through entities holding these properties. For
those properties which would be subject to PRC
Land Appreciation Tax (“‘LAT”) upon disposal,
deferred tax on the temporary difference between
the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income
tax.

The relevant amount of potential PRC LAT had been
recognised as a deferred tax liability based on the
above judgment. The amount of PRC LAT of
developed land and land under development as at
31 March 2015 is approximately HK$276,569,000
(2014: HK$143,569,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Project under development

Development costs of project under development
include, where appropriate, relevant development
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon
commencement of land leveling process, the
intended purpose of the land development can be
determined and relevant project development costs
will be transferred at the carrying value to (1)
properties under development for sale if the
properties are for sales purpose during the ordinary
course of business; (2) property, plant and
equipment if the properties are for own use; or (3)
investment properties if the properties are held for
rentals and/or capital appreciation.

Judgments on the cost and completion date
of construction-in-progress

The construction of port facilities involves various
points in time and different parts of the construction
projects to complete and reach to its intended use.
The Group transfers the construction-in-progress to
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment
upon the completion of respective parts of the port
facilities and obtains approval from the authorities for
the rights to operate. Management considers the
approval by authorities for the rights to operate is an
activity necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for
its intended use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND 4,
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(@)
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PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover the
carrying amount of its assets.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is

different from the amounts that were initially

recorded, such differences will impact the income

tax expense and deferred tax provisions in the period

in which such determination is made. As at 31

March 2015, the carrying amount of LAT provision (b)
(included in deferred tax liabilities) was approximately
HK$540,927,000 (2014: HK$423,062,000).

Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses of HK$797 million (2014:
HK$745 million) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to
unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits
generated by those subsidiaries are more than
expected, a material deferred tax credit would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which the tax losses are utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management of the
Company works closely with valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs which are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Notes 18, 24 and 42(c) provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which comprises the borrowings disclosed in Notes 34,
36 and 37, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

4.

5.

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE
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RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

6. TURNOVER 6. EXEH
Turnover is analysed as follows: EEBEIONET
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Sale of properties HE W% 7,837 513,546
Sale of LPG and CNG products SHE R A MR LB XARE® 264,948 264,192
Income from port related services 78 H 18 B AR 7 A 223,240 195,467
Property rental and related income WEMRS MEBWA 11,943 10,722
Interest income from loans receivable W E 2 R B UL A 10,639 12,581
Dividend income from investments in BEEERERTAEREZBRAWA
equity instruments held for trading 4,950 2,144
523,557 998,652
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. oHER
The operating segments of the Group is determined AEBZEEDH  DUAMAEERETES
based on information reported to the Group’s chief BRARE(RRAIBH) 2EMAFEETER
operating decision maker (the Managing Director of the DEEEXRRFHZERRELE-

Company) for the purposes of resources allocation and

performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising similar
business units into an operating segment. The Group’s
operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Paul Y. Engineering — Building construction, civil
Group engineering, development
management, project
management, facilities
and asset management
services and investment in

properties

Ports development — Development of ports
facilities and ports related
properties

Ports and logistics — Operation of ports, LPG and

CNG products and
logistics businesses

Property — Development, investment,
sale and leasing of real
estate properties,
developed land and land
under development

Treasury — Provision of credit services
and securities trading

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings before interest expense and tax (“EBIT”)
and earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”).

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE
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e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEER @)
Segment revenues and results T Ef K am R A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NTAEEEDBINTIAER 2 W=k
results by operating segment: B2

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2015F3A3IALFE

Paul Y. Ports Segment

Engineering Ports and total and

Group development logistics Property Treasury consolidated

RERE B0 A EE

-4 BORR )58/ b kiRE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TER THER THER TER

TURNOVER SE 2 - — 488,188 523,557
EBITDA EBITDA 40,248 - 102,814 578,844
Depreciation and amortisation* 47 € % # #5* - - (62,261) (70,491)
Segment result — EBIT DEELE —EBIT 40,248 - 40,553 508,353
Corporate and other expenses*™ 1 % & E th B 7 ** (109,733)
Finance costs RIS (66,771)
Profit before taxation [ %5 B & A 331,849
Taxation B1E (203,434)
Profit for the year FEERA 128,415

» PYI Corporation Limited
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e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEMER
Segment revenues and results (Continued) T EBUg A R EE ()
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE2014F3A3IALFE
Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group  development logistics Property ~ Treasury  consolidated
REREE fle A
BOER &b M &7 Kz &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET TER FET
TURNOVER EEE — - 459,659 524,268 14,725 998,652
EBITDA EBITDA 38,221 — 95,868 375,857 56,152 566,098
Depreciation and amortisation* 47 & K % $4* — - (81,036) (7,052) @) (88,091)
Segment result — EBIT DECELE — EBIT 38,221 — 14,832 368,805 56,149 478,007
Corporate and other expenses™ 1> % % H fih B 5 (106,927)
Finance costs E=J N (52,781)
Profit before taxation 75 A1 v 318,299
Taxation fR18 (182,360)
Profit for the year F 5 7 135,939
* Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and * BIEME WM RETE R EME
amortisation of other intangible assets. FoE Sy o
- Including acquisition-related costs for potential projects of

T BEEKBEEBEEMRBEZRAN
30,278,000/ 7T (2014 : 34,660,000/%
L) °

approximately HK$30,278,000 (2014: HK$34,660,000).
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e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

At 31 March 2015

7o E # m)

TEHEERERE

ATRAEEEERBBEREED HE D
ZOH

M2015%3A31H

Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering and total and
Group logistics Property Treasury consolidated
RERE B0 A EE
-4 BORRE )58/ b L/ E#% kiRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
TER THER THER FTER THER TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 531,499 484,270 3,720,149 3,807,544 875,892 9,419,354
Unallocated assets ROBEE 12,569
Consolidated total assets BABEE 9,431,923
LIABILITIES =i
Segment liabilities HHBaE - - 1,655,692 1,380,099 819,702 3,855,493
Unallocated liabilities AN EE 23,857
Consolidated total liabilities RAEAE
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e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) T EEEREE (&)
At 31 March 2014 R2014%F3A31H
Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group  development logistics Property ~ Treasury  consolidated
RERER #0 HHAH
BOERE &b LIS E 7% Rkiza
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHT TET TER FHET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 685,731 401,378 3,770,582 3,238,614 990,051 9,086,356
Unallocated assets KOMEE 10,826
Consolidated total assets ABEE 9,097,182
LIABILITIES &8&
Segment liabilities SEEE - — 1,576,060 1,175,155 817,364 3,568,579
Unallocated liabilities RAHBLAE 21,993
Consolidated total liabilities REBaR 3,590,572
Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and PHWEERBBEEEREIRER 2KE
liabilities of the operating subsidiaries, as well as interests MERARAIZEEREBE ARBERQR
in associates, joint ventures and investments in equity SETERERTARE 2 Em - Bt
instruments that are engaged in different businesses. DBEETRREIZARTEERBRE SR
Accordingly, segment assets exclude corporate assets HthEWER X EE Mo AEER
which are mainly bank balances and cash and other TEEFEREMENRERCEEEE -

receivables, and segment liabilities exclude corporate
liabilities which are mainly other payables.
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e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @)
Other information Hith &
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other TEARKL DB R AEBEMER
information by operating segment: DT
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2015F3A3IALFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development logistics Property Treasury Consolidated
REEZE B0
£ BOBER RUR L/ES E#% &®&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER THExT THE=x TR THER
Amounts included in the STAGEDMEES

measure of segment results S HEEZHE
or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets EEIERDEE (27

other than financial instruments TARBLERA/
and interests in associates/joint BECEESRIN
ventures - - 62,245 37,497 - 99,742
Unallocated addition ROEILHE 345
100,087
Release of prepaid lease payments & 78 (4 & 38 - - 3,253 - - 3,253
Impairment loss reversed on BUFBEZREBE
receivables & - - (12) - - (12)
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEWE - R EE
property, plant and equipment pa E-1C¢) - - 944 (30) - 914
Gain on disposal of prepaid HEBMNEEZE
lease payments pal & - - 1,394 - - 1,394
Bank and other interest income FATREAMF S WA - - 2,759 1,578 15,340 19,677
Unallocated interest income ROEFBHA 10
19,687
Interests in associates [R/NE 428,535 - 1,317,153 - - 1,745,688
Interests in joint ventures ERCEER - - - 89,058 - 89,058
Share of results of associates %ﬁ BENAEE 40,248 - 82,884 - - 123,132
Share of results of joint ventures AEDEER - - - 1,437 - 1,437
Gain on fair value changes of equity h {’E EERRIAY
instruments held for trading NEBEEH W - - - - 24,065 24,065
Amounts regularly provided to FHEEELLREE
the chief operating decision 2B kit A&
maker but not included in IBEBEZRE
the measure of segment
results:
Finance costs MERAK - - 37,461 15,106 14,204 66,771
Taxation charge BRIES H - - 7,163 195,452 819 203,434
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e B ERRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEMER
Other information (Continued) H&E# (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE2014F3A3IALFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development  logistics Property Treasury Consolidated
REZX %0
£H BORR kYR e [E % Re
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHExT FAHET FHET FTAER FHET

Amounts included in the A EHIEE

measure of segment RABEEZ
results or segment g
assets:
Additions to non-current HREIERBHEE
assets other than financial (4RI AR
instruments and interests in RE/BEbE
associates/joint ventures BRI — — 145,573 239,590 - 385,163
Release of prepaid lease ARBNBEERE
payments — - 3,359 — — 3,359
Impairment loss reversed FEWRRIB 2 BB BB
on receivables el - - (910) —  (15,300) (16,210)
Loss on disposal of a joint HE—HAeELE
venture o) 3% = - - - 8014 - 8,014
Loss on disposal of property, — HE&E ¥ - i &
plant and equipment BB BE - - 1,222 160 - 1,382
Bank and other interest income  #817 & E 4 F &,
A - — 3,149 1,202 15,946 20,297
Unallocated interest income Ko BEFLE M A 15
20,312
Interests in associates S# BARER 385,332 — 1,303,543 - - 1,688,875
Interests in joint ventures EhEER — - — 87,730 - 87,730
Share of results of associates (L B & N &) ¥ 48 38,221 - 83,943 - — 122,164
Share of results of joint ventures # {l & & 1> % 2 42 - - - 744 - 744
Gain on fair value changes of ~ #{EE E =t
equity instruments held for ZRFEEE
trading z Wz — — — — 11,320 11,320

Amounts regularly provided 7 £ [0 & & & &
to the chief operating REEREMHME
decision maker but not K AFEDH
included in the measure HXEBECNHE:
of segment results:

Finance costs B E B AR -
Taxation (credit) charge FE(Ke) Xt -

31,261 7,861 13,659 52,781
(15,002) 197,645 (283) 182,360
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC other than Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

7o E # m)

B & H
AEBAEEIERREBERTE(TA
EEB)

TRAXAEELZXBEZHBETHE N (R
BEFPHOMELE  THER/ RS KR
) Z DA

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR FAET

Hong Kong ) 11,085 9,588
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TREEB) 508,292 984,231
Others =) 4,180 4,833
523,557 998,652

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current assets excluding financial instruments,
analysed by the geographical location of assets:

NTRIERBDEERTEREEZAEL
BEN (TEEEZRTR) ZOH:

Non-current
assets excluding
financial instruments

kRBEE
(TEEs®mIA)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Hong Kong &% 435,051 389,771
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TEEES) 4,999,619 4,580,105

5,434,670 4,969,876
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2014, there was one
customer from the property segment who individually
contributed more than 10% of total turnover of the Group,

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

o EHE R @
FTEEFZEH
REBE2014F3B831BIEFE MWEHF

A—R2EFENEASEZBEXBEB
10% 4 & 49 73480,000,0007% 7T (2015 :

having revenue of approximately HK$480 million (2015: ) o

Nil).

OTHER INCOME 8. Hft A
Other income includes: HgABIE :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Bank and other interest income RITREMF B WA 19,687 20,312
Rental income from short term leasing HHEEMEFTECHS KA
of stock of properties 2,783 1,291
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HtthzmRER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Gain on changes in fair value of HEBEE am LEREY
investments in equity instruments DNEBEEZBH KR
held for trading 24,065 11,320
Impairment loss reversed on other H g s 508 2 R E S B R D
receivables 12 16,210
Net exchange (loss) gain FE 5 (B518) W2k 3 58 (686) 5,609
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE-—HALtErER - (8,014)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE WHLEREZER
equipment (914) (1,382)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HEBEMEERE W
payments 1,394 -
23,871 23,743

D rezmaran 055% ﬂ



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Htt & A
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Acquisition-related costs for potential EETEE 2 WS K A
projects 30,278 34,660
Net development expenses for resort FREERNEBERE ZEZEESH F58
project in the PRC 15,341 26,854
45,619 61,514
11. FINANCE COSTS . BERF
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Borrowing costs on: BERA
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within - ZBR EF A2 HEE ZBITER
five years 98,652 85,156
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable BEARAFRNEZHEE ZRITER
within five years - 4,645
Amounts due to non-controlling interests BN AE N2 HEE Z BN
wholly repayable within five years JEFERRAE R 2 T8 144 -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests HER A E N2 HEE Z BN
not wholly repayable within five years JEmR R B - 171
Imputed interest expense on other B EARBZHEEN SR
payables 1,569 1,860
Amounts due to associates wholly HARAFTFANEHEECENEE
repayable within five years NCIEE] 6,784 7,046
Other borrowings wholly repayable within  ZBRA R FE R 2 & E 2 E M E R
five years 1,921 2,959
109,070 101,837
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIEBERME - B KRR E
construction in progress (included Nz ERIRERZ HE
in property, plant and equipment) (34,101) (84,769)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEZRRPBEER ZEE
project under development - (4,601)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERERMEFEZHEE
properties under development for ERWMEERZE5E
sale (included in stock of
properties) (8,198) (9,686)
66,771 52,781
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS (Continued) 1. BE KR @)
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BEBEARA7EERAETENEESEREY
costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds ZIEEREN MFEANEBAEELNSEERE
were specifically invested in the project and properties RIEBR LYo
during the year.

12. EE - BETBRAEBREENSE
12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (@ EFRREITEAENE
(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments R RENASQRM4: LR)ER
BEAZBEIT
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2014: seven) directors are as follows: FRABEANESFTHETCAN
(2014 « f&) °
None of the directors has waived any emoluments
during the year (2014: Nil).
Salaries Retirement
and benefit Share-
other Discretionary scheme based
Name of directors EEEE Fees benefits bonus contribution payment Total
MR RKBEHN ARG

e HuE BB MY XAXE CEl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TET THE=R TERT THET TFTHER FTHERT
2015
Lau Tom Ko Yuen™* 2|5 g7 416 4,864 3,103 486 700 9,569
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan bR B B: 426 1,200 100 18 - 1,744
Chan Shu Kin BRI B2 751 - - - 75 826
Li Chang An TER 450 - - - - 450
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HER 511 - - - 75 586
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond* B 326 - - - 75 401
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles*™ PR B 58 80 - - - - 80
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph** 3 £ &4 259 - - - - 259

3,219 6,064 3,203 504 925 13,915
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RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

12. EX BRETHRAEREENE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (48)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (8 EFREETHEAEMZ @)
(Continued)
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
other  Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EELE Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total
B & RIKEF
we  Hih@EF BB TEAL FTEIfER =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
2014
Lau Tom Ko Yuen** 2|5 R 396 4,632 3,070 463 8,561
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan FeR #22 P 506 1,200 100 15 1,821
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles [ B 58 176 — — _ 176
Chan Shu Kin ReR A B2 715 — — — 715
Leung Po Wing, Bowen B E L
Joseph 572 — — — 572
Li Chang An TEX 429 — — — 429
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HER 486 — — — 486
3,280 5,832 3,170 478 12,760

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company (which is
equivalent to chief executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@)

(®)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

*

ke

Remark:

Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2015.
Retired during the year ended 31 March 2015.

A discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 March
2015 amounting to HK$4,686,000 (2014:
HK$4,050,000) has been determined, of which
HK$405,000 (2014: HK$386,000) has been paid in cash
and HK$4,281,000 (2014: HK$3,664,000) has been
accrued (not yet paid). HK$2,698,000 (2014:
HK$2,684,000) of the accrued amount will be payable in
cash, which is included in the amount of discretionary
bonus disclosed for the year ended 31 March 2015.
HK$1,583,000 (2014: HK$980,000) of the accrued
amount will be settled in form of share options to be
granted subsequently, which will be amortised over the
vesting periods of the share options and disclosed as
share-based payment in the disclosures.

With effect from 1 April 2014, there is a 5% (for the year
ended 31 March 2014: 10%) increase in the director’s
fee for each director and the fee for being a member or
the chairman of any Board Committee.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included two directors (2014: one director) of
the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out in Note 12(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining three
(2014: four) highest paid individuals, who are
employees of the Group, are as follows:

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

12. EX BETHRAEREENE

(#&)

@

®)

EEREBITERAEMWZ (&)

* REE2015F3A31B I FEZT -
o REE20153A31H ILEE R -

o BETEHE015FEIANB ILEE
2 B 15 1t 414,686,000 JT (2014 :
4,050,000/% JT ) * & 405,000 7T
(2014: 386,000/% 7T ) B LATR © & 1+
¥.4,281,0007 7T (2014 : 3,664,000
TLEBEHEREEAST -BERESHE
/R 2 2,698,000/ 7T (2014 : 2,684,000
BL)BUESIN EBERE
ZE2015F3A31R I FEEHEZ
WSt cB- DBIREBH 2
1,583,0003% 7T (2014 : 980,0007% 7T )
BREBAREERER X
EHRSEBEREREZESRB
P R AR A RIE TR E
B

B m2014F4 1R BRESE

ERNERETEEREZEETHER

FHF 2 EFH5% (B £20144%3

AS1HLIEFE : 10%) ©

EE M=

AEERAFELAUESHFAER
BARAMBES(014: —2E
=) HBESFBW XM E126)m
& o

EREAEEREE 2 =4(2014: [T
BIEREHFABZENEWT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e Rk H 1@ A 11,065 10,728
Discretionary bonus (note) BB L4 (B aE) 3,958 6,134
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR 4k 1@ I 5T &) it 2 244 244
Share-based payment expense DA RIBZ X 1,143 -
16,410 17,106
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HIEFE
12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE BRETHRAEREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (/&)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) b) EEM=Z &)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEML RO
Number of employees
EEAH
2015 2014
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T — 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T — 2,500,000 7T - 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 (note) 6,000,001 3% 7T — 6,500,000 7T
(H13t) - 2!
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 (note) 6,500,001 3% 7T — 7,000,000 7T
(K1 aF) 1" —
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 (note) 7,500,001 % 7T — 8,000,000 7T
(K1 &) 1" —
3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

note: An aggregate amount of discretionary bonus for the year
ended 31 March 2015 of HK$5,334,000 (2014:
HK$6,083,000) has been determined, of which
HK$695,000 (2014: HK$662,000) has been paid in cash
and HK$4,639,000 (2014: HK$5,421,000) has been
accrued (not yet paid) to members of senior management.
HK$3,039,000 (2014: HK$3,821,000) of the accrued
amount will be payable in cash, which is included in the
amount of discretionary bonus disclosed for the year ended
31 March 2015 and the band of emoluments of members
of senior management. HK$1,600,000 (2014:
HK$1,600,000) of the accrued amount will be settled in
form of share options to be granted subsequently, which
will be amortised over the vesting periods of the share
options and disclosed as share-based payment expense in
the disclosures.

The above emoluments represent the remuneration paid/

payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

“R

13. R AL A

= B %5 ¥R Ak MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived B % AR A 2 0Bk
at after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hi@\EEEZRHE(BEsRoER
(included in distribution and selling HEBAN)
expenses) 1,989 10,348
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B & 4,073 4,071
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRAEIHZFERA
expense 276,339 731,746
Depreciation of property, plant and M NGB ECTTE
equipment (nhote (a) below) (FXHtat(a) 68,502 77,743
Operating lease rentals in respect of: weEfame
Land and premises + i REF 12,046 10,239
Plant and machinery et K 3% A8 2,110 5,325
Release of prepaid lease payments FIIB B EZIE 3,253 3,359
Staff costs (note (b) below) BT S (FXHatb) 185,730 182,848
and after crediting: WEEA:
Dividend income from investments in HBEBERmTAREZRERA
equity instruments held for trading BEBHZ B BA 4,950 2,144
Rental income under operating leases in  R& ¥ % - & % X $53,446,000
respect of investment properties, net of % 7T (2014 : 3,462,000% 7T)
outgoings of HK$3,446,000 (2014:
HK$3,462,000) 8,497 7,260
Total interest income (included in turnover & F| S A (BE R L 2B R
and other income) =i N 30,326 32,893
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

13. BR% ADR F (@)

notes: K it -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(@) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment @ ME HMHEREEZE:
Amount provided for the year FERES 70,176 80,997
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIERSRWEREZMHEE
properties under development for sale ERMEERZHE
(included in stock of properties) (583) (1,787)
Amount capitalised in respect of project BEERPEEERAZHE
under development - (52)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERENRME  BRE
construction in progress (included in BREBEAZERIBREARAZ
property, plant and equipment) HE (1,091) (1,415)
68,502 77,743
(b) Staff costs: ) EIXH:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) FEEWS (HiE120) 13,915 12,760
Other staff costs: HMEI I H
Salaries and other benefits SN 2 E i 4E T 186,961 179,290
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAE B EH B 4,995 4,180
Share-based payment expense DRI AREZAX 1,143 -
207,014 196,230
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIEBERYE  BWMREKE
construction in progress (included in NZHEBRIREAZHEE
property, plant and equipment) (16,006) (8,389)
Amount capitalised in respect of project BIERREPBEEEAZHE
under development - (4,083)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERERMEFEZ
properties under development for sale HEEEEMEELRZ
(included in stock of properties) L) (3,591) (910
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEREMEZ HE
investment properties (1,687) —
185,730 182,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

14. TAXATION 14. Bi1E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
The charge (credit) comprises: IBSZ (B A) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEFER
Overprovision in prior years BIFEREBERE - (4,200)
Taxation arising in jurisdictions outside EENINEEEREL Z2THIE
Hong Kong:
Current year KEE 7,598 45,588
Underprovision in prior years BEFERBHBTR 5,161 260
12,759 45,848
Deferred taxation (Note 38) IEE I (M1 7%38)
LAT + Hh I (E 118,393 68,211
Others HA 72,282 72,501
190,675 140,712
Taxation attributable to the Company AAR REWEB AR ENFIE
and its subsidiaries 203,434 182,360
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

14. TAXATION (Continued)

164  pv1

"~
L 4

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (#r £ A B H A1 1 ithig(E
FRE 1T 1645]) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (3 A R HEFNE + i igE
TRE TR0 E He4n ) effective from 27 January 1995 as
well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of
the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

14. TAXATION (Continued) 14. BI1E @)
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the REEZHELEEGAERZRTIIBHE
profit before taxation per the consolidated income AE N 2 $IERT

statement as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation 4 T BT 331,849 318,299
Tax calculated at domestic rates BEBRZZERBABRAMEHE
applicable in the respective jurisdictions 7 {18 85,687 79,786
Tax effect of share of results of BB aEnr A8 bEEEL
associates/joint ventures KT E (27,721) (27,478)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for £ & #5 /5 @ 4~ @] #18 F X 2
tax purpose RS s & 48,368 71,254
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax  EHMEHFEBEEZH KA Z
purpose e (5,476) (5,870)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K IEHER MG EIE 2 BT o & 8,573 11,220
Tax effect of other deductible temporary 5k {ERERE 1143 AR5
difference not recognised i3 19 24
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRERNAERZHBEEZ
previously not recognised Mg e - (1)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible ) 8 5 i & #E 32 2 H b AT 0 5 Ba B
temporary difference previously not EHIMBEEE
recognised (326) (229)
Effect of recognising LAT in respect of the $ti& & ¥ N F(EE 2 &L DR
fair value changes in investment THIEER R
properties 118,393 68,211
Effect of recognising LAT for stock of HELEMEFERR L HIRET
properties sold ZEE 472 8,581
Tax effect of LAT THEERZHETE (29,716) (19,198)
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFEREEIR(GAE) 5,161 (3,940)
Taxation charge for the year REEHBERS 203,434 182,360
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

15. DISTRIBUTION 15. 7K
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Dividends recognised as distribution RARFEERAED R ZEE
during the year:
Final cash dividend declared for the year & Z=2014€3H831BILtFE >
ended 31 March 2014 EERRHAREEZKRE
— HKO0.5 cent (2014: HKO0.5 cent — Bi%0.5/%8 1L (2014 : H =20134F
for the year ended 31 March 2013) 3A31BIEFE AEARQS
per share Al 22,887 22,887
Interim cash dividend declared for HZE201543A31BLFEZ
the year ended 31 March 2015 EERFHRSRKRE
— HKO0.5 cent (2014: HKO.5 cent) — §RR0.5/8 1L (2014 : FAR0.5
per share L) 22,887 22,887
45,774 45,774
Dividends proposed in respect of AREEZFRIKEE :
current year:
Final cash dividend proposed for the year # 220153831 B ItFE >
ended 31 March 2015 B KBRS RE
— HKO.5 cent (2014: HKO.5 cent) per — ZiR0.5%8 (L (2014 : BA%0.5
share ) 22,887 22,887

Pyl

The amount of the final cash dividend proposed for the
year ended 31 March 2015 has been calculated by
reference to the 4,577,360,572 issued shares as at the
date of this report.
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

16. BKRER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

ARABEENEBEFESRERNRE SR
MTRATBURFT EG

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEX FAET
Profit for the year attributable to owners BT EGRER R HERF 2
of the Company for the purpose of RABIHE ANEIEFEE T
basic and diluted earnings per share 86,028 85,586
2015 2014
Number Number
of shares of shares
BB A R g=!

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EE# s Emik v £ -
Share options i A 1

AUGEERERAEF 2
LBAR MNAE T
4,577,360,572

1,838,438

4,577,360,572

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

AU ESREERNZ
Rl RS
4,579,199,010

4,577,360,572

No diluted earnings per share had been presented for the
year ended 31 March 2014 as the Company did not have
any dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during
that year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y15 - B KRB

LPG and
CNG Furniture,
Port logistics  Motor fixtures
infrastructure and vehicles and
Plant and Port  and related distribution and computer Construction
Buildings machinery equipment facilities facilities vessels equipment in progress Total
BIEARE
RE%
BOEERR XARMR KRBER A (B
BF BHRRE BORE HERE RIHERE i REERE EEIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR FTET TET TiEx TR TET T
COsT BA&
At 1 April 2013 20135
4R1H 102,227 9,114 50,634 63,102 541,670 136,797 52,644 842,841 1,798,929
Exchange realignment  [& 5, 3 % 121 1 11 (192) 633 (27) (84) (726) (253)
Additions NE 4,607 — 537 218 3,309 5,202 9,905 131,964 155,742
Transfers B 298 — 3,769 1,864 — 13,67 1,311 (20,913) -
Disposal HE (4,446) — (474) - (117 (5,108 (10,585) —  (20,730)
At31 March2014  R2014%F
3A31H 102,807 9,125 54,477 64,992 545,395 150,535 53,191 963,166 1,933,688
Exchange realignment  [& & 73 £ (128) 1) (68) 81) (681) (184) (56) (1,198) (2,407)
Additions AE 707 - 1,464 219 15,370 8,627 3,502 31,887 61,776
Transfer from project ERHERES
under development 1B B — - - - - - - 23,246 23,246
Transfers B 77,682 — 42,646 315,179 - 557 — (436,064) —
Disposal He (3,784) - (646) (988) (1,235)  (5,406) (1,422) - (13481)
At31March 2015 1220154
3H31H 177,284 9,114 97,873 379,321 558,849 154,129 55,215 571,037 2,002,822
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 April 2013 P 20136
4718 25,935 6,634 10,486 6,137 160,884 42,825 28,104 — 281,005
Exchange realignment  [€ ¥ 38 2 (53) ®) 31 17 (483) (65) (63) - (720)
Provided for the year ~ N4 [ 348 6,261 1,254 3,197 1,779 49,927 11,330 7,249 - 80997
Eliminated on disposal () & B ¥ £ (24) — - - (67) (3,115 (10,226) — (13422
At31 March2014  R2014%F
3A31H 32,119 7,880 13,662 7,899 210,271 50,975 25,064 — 347,860
Exchange realignment  [£ 5 8 & (40) (10) 17 (10) (263) (59) 22 - (421)
Provided for the year ~ N4 [ 1% 7,687 274 3,858 3,100 22,900 25,187 7170 - 70,176
Eliminated on disposal (! & B ¥ $4 © - - - (639  (3,316) (1,236) — (5,003)
At31March2015 720154
3A31H 39,764 8,144 17,493 10,989 232,369 72,787 30,976 — 412,522
CARRYING VALUES BRMEE
At31March 2015 220154
3A31H 137,520 970 80,380 368,332 326,480 81,342 24,239 571,037 1,590,300
At 31 March 2014 20145
3A31H 70,688 1,245 40,825 57,093 335,124 99,560 28,127 953,166 1,585,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. #1 % - WM & R (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other Lt BN RE(EEZIRERINIE
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a BULEGENE  FF0T
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
BF AR &M B
Buildings Over the period of the 504F (LA
relevant leases or fifty ERYE)
years, whichever is shorter AR B 35 15 10%
Plant and machinery 10% oAuE i 6%
Port equipment 6% AOERNAMBEE 2%-20%
Port infrastructure and 2% — 20% ‘AL AR R & 4% -10%
related facilities B KRR
LPG and CNG logistics and 4% — 10% 73 R
distribution facilities YRE KM A 2.6% -20%
Motor vehicles and vessels 2.6% —20% RARKE 8% —20%
Furniture and fixtures 8% —20% BN R 20% —33":%

Computer equipment 20% — 33',%

BFEENFEAEBES -
Buildings are erected on medium-term leasehold land in
the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BREWE
Leasehold Land
properties Developed under
in the PRC land development Total
RPEZ
HENE CHZLH BB LTt &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FAT
(note a) (note b)
(Htzta) 239,
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 18 225,346 491,885 258,427 975,658
Exchange realignment [ &, & (11) (2,359) (4,474) (6,844)
Transferred from project EREAERTIER
under development (note b) (Hitb) - - 115,817 115,817
Transfer (note b) (K 2p) - 300,496 (300,496) -
Additions NE 16,094 66,077 — 82,171
Increase in fair value recognised in RiGABERAER
the consolidated income statement N EEEM 8,226 131,651 250,351 390,228
Disposal e (3,036) - - (3,036)
Transfer to stock of properties BREEYELGE - (694,667) - (694,667)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3HA31H 246,619 293,083 319,625 859,327
Exchange realignment f& i, = (308) (366) (399) (1,073)
Transferred from project under BREBEERTIER
development (note b) 239, - - 44,031 44,031
Additions NE 9,772 — 15,478 25,250
Increase in fair value recognised inthe 42 & U2 & N IER
consolidated income statement REEEELM 4,212 68,082 340,366 412,660
Disposal HE (179) - - (179)
At 31 March 2015 M201543A31H 260,116 360,799 719,101 1,340,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REY =X (30
notes: [T
(@  Inprior years, the Group completed the reclamation of certain land @ RBEFEARN AEETRRHBEITIEHSE

area and obtained the certificate of completion of land reclamation
(the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project engineering and
construction manager in respect of certain land area (the “Formed
Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Upon obtaining the
Certificate, such Formed Land held for capital appreciation had
been recognised as land held under operating lease and classified
and accounted for as investment properties. During the year ended
31 March 2014, an aggregate sum of approximately HK$66,077,000
was incurred for other development works (mainly representing the
fundamental greenery, landscaping and drainage works) to achieve
the highest and best use of the Formed Land for tourist and resort
use.

(b) In connection with the reclamation of certain land area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet completed,
the land leveling process (mainly representing the sand filling work
to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land Being Formed”). Upon
the commencement of land leveling process, the Land Being
Formed that held for rentals and/or capital appreciation as
investment properties had been recognised as land under
development and classified and accounted for as investment
properties. The relevant costs, which include the development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other directly
attributable expenses, amounting to approximately HK$44,031,000
(2014: HK$115,817,000), have been transferred from project
under development to investment properties during the year.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2014, the land leveling
process and other development works of certain area of Land
Being Formed of approximately HK$300,496,000 were completed
and transferred to Formed Land.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out as at those dates by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group.

In determining the fair value of leasehold properties, the
comparison method is adopted under which comparison
based on information of recent transacted prices of
comparable properties is made. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location are analysed in order
to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values.

ETHHEREZABTIR WBE T it
HENSHAABEE IRRELELE
B ZERABRL (D FELM]) 2B
E(ZBED ROBZEBEER  ZFME
BABEZE PRI HEERARERL
LHEREEZIH IPBERARABRE
W -MNEE2014F3A3IBLEFE B
FEEBRIMERIRERERARZR
ShkEERER HMBRIB(ZEEE
Mgt SBRKAIR Z2HAZAED
/566,077,000 JT °

MRAFAEIHEE T EHES ZMAET
Bms A£EECERTHIFETRE(E
BHREADTUFESHRE D) ([FEH
THl) BERTER - REABRLHFET
B BEREVEHBER HER
BEZFEPLIHMERERBMAE R+
o WA ERARIIEREDE - HEAK
ABREERIH BAEABERAR
H fh H 2 R L 7 S © B8 4944,031,0007% 7T
(2014 : 115,817,000 7T) * B RN F R #H 2
BPEEBAKREDE-

o REE2014F3ANAEFEE R
R & T £ i & 49 {5300,496,0007% Tt 2
FEALHN L FEIEREGER
IR IEEEFELM-

K £ B R 2015F 3 A31H &2014%F 3 A 31
AZERENEZAFEEREEHMAERN
SEVEBEZBIAEREEHEMF
WEAETEERBRARET ZMHERT

H o
o

REEREWEL AFEER  RANLT
BHBWEZ BARTEEEN BREY
HBA - WEE - M E R B S 2 A&
B MBI AN AR E A BEERA
Fro e

D rezmaran 055% ﬂ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In determining the fair value of Formed Land, the
comparison method is adopted under which comparison
based on information of recent transacted prices of
comparable properties is made. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location are analysed in order
to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values. The fair
value measurement also takes into account the highest
and best use of the Formed Land for tourist and resort
use, which correlates to the zoning of the area for tourist
resort by the government. Certain costs, including
government levies and all necessary fees and expenses
associated with the change of the Formed Land for tourist
and resort use to be charged by the government, which
are the best estimate based on the latest information
available to the management of the Company, have been
considered in arriving the fair value of the Formed Land.

In determining the fair value of Land Being Formed, the
same comparison method is adopted and valuation has
been considered for further costs to be expended for the
development of the Land Being Formed into Formed
Land. Further costs for completing the land leveling
process and other development works as at 31 March
2015 are estimated to be approximately HK$S0 million (2014:
insignificant).

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
Formed Land and Land Being Formed is the 20% of
saleable land discount on the comparable properties
applied by the valuer. A slight change in the saleable land
discount used would result in a significant change in fair
value measurement of the investment properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
and methodology used in the prior year. The fair value
hierarchy as at 31 March 2015 is Level 3. There are no
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

For the Formed Land, the Group has to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company consider that
there is no material impediment to obtain these certificates
for the Group.
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18. REWE m)

RETESFEBELHZAFEER  KAMU
AELBMEZRIOIRIEBRENBEE
ZHBOE - BEE WE MBS ZA
BUHBMEETON UAREABEER
AP AFEBEZFERZEINDT
B wAREREBRREAZRS RRER
& iE B 2B U A R R I AR 8 R IR
BERE - ETHRARRBAHE RBK
YR E PR L EBIERRE RER
RaefARzMmALYTERRAX(RER
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balances as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 mainly relate
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value
to properties under development for sale, property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, additional project
development costs of approximately HK$5,710,000 (2014:
HK$36,663,000) are incurred and project under
development with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$44,031,000 (2014: HK$115,817,000), HK$23,246,000
(2014: Nil) and HK$6,031,000 (2014: HK$301,128,000)
have been transferred to investment properties,
construction in progress and properties under
development for sale, respectively.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land in the
PRC held under medium-term lease and are analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

19.

20.

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

REHIEE

R2015F M2014F3 AR 2 At £ B 8l
MNARPEIHREAZERBEEER - ~EE
FHETIHFEREROARE N L
FERTIEMARK AIETIHWER2ER
A# - WKHEBEIEE ZRAAKREMERZ
BEREHRETRDE WE BRERE
RILEWME(WNER) °

RE E20156F3A318 It FE - #iL A
B % E K A& %5,710,000/% T (2014 :
36,663,000/ 7t) B B & A - MR E (B
#) /44,031,000 7T (2014 : 115,817,000
& JT )~ 23,246,000 JT(2014: & ) K
6,031,000 T (2014 : 301,128,000/ JT)
FRTPBEEEDHNEREREME LR
IRRGFERERDE-

RAAHAERE

AEBEZBENHEEFIRELN T EEERSD
HEERAZ L BoWIEREREN
™

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Non-current assets EREBEE 328,434 333,446
Current assets TRENEE 5,255 3,053
333,689 336,499

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE2015F3A31BILFE

21.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21, EEEEE

Motor Premium
vehicles Club on
registration membership leasehold Rights of Customer Know-
marks in Hong Kong land operation base how Total
REBZ HETHZ
REBRRRE B 18 ReEE EBEFE®R RBWHRE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note a) (note a) (note b) (note c) (note d) (note e)
(Btita) (Ktita) (Ht7tb) (Btite) (K5t d) (Htite)
COST 5%
At 1 April 2013 HR2013F4 108 823 62 35,546 45,521 2,575 2,664 87,191
Exchange realignment [ 5 g% — — 29 56 3 4 92
Additions NE — — 1,130 — — — 1,130
At 31 March 2014 HR2014F3A31H 823 62 36,705 45,577 2,578 2,668 88,413
Exchange realignment [E 5, 35 8 - — (45) (57) ©) (4 (109)
Additions NE 345 - — — — — 345
Disposal e — — (4,404) - — — (4,404)
At 31 March 2015 H2015F3 831 H 1,168 62 32,256 45,520 2,575 2,664 84,245
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 71 H — — 3,565 5918 1,674 1,354 12,5611
Exchange realignment I 3 58 - - (18) (6) @ @ @7)
Provided for the year REFFHR - — 8,892 924 261 271 10,348
At 31 March 2014 20143 A31H — — 12,439 6,837 1,933 1,623 22,832
Exchange realignment [E 3 & - - (15) ©) @ @ (@8)
Provided for the year RNEE TR — — 555 910 258 266 1,989
Eliminated on disposal o B 8 - - (480) - - — (480)
At 31 March 2015 MR2015F3A31H — — 12,499 7,738 2,189 1,887 24,313
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 March 2015 #20156F3 A31H 1,168 62 19,757 37,782 386 777 59,932
At 31 March 2014 #2014 3 A31H 823 62 24,266 38,740 645 1,045 65,581
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22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21. HthBREE @)
notes: K i -
(@)  The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the @ ZREEAERECRACHFH -ZERR

opinion that the club membership and motor vehicles registration

marks are worth at least their carrying values.

BBERAEELRBEEEZLMEE
NEREE -

The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in Wuhan b) ZeBREALZEEWREBEBEEBTE

and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through the
acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to be

BURPERETREETMZEE L
2B DiREAEAENAEREMERZ

amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease HEMBIE70F NEEH -

payments over 33 to 70 years.

© KEBAREPERETELLE RO

Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG REBZENZAFEBEH KE&ETIE
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised BROETT A4S & T AT B HAS0F N 8 o

on a straight-line basis over the operation licence period of 50

years. d BPEWAKRERSBWEXBEMKERE
AHREBEFPBEZATEE  DHUEA

Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship EOETE10FE N5 o

acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The

amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years. (e) B ERRUABREAHBBRARE 287
BRIMAE 2 RAFEE HDULEZEEI

Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for motor FRE -

vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is provided on a

straight-line basis over 10 years.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. BMENFHER

2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cost of unlisted investments in WEIEFTHE QT ZKA
associates, less impairment M RIE 845,423 845,423
Share of post-acquisition profits and LU BE 18 T R B
reserves, net of dividends received kB W B 900,265 843,452

1,745,688 1,688,875

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the unlisted
investments include:

(i)  47.52% equity interest in Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (“Louis XIII”),
which is engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, development management, project
management, facilities and asset management
services and investment in properties;

(i) 45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited
(“Nantong Port Group”), which is a sino-foreign joint
venture enterprise registered in the PRC. Nantong
Port Group is principally engaged in providing cargo
loading and off loading, storage, shipping agent,
cargo agent, ship anchoring, ship repairing, port
machinery, shipping logistics and ship piloting
services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC; and

(i) 40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”),
which is a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise
registered in the PRC and operates the container
terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The financial year end date of Nantong Port Group and
Jiangyin Sunan is 31 December and their latest financial
information that is available to the Group is in respect of
their financial year ended 31 December 2014. Accordingly,
the Group’s share of results and interests in these
principal associates at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are
determined based on the financial information of the
associates for the year ended and as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 respectively. No significant transaction or
event is noted between the year end dates of the
associates and of the Group.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2015 and 2014 are set out in Note 50(c).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, BENTIRESE @)
Summarised financial information in respect of Nantong EmBEE DS ERNEZE20144 2013
Port Group based on financial information prepared by the F1I2A3MB L EE 2R HER(ER
management in accordance with accounting policies of EREERAEBESHBRRGR MK E
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2014 and RO EF T -

2013 is set out below:

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
R20145F R20134F

12H31H 12431 H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial position: B SRR, -
Non-current assets FMBEE 3,172,112 3,264,613
Current assets MEBEE 762,675 807,546
Current liabilities U ZB=NE (898,593) (869,130)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (621,052) (796,720)
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS S (63,045) (62,491)
Net assets attributable to the owners BENTHEEAEGEEEFE
of the associate 2,352,097 2,343,818
Reconciliation of its net assets to the EEEFEEBENRER
carrying amount of the interest in BREE ¥ 5K -
the associate:
Net assets attributable to the owners BENTHEAEABEEEFE
of the associate 2,352,097 2,343,818
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBLELE N RIHAEZ O
interest in the associate 45% 45%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBZHE NG D ZEAE
interest in the associate 1,058,444 1,054,718

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE2015F3A31HILFE
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22, BENTIRER @)
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
B ZE2014% HZE=2013F
12H31H 12431 H
IEEE LEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Results of the associate: R NCIES
Turnover - 1,117,898 1,083,158
Profit for the year FE R A 161,532 192,720
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEMEE G ) WE
income for the year (3,113) 39
Total comprehensive income for the year E 2 mE Uz 4258 158,419 192,759
Dividends received or receivable from FRE Wk W E N FRE
the associate during the year 67,562 14,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, BENTIRESE @)
Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangyin BRIEEZENE E2014%F K2013F12 A
Sunan based on financial information prepared by the SIHLEFEZHATHER (ENEE
management in accordance to accounting policies of the ERAEBSHABRRGRZTBER) &
Group for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 Fn

is set out below:

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
R20145F R20134F

12H31H 12431 H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Financial position: B SRR, -
Non-current assets ERBEE 274,200 287,329
Current assets MEBEE 417,522 383,609
Current liabilities e B & (13,365) (16,975)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (22,670) (22,975)
Net assets attributable to the owners BENAEBEARBLEEFE
of the associate 655,687 630,988
Reconciliation of its net assets to the HEEEFEHRBZ QA
carrying amount of the interest in the HaEEEZYE:
associate:
Net assets attributable to the owners BENAEEARBLEEFE
of the associate 655,687 630,988
Less: Fair value adjustments upon acquisition & : RUKEEE: - A ZEEFHE (57,116) (57,188)
Adjusted net assets before fair value NEBERAER KT
adjustments EEFE 598,571 573,800
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRBERRIHAR
ownership interest in the associate: BRTEE :
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB(RBME NG AR
interest in the associate Lt 1 40% 40%
Share of net assets before fair value NI EBEABRAZBHEE
adjustments FE 239,428 229,520
Additional share of fair value adjustments ANFEEAEZEINEELD 19,252 19,276
258,680 248,796

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

22.

180 P

"~
L 4

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

22, Bt& N B (@)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
B ZE2014% HZE2013%F
12H31H 12A431H
LtEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Results of the associate: ERWNCTE S i
Turnover S 105,066 101,044
Profit for the year F = A 25,487 24,298
Other comprehensive (expense) income G E Hih 2w (B x) W=
for the year (788) 424
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 2 mEU =R 42 %8 24,699 24,722
Dividends received from the associate FANEYEE D RRE
during the year - 4,994
No dividend is received or recognised as receivable from FRIWED WK ERIERWZE S QRR

the associate during the year.

The financial information in respect of Paul Y. Engineering

=1
=

EBEREZENE Z2015F M20146F3 A

based on the audited financial statements for the years SIALEFECHBER(EREEZTB
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 is set out below: WFR)E W
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial position: B RS AROR, -
Non-current assets EREBEE 375,097 396,730
Current assets REEE 5,269,518 4,792,189
Current liabilities BB & (4,742,326) (4,375,768)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (2,618)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR M2 (489) 351
Net assets attributable to the owners BE R HAEABEEETFE
of the associate 901,800 810,884
Reconciliation of its net assets to the EEEFEHEHBENA#ER
carrying amount of the interest in FREE < HER -
the associate:
Net assets attributable to the owners N
of the associate BERRRTARGRESE 901,800 810,884
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEBHBENRIEREZ LD
interest in the associate 47.52% 47.52%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A& & 7B & A5 #2 7 REE
in the associate 428,535 385,332

» PYI Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, BENTIRESE @)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx F# T
Results of the associate: RN
Turnover = | 10,695,573 9,243,908

Profit for the year FEHF 84,698 80,432
Other comprehensive (expense) income & H i 2w (B ) W=

for the year (409) 412
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 2 m k4858 84,289 80,844
No dividend is received or recognised as receivable from F L T U SR RE R A AR K R R R
the associate during the year. Boe
The financial position of the Group’s other associates are ARE 2 HE &N E 2 BBIOR 18 B &
not individually and aggregately material. EEMsLFEKX-
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of BERRNRERENABESHBESR
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of KSESEEAEEFEL ZERLBKAE
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by N BIENBRRA -
the Group.

NS B4R R — R (2014 1 — ) B

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of BRAIZEE AERRFTAKEHANES
losses of one (2014: one) of the associates. The BB (ERALEEZEERB)NT

accumulated unrecognised share of losses attributable to
the Group (based on unaudited management accounts)
are as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FER FET
Accumulated unrecognised share of RAERB(EHERA 2 R5TEEB
losses of the associates (54,770) (54,892)

D rezmaran 055% ﬂ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

23.

Pyl

"~
L 4

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. ELERR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint WERIIELETAELEDERAK
ventures 86,663 86,663
Share of post-acquisition profits and BRI 2 s R E M
other comprehensive income, net 2HEWRE - R 2R E
of dividends received 2,395 1,067
89,058 87,730

The summarised financial information below represents

TX 2B BEERENTIXBEXEER

the consolidated financial information of #T)TEE & %5 NEIREREN B R TN s e R 5 pg o
BR A &), and its wholly-owned subsidiary, #u)H 55855} 5259 BRATZHEAHBEN ZEHBER

PR A 7], which are prepared in accordance with

accounting policies of the Group.

TIRBARB T BRREMEK

ANEBZEEDEN2015F K2014F3 A

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 March 2015 318 2 S5 E# 5 H M 5E50(d) ©

and 2014 are set out in Note 50(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31HILFE

during the year

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 23. EELEER @)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAET
Financial position: BRSO -
Non-current assets ERBEE 231,689 232,090
Current assets mBEE 4,907 6,414
Current liabilities RBEE (10,395) (9,896)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (48,086) (63,147)
Net assets of the joint venture AEMEEEFE 178,115 175,461
The above amounts of assets and THEERAESERE T
liabilities include the following: £ IE
Cash and cash equivalents HeLEBSZEIER 4,757 6,281
Current financial liabilities (excluding REEcHABETBEIEES X
trade and other payables and H A TR M BB
provisions) 4,994 5,000
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding x4 MEBE(TEEE H K
trade and other payables and H b FEAT BR A R B 4B
provisions) 23,720 28,750
Reconciliation of its net assets to the HEEFERAZEDEES
carrying amount of the interest in the BEEEZYER:
joint venture:
Net assets of the joint venture BENEEEFRE 178,115 175,461
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEEECEBRGRE LA
interest in the joint venture 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A&EB 7 AL P EER 2 EEE
in the joint venture 89,058 87,730
Results of the joint venture: BEMEEE:
Turnover L 12,514 11,875
Profit for the year FEEF 2,873 1,488
Other comprehensive expense for FRNEMEERX
the year (219) (169)
Total comprehensive income for the year F A2 E k% @58 2,654 1,319
Dividends received from the joint venture F R KA & D E RS

D rezmaran 055% ﬂ
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RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

23.

24.

184 P

(%

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 23. AR LERER @
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint AEPEUNRESKRETNEELEBE K
ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash EENEEREH I fEH 2 B R B R 88
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the NI EZEERRS -
Group.
INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 24, EETEAKRE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR Tt
Listed equity securities, at quoted bid ETRAES  EREBZ
price in Hong Kong (note a) BARE (K ita) 102,964 300,399
PRC unlisted equity securities (note b) PRI LETRAEZS (B iEb) 485,246 402,355
588,210 702,754
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2009) with effect from 1 RIEN2014EA 18 £k 7 &5 B 5 R
April 2014, the Group has designated all these equity R 9% (2000 ) 18 AEBE D FT
investments as financial assets measured at fair value BEZERGTAETAKRATFEES
through other comprehensive income. The management Hip e EmW St E e mEE -1 ;: =
considers that this presentation alternative provides a B2 AR AR R ANER 2 XIR
better presentation of the Group’s performance and k&EE BEREZETAEERR @z Elﬁ
operations as they are held for long-term strategic B~ R2014F3A31B  REETEZ
purpose. As at 31 March 2014, the equity investments MERIE30%  RAKRE B AAHEE &
were classified as available-for-sale investments under BoMELTRAEENRERTEFIR
HKAS 39 and the unlisted equity investments were KARBBE (WA= -
measured at cost, less impairment if any, at the end of the
reporting period. Bt -

notes:

(@) As at 31 March 2015, the investment in Hong Kong listed equity
securities represents 3.84% (2014: 7.87%) equity interest in Louis
Xill.

(b) As at 31 March 2015, the investments in unlisted equity securities
include:

i) 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou Port Development
and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co”), which is
engaged in the business of development of port and related
infrastructures, stated at fair value of approximately
HK$484,270,000 (2014: stated at cost of HK$401,378,000);
and

®» PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report

@@ R201543A31H REB LR AE
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() 2015 3A31H RIFLEMBAZFARZ
BREBRE:

i) REBOREEERELHBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

notes: (Continued)

ii) less than 20% interests in certain PRC companies held by
Yichang Port Group Limited (the “Yichang Port Group”), a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which are
mainly engaged in port related services, stated at fair value
of approximately HK$976,000 (2014: stated at cost of
HK$977,000).

As at 31 March 2015 and the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 (2009) on 1 April 2014, the investments in
unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value. A
reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques appropriate to the market and
industry of each investment. Valuation techniques used to
support these valuations include the asset-based
approach which uses the fair market value of its total
assets minus its total liabilities, and the market approach
which uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or
comparable assets or businesses.

In determining the fair value of property assets under the
asset-based approach, the comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of
recent transacted prices of comparable properties is
made. Comparable properties of similar size, character
and location are analysed in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of capital values.

A key unobservable input, being 20% of saleable land
discount on comparable properties to discount the fair
value of properties by approximately HK$3,669 million
(1.4.2014: HK$3,983 million), has been applied in valuing
the properties. A slight increase in the saleable land
discount used would result in a significant decrease in fair
value measurement of the properties and hence of the
unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A 5% increase in
the saleable land discount (i.e. revised to 25%), holding all
other variables constant, carrying amount of the properties
would decrease by approximately HK$942 million (1.4.2014:
HK$968 million), and fair value of the Group’s investment
in corresponding equity instrument would decrease by
approximately HK$23 million (1.4.2014: HK$24 million).

24,

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE
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B OBWMEZEARESERDOL2EE T
(1.4.2014 = 9.6818 7 7T) K 7 5 B 72 A5 B 4
mLAKREZ ATEEGRD 23008
70 (1.4.2014 1 2,4008 78 7T) °
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e M HRRM
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

25. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 25.

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group entered into an
agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive compensation including the transfer of certain
construction floor areas of the New Premises within four
years from the date of surrender.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Resumption
Properties were transferred to the local government and
the fair value of the New Premises, estimated as
RMB74,420,000 (approximately HK$93,025,000), was
recognised as deemed consideration and was
approximate to the carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2015, the New Premises are still under
construction.

26. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 26.

HitbFERBEE

R2013F3A8H  EE B K& B i 5 I
A AEEKGZE BUEEEEBEEE
MEMBINEIETYE(EBKRDZED
NBERGAEEB(FER] mMEEEBK
SEBFIFE BERBR ZBREOF
NEEZENMEMoE TREEEREE -

HE2014F3A31BILFE AWK DE
ERREEWHRN FTEMZAFEE
(15t A A R % 74,420,000 7T (#793,025,000
B ERARERELHEREBERS °

R20156F3A31H - FEAMINEERZRS -

NEFE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET TRET

Properties under development for sale HEETEREYE
Completed properties held for sale EEIRBEHEME

1,303,803 1,251,450
488,144 472,024

1,791,947 1,723,474

Land Being Formed which is developed for future sale is
recognised as properties under development for sale in
stock of properties upon the commencement of the land
leveling process. Formed Land which is also developed
for future sale in the ordinary course of business is
classified as properties under development for sale in
stock of properties upon commencement of development.

At 31 March 2015, stock of properties includes Formed
Land of approximately HK$713,529,000 (2014:
HK$694,667,000) for which the Group has to obtain
certain appropriate certificates for the disposal of the
Formed Land. Based on past experience, the directors of
the Company consider that there is no material
impediment to obtain these certificates for the Group.
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STOCK OF PROPERTIES (Continued)

At 31 March 2015, stock of properties includes an amount
of approximately HK$1,004,721,000 (2014:
HK$965,438,000) which is expected to be realised after
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

6. WEEE @)

R2015F3A31H MEFE® & B 5
BRAREHTEBBR T _@EARBE
I 2 & % #91,004,721,0007 jT(2014 :
965,438,000 7T ) °

27. ERER

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
The amounts, net of allowance, bear BEZIE(HBREE) &L
interest at the following rates: ATHMEEE:
5% over Hong Kong Best Lending Rate #ixEREEMNR((ETRER
(“HKBLR") (note a) BEFIE]) NSE (K iFa) 37,000 38,000
6% over HKBLR (note b) B EEEEREMEE (M iFb) 37,000 38,000
1% over HKBLR (hote ¢) BrAREREENEME (K itc) - -
15% (note c) 15% (B it c) - -
Total w8 =t 74,000 76,000

Other than note (c), no significant loans receivable balance
has been past due at the end of the reporting period for
which impairment loss has not been recognised. No
recognition of impairment loss for the balance not yet past
due at the end of the reporting period was considered
necessary, since there has been no past default history in
respect of those receivables.

notes:

(@) The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$37,000,000 (2014:
HK$38,000,000) bears variable interest rate at 5% over HKBLR (i.e.
10%) per annum and is repayable within one year.

(b) The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$37,000,000 (2014:
HK$38,000,000) bears variable interest rate at 6% over HKBLR (i.e.
11%) per annum and is repayable within one year. The repayment
is guaranteed by an independent third party.

(c) Included in the carrying amount of loans receivable as at 31 March
2015 was accumulated impairment loss of HK$19,813,000 (2014:
HK$19,813,000) in respect of the balance, which was past due at
the end of the reporting period and the relevant debtors were in
financial difficulties.

B aEC)s R EM @R L ECEH
BYEBRRBBEBEZENEBRER - A
MRZERRFIABELESRLE  WE
FRBEMTRER L RBI 2 ERERR
EEE -

(@) %% # A37,000,0007% 7T (2014 : 38,000,000
BT Z BB ERERIB TR EEE
EMEMSE(BM0E) 2 % 8 4 7 R 5
B AR -FREE-

(b) % # /R37,000,0007% 7T (2014 : 38,000,000
Bz BEREREFIAE TREEE
EMEmMEEAN1E) 2% 8 F 5 R &t
B WAR-FANEE - EFRB BB
BETER-

© H2015F3AACYEREREEED
AAEHMR GRS AR R &6
2 =t E &5 819,813,000 7T (2014 :
19,813,000 7t) - i A8 B4 & % A M Ea 01 I
R £ o

D rezmaran 055% ﬂ
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28.

20.

30.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand except for an amount of HK$37,000,000 (2014

HK$38,000,000) which bears variable interest rate at 2%
over HKBLR (i.e. 7%) per annum and is repayable within
one year.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST

The amount due from a non-controlling interest was
unsecured, interest-free and fully repaid during the year.

28.

29.

FE g Bt & X B R

RZECHAEER 2BV ERERE
8 - H € %8 A&37,000,0007% 7T (2014 :
38,000,000 Jt.) PA B T (B BB 15 & FI =K 10
2E(BN7E) 2 FBFF KT WAL —F
KB 38 2 FRIBRR D o

FE Uy 3F 122 IR M 2 SRR TR

EUIFEREERAREER 2802
RERBEEN -

TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 3. EZRHMEWERER fTE&RHE
AND PREPAYMENTS F=E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Trade debtors (note) B o5 EMKBER (A E) 94,291 61,740
Deposits and prepayments HES SN ] 51,730 34,567
Advance payment for ports and RARBORYERETRR
properties construction works in ZE
the PRC 11,954 38,810
Others Hi 109,154 107,182
Total 485t 267,129 242,299
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30. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Included in the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables as at 31 March 2015 was accumulated
impairment loss of HK$181,000 (2014: HK$193,000) in
respect of balances which were past due at the end of the
reporting period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties. The movements of allowance for doubtful
debts are as follows:

30.

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

EZRHEMEBWRERR FTERkAE

14 7= @)

M2015F3A31H B 5 K H b fE AR K
FREEEFARREHEARAOHEHR
2 3R {E 518 181,000 7T (2014 : 193,000
L) MARBEE S A HE M A - RIR
BEZEHMT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Balance at beginning of the year F Y 193 34,089
Amounts written off as uncollectible S 8 W [ i 4 85 2 5RIE - (17,700)
Amounts reversed during the year FRNEE 2 KB (252) (17,404)
Provided for during the year FREE 2 KIE 240 1,194
Exchange realignment HE 5, 38 B - 14
Balance at end of the year F R4 181 193

note: The Group’s credit terms for customers of ports and logistics
segment normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Rental income
for property business is receivable according to the agreements
and the credit terms granted by the Group to other debtors
normally range from 30 days to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the end of

et AEBEORMRIBZEFLPEEH—
BRABENVHTZE - MEXHKZHD K
NIBIZ W o 2 SR E WOk - T AR 5 B BE Eo A
EUREREHZEES —RHEB0E0HR

T

NBEZAMAEE MBERKEBR &
ZRBIE RN E R AR 2R DN

the reporting period is as follows: Z5mT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 90 days 90HA 53,001 43,394
More than 90 days and within 180 days BB HEMN180R A 27,235 12,726
More than 180 days BB 180 H 14,055 5,620
94,291 61,740

) rezmeran
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RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 30. ESRHMEBEWER T2 kAE
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 13 FE (@)
note: (Continued) Hiat - (%)
As at 31 March 2015, included in the Group’s trade debtor 20153 A31H » AEBE 2 & 5 EIRE
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of KA R B 4T 48 BR T 13 4 36,243,0007% T
HK$36,243,000 (2014: HK$22,214,000) which were past due at (2014 : 22,214,000 7T ) 2 FEW R K - B
the end of the reporting period for which impairment loss has not BRERRE HTARD R B I &g
been recognised. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor ZRMEEE T EINEAERESEHE
impaired have no history of defaulting on repayments. The Group WEER W EBEAEN 2L - NEFEIT &
does not hold any collateral over the balances. MZEERFAEEMERR -
Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired: EEHERTREZE S EYERTIRR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Overdue: BER -
Within 90 days 0HA 22,105 9,898
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBIiBIOHEMRI80B N 9,674 11,571
More than 180 days B 180H 4,464 745
36,243 22,214

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been a

significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and there

is no recent history of default and therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
HELD FOR TRADING

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

1. FEEERETARE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAET

Listed equity securities, at quoted bid ETRAES  EHEARE

price in

Hong Kong BB 93,554 80,272

Overseas NSEIN 7,956 4,712

101,510 84,984

32. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$408,448,000 (2014:
HK$473,683,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities with maturity within one year from the
end of the reporting period and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits included
approximately RMB320,227,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$399,784,000) (2014: RMB352,700,000
equivalent to approximately HK$440,875,000) deposited
in Hong Kong, which were pledged to secure banking
facilities denominated in Hong Kong dollars and available
in Hong Kong.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 1% to 4.6% (2014 0.35% to
3.08%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 1.15% (2014: Nil
to 1.49%) per annum.

2. CEARTER BHRITEX

EBTHEERRE

EEBRTGEREAERRETFAEEZ
—MBITEEMBREFRITZER  BE
408,448,0007% 7T (2014 : 473,683,0005 7T) 2
GHRETER (FREANRBEHTHERL—
FREEZ —BETEEZER AWK
WARBEE -CEBERTFEFRESHOA
R # 320,227,000 7T (#8 & 7 #7399,784,000
7 70) (2014 © A R #5352,700,000 7T * 8 &
R 47440,875,0008 T) REB ZF R I
EEBUREUEEAEMEREEFER
ZIRITIEER -

EEARTEALIPEINR=EAZE
HRTHERMEEF1EE46E (2014 :
0.35[E £3.08F) & 7E M & - $R1T & 7 i
EHHENESEFTE116E (2014 TE
1.49/F) o
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RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

33. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 33 BEERHMENRAKRETRAX
ACCRUED EXPENSES
B 5 N E M FE BRI e AT S p R s HA
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors TRERZATET
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade creditors ageing analysis based REZAHZESEMNER
on invoice date: 2 BRER DT
Within 90 days 90H A 76,808 72,606
More than 90 days and within 180 days #3890 H B 180 811 266
More than 180 days HiE180H 33,477 29,308
111,096 102,180
Construction costs payables XN F)WiN 63,449 110,582
Interest payable & FIE 4,580 4,479
Advance receipt from customers WEE F R 9,314 8,298
Other payables and advance receipt BEHEERBOER T EMEN
relating to development of port 8 3k B AT Uk 2 50
business 35,541 39,046
Other payables for staff salaries, BOEKBEIHFLS EARE
retirement and other benefits of port HEMEH 2 E i ENBERR
business (note) (Ht:E) 77,048 77,696
Other accruals HibEst X 18,391 16,937
Others Hih 127,542 95,523
Total amounts RIERBEE 446,961 454,741
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : A —E R 2 B 51 A7 E
under current liabilities BfE 2 25U (393,299) (397,200)
Amount due after one year —FREH 2B 53,662 57,541
note: At 31 March 2015, the amount includes other payable of Kfit : 20156 3A31H BB ERIE AR
HK$77,048,000 (2014: HK$77,696,000) which represents staff 77,048,000 7T (2014 : 77,696,000 7T )
salaries, retirement and other benefits of a port business. Based CEMENER DEBOEBEILH
on agreed payment terms, an aggregate amount of approximately e oBREREMBRN - REHBTEZHK
HK$31,190,000 (2014: HK$35,001,000) is to be paid after more e 3 & # #31,190,0007% 7T (2014 :
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period and is 35,001,000 7T) 2 K IE B R & BT 4
determined using an effective interest rate of 4.56% (2014: 4.56%) BHEBTZEARIN  WRERFFE
per annum. 4.56/E (2014 : 4.56[F) B E °
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34. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and in non-financing nature, except for an
amount of approximately HK$74,906,000 (2014:
HK$75,000,000) which bears interest at 8% (2014: 8%)
per annum and is repayable within one year, and an
amount of approximately HK$14,424,000 (2014:
HK$14,442,000) which bears interest at benchmark
floating lending rate as announced by the People’s Bank
of China (“PBC”) or relevant borrowing rate, whichever is
higher, plus 8% per annum (i.e. 14.42%) (2014: 15.2%)
and is repayable within one year.

35. AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

36.

34.

35.

IPAN

e B RR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

BNBE QT RE

ZERBEBRAEERR 22 AREXK
B RIERE MY - M — % 474,906,000
7 70 (2014 : 75,000,000 T ) 2 X H &%
FHE8E(2014:8F ) R/BKR —F R E
B A K& — % %714,424,0007 7T (2014 :
14,442,000 7T ) 2 R IR P E A R R 17
([PEARRITD Az BEEZEHERF
EREAEEFNER(UERE BE) NSE
2 EF KT B (B114.42/F) (2014 : 1522 )
RR—FRNEER-

EN—-—EE

EERE

ZEFRAFSEER 2B RNERKEERN -

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 36. ENFERERNE
INTERESTS
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Fixed-rate interest at 1% per annum FR =B 2 EE = (M ita)

(note a) 12,485 15,000
Interest-free (note b) % 5 (KfzFb) - 6,725
Total amounts RIEETE 12,485 21,725
Less: Amount due within one year shown S5 : —® RN B3 ER & & & 2

under current liabilities RIA (2,497) (9,225)
Amount due after one year — 15 FIH Y HIE 9,988 12,500

notes:

() The amounts are unsecured, in which approximately
HK$2,497,000 (2014: HK$2,500,000) is due within one year and
approximately HK$9,988,000 (2014: HK$12,500,000) is due after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The amount was unsecured and fully repaid during the year.

CEE

@ EHEFEAEER  FPH2497,000% T
(2014 : 2,500,000 7C) X —F R EIHF - M
499,988,000 7T (2014 : 12,500,000 7T )
CHRBHARBESE &R+ _EA%KE
H o

ZEFERBEMRARFRAZMEN -
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RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

37. RITRHEMER

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Bank and other borrowings comprise: RITRHMERBIE
Bank loans RITER 2,089,891 1,977,368
Other loans HihE X 192,159 192,400
2,282,050 2,169,768
Analysed as: DA
Secured FoRiiwit 1,170,393 1,120,690
Unsecured 3 1,111,657 1,049,078
2,282,050 2,169,768
The bank and other borrowings are MITREMEREZHDT :
repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand —FARNYIFREL 1,534,562 1,494,149
More than one year, but not exceeding Him—F  BTEmE
two years 416,019 363,182
More than two years, but not HAME - BETEAF
exceeding five years 331,469 302,437
More than five years HBidhE - 10,000
2,282,050 2,169,768
Less: Amount due within one year or on 3§ : —E R kiR E KB B 5 /E R B
demand shown under current BE
liabilities (1,534,562) (1,494,149)
Amount due after one year — % B H Y 2B 747,488 675,619

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings

of approximately HK$343,320,000 (2014:

HK$312,500,000) with approximately HK$305,867,000
(2014: HK$312,500,000) repayable within one year,
approximately HK$37,453,000 (2014: Nil) repayable more
than one year but not exceeding two years. The fixed-rate
borrowings are carrying interest ranging from 5% to 7.26%

(2014: 5% to 6.6%) per annum.

2015 Annual Report

ot 3R 17 & BB & 49343,320,0007% T
(2014 : 312,500,000/ 7T) 2 & B fE R« &
F #7305,867,000/8 7t (2014 : 312,500,000
BIL) AR —F AEE - 437,453,000
7T(2014: B)ERBR —FETEBNENRN
EBEE - ZETEERENTEEET26E
(2014 : 5[BE66E) 2 FFE5 8 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

38.

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 1.49% to 8.00% (2014: 1.61% to 8.52%) per

annum.

As at 31 March 2015, the other loans are repayable more
than one year but not exceeding two years and are
carrying interest at 1% (2014: 1%) per annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following items are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years:

37.

38.

BUBHKRMEE

nv-_ﬁ
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE
R 4T R H 1 18 K (80

HEBRBRITERANZBMNERFTE  FFRERH
1.49/E £8.00/E (2014 : 1.61[E &£ 8.52/F) I

= o
=7

R2015F3A31H EMERBERBIB—
FRETEAMFRNEE  E1ER014:1E)
ZEFEEE -

i 3E Bt 1]

AR B %$¢r§&u&¢r€eﬁ%zz
ERERBAG AREEHE

Fair value Fair value Fair value
adjustment adjustment adjustment
on on stock on project
investment of under
properties properties development Others Total
REVME YEFER ERPIEA
NEEEAE FEEAER LATEEAE Hit &%t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FAET A& FAHxT TER
At 1 April 2013 MN2013F4A1H 360,423 9,793 174,027 38,339 582,582
Exchange realignment [E A% (2,004) 7 508 (72)  (1,561)
Charge (credit) to FeEWER 2R
consolidated income (BN (Ktit14)
statement (Note 14) 157,297 — — (10,355) 146,942
Tax impact on exchange A #| Y% 2 7%
of properties T
— credit to consolidated — # Af&GA
income statement I E=F
(Note 14) (Btat14) — — — (6,230)  (6,230)
— transfer from liabilities ~— — #& 3 & B2 15 4
associated with HEEERH
assets held for sale ZBE — — — 25,716 25,716
Transfer R (248,135) 307,753 (59,251) (367) —
At 31 March 2014 M2014F 3831 H 267,581 317,553 115,284 47,031 747,449
Exchange realignment fE 5,38 & (333) (393) (148) (59) (933)
Charge (credit) to AW ER 2R
consolidated income (BN (KaE14)
statement (Note 14) 192,560 — — (1,885) 190,675
Transfer EE R 20,685 — (20,378) (307) —
At 31 March 2015 M201543A31H 480,493 317,160 94,758 44,780 937,191
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B R Rk M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

38.

39.

Pyl

"~
L 4

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$797,000,000 (2014: HK$745,000,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax losses has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$33,626,000 (2014: HK$26,232,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of stock of
properties arising from the transfer of Formed Land and
Land Being Formed from investment properties are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
conseguence upon sale of the properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties. For those
properties which would be subject to PRC LAT upon
disposal, deferred tax on the temporary difference
between the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.

DEFERRED INCOME

The amount mainly represents the government grants
related to certain ports construction projects and will be
recognised in profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related depreciable assets.

®» PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report

38.

39.

IE 7 18 (@)

MR2015F3A31H A& B B K #F H
i 7% & B 49797,000,000% 7T (2014 :
745,000,000 7T ) °] A A K 8 8 2R 2 B AR
TR o A B A TE B 2 S I B R B #E 3k
BNZzHYBR EMTERRERA R
BEEERECHRBEE  RERZHE
E BT R HAM 45 88 -

PNREPTLER  FEBARERDIR
BNBEEMAAERECHEEE 2R
B 2= B 48 %8 4 /33,626,000 7T (2014 :
26,232,000/ 7T) ° A AN £ [ 0] 2 ) B 1
ZERBEEIRR EZSHEREES
A EEE A B RN T R E - A W B R
EEHEHRAELCHEAE -

HEREVEEREMEFEZCFEL
WhFERLWELEZRETEHRIBRR 2
i DERHERLENERRBLER
BREMEERBMEEDEER 2 &
EA - HRFARNBERAXPE LI
BERZYE ERAREEKEEZRH
BB Z BB 2 BT IA A B 1 B L 1 g
BEREREEMEHR -

i FE WA
RELHEIBEAME TAORSEERA Y

B XHRE@A THEEEZA
EREHARBRTRER -
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RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. R
Number
of shares Value
BRBHE K-
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: & f&0.10# 7 2 L@ Mk -
Authorised: SEE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 M2013%F 4 A1H - 20143 A 31 H
and 31 March 2015 K& 2015 3 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 R2013%F 4 A1H - 2014F3A31 H
and 31 March 2015 % 201593 H31H 4,577,360,572 457,736

4.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member
of the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The 2012
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing after the Adoption Date.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option offer and an offer must be accepted on
or before a date as specified in writing, being a date not
later than 30 days after (i) the date on which the offer was
issued; or (i) the date on which the conditions for the offer
are satisfied. The directors of the Company may at their
discretion determine the specific exercise period which
should expire in any event no later than the last day of the
ten year period after the date of grant of the share options.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under the Listing Rules
from time to time; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

UBRBXAREBEZRS

M2012F9A10B ([HRM B 1) - XA AEK
4N — IE 37 B8 AR i 5T 3 ([20124F 8 MR 7% &1
2 BrEHSBEHEARNBALAEH
REMEERBECRERERBENERZ
REBSEMKEREZAMNES 1T
AEEABE BEFRMNEBEALT K&
E{FAKE QAR EMIEEME 2B -
BRAXREATEERALD G TRE
o #EE) o 2012 F B AR M 5T 2118 B 540 B e
BERFBERTF-

RIR2012F B AR &) AR AN EMEE
BEENHARARFN1.0087T M
2R MENTE BB EIAT AR A #1&
ZBORAN:(EHNZ#HTH: HMBHOZ
R ERZB)RZAABEE R - A
ARAEFAHNBEETESRR  HEETH
BRAT AHEBERLBERIEES B ER
THEHR &R B -TREHBEARAE
EET HETREAZLATIMESN
Bt RBELTRITHAFZRE
B M)A RARBMZEE -
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RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may initially be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date, i.e.
455,849,357 shares. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the limit
may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 6 September 2013, the
10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of
such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Person under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
those exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time unless such
grant has been duly approved by shareholders of the
Company at general meeting at which the Eligible Person
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible
Person is a connected person (as defined in the Listing
Rules)) abstained from voting. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder and/or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.10% of total number of shares in issue and
have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting in advance.
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ERERAS I EEBERITRHBH
10% ° BB WL - BIE2012F B IR T2
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ZHROHBRE EEAEZTHEHEATHEE
TR D 8 2 30% ° IR IE A QX B 120134
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Details of the share options granted to certain directors

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

4. URBXNARE2ZRS @)

RIB2012FBRAEABMBEFAEEET
EXEEBEERFAZSHRAEZE

and employees of the Group under the 2012 Share Option FEBEHINDT
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year

are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of
the share options

REREBTERERITZ
XATRGHE
Granted
Exercise Fair value during the
Date price per share Outstanding year ended Outstanding
Type of grant Exercise period* per share option at 1.4.2014 31.3.2015 at 31.3.2015
R2014F  BZE2015%F R20155
SRERE 4818 3A31HLE 3A31H
k| & A H TS BRITHEE ZAFEE i R ATE FERH i R AT 6
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(i) 27.6.2014 27.6.2014 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 0.0218 — 39,502,400 39,502,400
(ii 27.6.2014 27.6.2015 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 0.0218 — 39,502,400 39,502,400
(iii) 27.6.2014 27.6.2016 — 26.6.2017 0.1624 0.0217 — 39,502,400 39,502,400
(iv) 29.9.2014 29.9.2014 - 28.9.2017 0.1720 0.0167 — 13,500,000 13,500,000

- 132,007,200 132,007,200

Exercisable at the end of the year A F K A] T171E

— 53,002,400

*

All the share options granted under the 2012 Share Option

Scheme were/will be vested in the relevant grantees upon the
commencement date of each respective exercise period.

* Pt 1R $22012 4F B i 4 5+ 81 5% &0 B8 AR
BE/SensRETERENFRSG A S
BEMEBEAREA -
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M.

200 pn1

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS M., UBRBEIAREZRS @)
(Continued)
EEFRNARREGEEREZOBREXNES
The amount of cost of share options charged to the %849 /52,068,000 7T (2014 : &) o
consolidated income statement during the year is
approximately HK$2,068,000 (2014: Nil). ERHBERENGBSAFEE I RERE
0 B E M S E RO AT EE R B R
The estimated fair values of the share options granted are NEERA_EATEEY -
calculated by RHL Appraisal Limited, a valuer not
connected with the Group, using the Binomial model. STEEREATEEMERANZEHLERER
DERARAEZNZEMATE - BR
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair HEHNEEeRESE T IEHRBRENTREH
value of the share options are based on the best estimate MmBR &) -
of the directors of the Company. The value of a share
option varies with different variables of certain subjective STEERENAFBERERTI/REK:
assumptions.
The following assumptions are used to calculate the fair
values of share options:
Type (i) Type (ii) Type (iii) Type (iv)
Zi)E (i) 8 5 (iii) 28 = (v)E
Grant date closing share REBBZEOWmE
price (HKS) (BT) 0.160 0.160 0.160 0.168
Expected life TEERFIR 3years £ 3years & 3years4 3years &
Expected volatility T8 HR R 18 32.74% 32.74% 32.74% 26.26%
Expected annual dividend yield ¥& £ & < % 2 & 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 5.95%
Expected exercise multiple TEHIT R 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
Risk-fee interest rate e J e ) =X 0.778% 0.778% 0.778% 0.942%

No share options are exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during the year.

c’ PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BUBHKRMEE

nVT
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE2015%3A31 B IHEE
42. ERITHE
a. Categories of financial instruments a =Z=ETAZHEF
)  Financial assets ) SRMEE
New measurement category and carrying BIEE DY B REEREIWR
amount under HKFRS 9 (2009): (2009F) 2 st 28R R RME
& :
31.3.2015 1.4.2014*
20154 20144
3A31H 4 718*
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FABTT
(restated)
(&)
Financial assets measured at BEHKAFEZSMEE
amortised cost
— Loans receivable —ERER 74,000 76,000
— Trade and other debtors — B 5 NHME uﬁz,ﬁﬁ = 215,399 207,732
— Amounts due from associates — JE Y Bt & N B ) 84,774 38,470
— Amount due from a — FEUIEE Hx%ﬁ?i?k
non-controlling interest - 1,250
— Bank deposits —IRITHER 621,837 786,322
— Bank balances and cash —RITHEEFERES 422,906 440,548
1,418,916 1,550,322
Financial assets measured BEAVTEEFECSREE
at fair value
— Investments in equity —ZATFEEFAEAM
instruments at FVTOCI THKE ERTA
’E 588,210 768,101
— Investments in equity —RAFEEFAERE
instruments held for JEEESEZIA
trading at FVTPL wE 101,510 84,984
689,720 853,085
Total 48 =t 2,108,636 2,403,407

* Being date of initial application of HKFRS 9 (2009)

* NERERESYBEREE
A5 95% (20094 ) 2 H H]

D rezmaran 055% ﬂ
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

a.

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

42. €@ T B @)

a.

THRTAEZEL#)
) SWMEE@

31.3.2014
20144
3HA31H
HK$’'000
T T
Original measurement category and RIBEB B ERF 399 2
carrying amount under HKAS 39: REt 28R REEHEE :
FVTPL EAFEEFAEBERE
— Investments held for trading —RHEEEKRE 84,984
Loans and receivables Bk ERGRIA
— Loans receivable —EWER 76,000
— Trade and other debtors — B REMEWIRK 207,732
— Amounts due from associates — JE UL & D R FUE 38,470
— Amount due from a non-controlling interest — — JE Y JE 4% A% 4 25 2018 1,250
— Bank deposits —RITHER 786,322
— Bank balances and cash —RITEEFERES 440,548
1,550,322
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESHEE
— Available-for-sale investments — A HHEERE 702,754
Total et 2,338,060

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42. @I @)
a. Categories of financial instruments (Continued) a =TEIAZHEF &)
i) Financial liabilities iy EMEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Iz sk At EZ SR AE
— Trade and other creditors — B REMEMNER 419,256 429,506
— Amount due to a joint venture —EN—EAEERENA 130 131
— Amounts due to associates — BB E QAR FIA 140,016 140,918
— Amounts due to — T IEIE AR = R 0E
non-controlling interests 12,485 21,725
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMER 2,282,050 2,169,768
2,853,937 2,762,048
b.  Financial risk management objectives and b. ZEEREREEEERKER
policies
RAEBECZIZESRIABERTRF
The Group’s major financial instruments include TR TEERES BH5RHEME
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and WEBEZ  EN S X TARE -
other debtors, loans receivable, investments in equity RESERSTARE B REM
instruments, investments in equity instruments held FEATBE S - U (D) B AT — RS
for trading, trade and other creditors, amounts due ARMR ETRERSZRIENRIET
from (to) associates/a joint venture/non-controlling BHMEZ Pt g T AW
interests and bank and other borrowings. The risks ABEHEHERBR I BEEHEAT
associated with these financial instruments and the YoEEEBEERERZERR L
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out BIRRE AR Z M AL
below. Management manages and monitors these = BRA  Es B 2 4 FE R o

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

D rezmaran 055% %
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42. €@ T B )

TEREREEFIERKE (&)
(@) ™IEZEE
0 R

b.  Financial risk management objectives and b.
policies (Continued)

(@) Market risk

(i)

204 mt) PYI Corporation Limited

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
is attributable to its financial instruments
that are subject to both variable rate and
fixed rate. Those financial instruments of
variable interest rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of
the Group’s interest bearing financial
instruments at variable rates have been
disclosed in Notes 27, 28, 32, 34 and 37.
Financial instruments at fixed interest
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest risk. Details of the Group’s
interest bearing financial instruments at
fixed rate have been disclosed in Notes
27,32, 34, 36 and 37.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,
the Group adopts a policy of maintaining
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings which is achieved
primarily through entering into different
contractual terms of borrowings. The
position is regularly monitored and
evaluated by reference to anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rate
risk on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the rates announced by the
PBC arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and advance at variable rates
and Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
and HKBLR arising from the Group’s HK
Dollars loans receivable and borrowings
at variable rates.

2015 Annual Report

KEBEZFMERBRAZ
EREEeMITA ZE
FREEMIAFAEER
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SEZFEEMIAFS
WM sE27 283234 K%
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3234 36 NM3TAEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable rate instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been
50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 March 2015,
excluding the capitalised borrowing costs
of approximately HK$805,000 (2014:
HK$2,442,000), would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$8,000,000 (2014:
HK$5,954,000).

For loans receivable and bank balances,
the effect on interest rate risk to the
Group’s pre-tax profit is insignificant.
Therefore, the effect is not included in the
sensitivity analysis above.

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

42. €@ T B @)

b.

TEEREEFIERKE (&)

@)

™ 15 & B (@)
() FZXE R (&)
BB E 5T

TR ZHRRE DI IR E
RBEHTEERTRT
BAS 2 F &R RmE
E o DT T RR N S H
TRBEZAEESRTA
REBFEDA/KREEM
RE-EMARNERER
ABERM X BRE - J)
PR 4% hn kRl 2 50 B -

HEEME EATESE0
E (2014 : 50% 24 )
mATAE A EHRET
& RAIAREENEE2015
FI3ABAILFEZFAI
wmH(TREBEERLZ
f& 3% X 48 49805,0007% JT
(2014 : 2,442,000 7T ))
# T P& | F+ 498,000,000
7 7T (2014 : 5,954,000 78
TT) °

HRNERERRRITHE
g R R AR E R
BADE N W FE MR
BE . Et REELR
BEEELASRESN
A o
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RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a monetary item will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Certain receivables of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies
such as RMB and United States Dollars (“US
Dollars”) and which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors
foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company also have certain transactions
denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
The Group manages its exposures to
foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency
receipts and payments. The Group
ensures that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time.

All of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK Dollars and RMB.
The Group mainly draws borrowings in
the functional currencies of the entities as
management considers the repayments
can be sourced from income to be
generated in those currencies.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

)
(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars,
the Group believes the exposure of
transactions denominated in US Dollars
which are entered by group companies
with a functional currency of HK Dollars
to be insignificant.

The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the
exposure of RMB against HK Dollars. The
Group regularly reviews the balances of
assets and liabilities and the currencies in
which the transactions are denominated
so as to minimise the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

42. €@ T B @)

b. ZEERBEEEERKEE)

(@) ™IZE @)
(i) E¥mEpE(E)

MR B TTE SR TN - K
SEBENETRIES
W2 EBERRIETAE
TREMZRZMEYZ
[ fe G R 3B

AEERG  HINERR
TBRBARERLETZ
[\ B o AN £ B E H A AT A
BENBBZERUER
HeE¥EN FERD
AEBEFESZNER

LA
oo
PR

o

REBUASINE BEML T
HHNERRZEBEENR
EXAB(EREERRE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s KEIVRBEHTET 2
foreign currency denominated monetary BREEMT :
assets and monetary liabilities, with
exposure to foreign currency risk which
are considered as significant by
management, at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
afE BE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FHET FET
US Dollars E=7T - — 2,039 806
RMB AR 3,694 3,957 749,063 941,425
HK Dollars BT 24,677 24,677 27 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in RMB against HK Dollars and HK
Dollars against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management
personnel. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK Dollars. For a 5% weakening
of RMB against HK Dollars, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the

42. €@ T B @)

b.

= 5 fee

@)

EEEHERME (E)

™ 15 & B (@)

(i)

B e ()
HEE AT
TREAVAEBRARE
Ei%ﬁ&;%ﬁijxﬁﬁ%“
AN KR 5% R 2 8
BE -ERAABPEEER
)\E[#&ﬂ\ﬁ%ﬂ SRR
HES% A UK E L & -
BRESITERTER T
HIWAINE BEN 2 B
BE BRRES TR
OIS T R 2 5% % B) #E 1T
PR TRZIEEBRBRA
R¥E X BT EHL%EH
BTN AREE R B
TT T BRB5%EE - ¥ F R E
MeHFTHERR - ER
MR o

profit for the year.
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Increase in profit for the year 4 ;&% #1 3& n 31,119 39,139

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk from its investments in equity
instruments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The
Group has monitored the other price risk
and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk for investments in equity
instruments carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower,

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2015 would increase/
decrease by HK$5,075,000 (2014:
HK$4,249,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments
in equity instruments held for
trading; and

o investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by
HK$29,411,000 (2014:
HK$15,020,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in the fair
value of investments in equity
instruments not held for trading.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from:

— the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

— the amount of contingent liability as
disclosed in Note 44.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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42. €@ T B @)

b.
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™ 15 & B (@)
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WMEBESZTEERK L
Ft,/ TB&5% 8l :

. HRBIEEE 2
=TAREBEQNFE
BE#8 - & ZE2015
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T F£5,075,000% 7T
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b)

210 mt) PYI Corporation Limited

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of the
debtors, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the
Group will understand the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit
sales are made to customers with good credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers
and credit term granted to customers on
different business units are reviewed regularly.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual
customer to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks in
relation to its bank balances that are deposited
at several banks. Management of the Group
considers that the credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited at several banks is limited,
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the
exposure of which spreads over a number of
counterparties.

2015 Annual Report
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2015, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of approximately HK$790 million
(2014: HK$474 million). Details of the amounts
utilised at the end of the reporting period are
set out in Note 37.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. There are unutilised banking facilities
available to finance the Group’s working capital
requirements. The Group relies on borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. The
Group will also consider the issue of equity
instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

e B R AR M R
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(©

42. €@ T B @)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and b. ZHEEREEHERKE (#E)
policies (Continued) © FBELEBR @
LIqUIdIty r|Sk (Contlnued) /‘)ﬁ“@jﬁ_@& 11\://}:@/;@&&
Liquidity and interest risk tables
Weighted
average More than
effective Ondemand 90 days and Total
interest or within within  More than undiscounted Carrying
rate 90 days 365 days 365 days cash flows amount
mEFH REAL BiBIAR RER
BBRA=E 9HRK {BR365HER BIB365A REeRBAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FTHET TER FET
2015
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Trade and other creditors B 5 R EA R - 169,352 196,242 53,662 419,256 419,256
Amounts due to associates/a joint venture/ LN
non-controlling interests —faerE/
FERERFE
— non interest bearing - TiE - 50,816 - - 50,816 50,816
— fixed rate interest bearing —ER 7 31 80,493 10,209 90,733 87,391
— variable rate interest bearing — 28 144 14,424 - - 14,424 14,424
Bank and other borrowings BTREMER
— fixed rate -8 441 85,918 234,323 231,773 562,014 535,479
— variable rate - %8 4.6 931,621 343,977 571,852 1,847,350 1,746,571
Financial guarantee contract BHREREY - - - 24,969 24,969 -
1,252,062 855,035 892,465 2,999,562 2,853,937
2014
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTECREE
Trade and other creditors B 5 REMEMER - 152,932 219,033 57,541 429,506 429,506
Amounts due to associates/a joint venture/ ERBEQR/
non-controling interests —HaERE/
FERBERTE
— non interest bearing - EE - 58,332 - - 58,332 58,332
— fixed rate interest bearing —E& 6.8 38,869 41,609 12,841 93,319 90,000
— variable rate interest bearing -%8 15.2 14,442 - - 14,442 14,442
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER
— fixed rate -8 38 29,819 296,668 192,449 518,936 504,900
— variable rate - 258 4.6 939,655 283,950 549,632 1,773,237 1,664,868
Financial guarantee contract BBEREH - - - 25,000 25,000 -
1,234,049 841,260 837,463 2,912,772 2,762,048
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amount included above for financial
guarantee contract is the maximum amount
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectation at the
end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivable held by the counterparty
which is guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

BUBHKRMEE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

214 pr1
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C.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i

» PYI Corporation Limited

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

As at 31 March 2015, the fair values of the
Group’s investments in equity instruments held
for trading of approximately HK$101,510,000
(2014: HK$84,984,000) and listed investments
in equity instruments of approximately
HK$102,964,000 (2014: HK$300,399,000) are
based on Level 1 measurement (as defined in
Note 3) and stated at quoted bid price in active
market at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 March 2015, the fair value of the
Group’s unlisted investments in equity
instruments of approximately HK$485,246,000
(1.4.2014: HK$467,702,000) is based on Level
3 measurement (as detailed in Note 3) using
the valuation techniques described in Note 24.

There were no transfers between the different
levels of the fair value hierarchy for both years.

2015 Annual Report
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42. I A u@m)

c.  Fair value measurement of financial c. THTAZAFEEE &)

instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i) ILTEZIAEREZ
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value E=ZHRPFEEFTEZ
measurement of unlisted investments in ¥R

equity instruments

2015
HK$’000
FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F )45 402,355
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 (2009) at R2014F4 A1 B RN E BT IEHRE
1 April 2014 (Note 2) R E95R (2009F) 7 F &
(Mtit2) 65,347
Balance at beginning of the year — restated F¥#)#8 — &K E 75 467,702
Gain on revaluation recognised in other FAREAM2E W EER
comprehensive income during the year R 17,545
Exchange realignment BE 3, 38 % (1)
Balance at end of the year FREERR 485,246
Included in other comprehensive income is AAEMEERGZ ZEHKE
revaluation gain of HK$17,545,000 relating to 17,545,000 7T 81 70 3 & H1 52
unlisted investments in equity instruments EREBEAE=AAE2E
using Level 3 measurement held at the end of FhTESTAKRERH T2
the reporting period and is reported as MARREEHHEEZY -

changes in investment revaluation reserve.
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43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of
the schemes are separately held in funds under the control
of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to the
funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$5,499,000 (2014
HK$4,658,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Group has the following contingent liability:

43.

44,

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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iR 48 A 5T & ()

AEBCMARGERATEEFTH(RES
E)-mESFIASRERVELES
FEEMIERBMABESERRERL B
BB ZEEBUNASEZEE  H
BURXTAAZEHNZESHE RiEBRES
AEZRR BEIREEHESEERA
RIAZL RAF &R REEGHERE
TEREZEFEEARREEEHEELZ
H5R - B AT B BB DR WO SRR IR R
KEZRMNERK -

F 58 18 & 5t &1 M 1E 2 R K48 A ET 8 4R
BRaRERMG  HERAREIRTE
BRATHAZEEZRES DN REM 2 #

o
A °

TR RBEERZRAIHEHZENKREF
=t 20 4 3R 42 %8 49 5 5,499,00078 7T (2014 :
4,658,0007% 7T.) °

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of ME=ZFERZRITE
banking facilities granted to a third party 4T IRITHER

HREME
AEEBEATHARIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET
24,969 25,000

The directors consider that the fair value of the financial
guarantee at the initial date of providing this guarantee is
insignificant.

EFRAUBRRIATEERRBHES
BREALTEA -

D rezmaran 055% %



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@ The Group as a lessee:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant
and machinery which fall due as follows:

45, RREFHERIE

@

AEEERAMEAN -

RS el NEBET A BN
ZEBLIzHEREES HEAY
ELBEIEBREEROTERA
AR SRR - IWEAEZ
SATHINE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Within one year —F R 13,811 10,461
In the second to fifth year inclusive % - ZE£ARF(BEMELIEEN) 16,170 16,833
Over five years HBiBRF 6,180 5,687
36,161 32,881

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for terms ranging from one to thirty years.

(b) The Group as a lessor:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants in respect of its investment
properties for future minimum lease payments which
fall due as follows:

®)

HOBERRR—FE=ZTHFLF
RBAESERE -

AEBERHBEA -

REEHTHEE  AEBREKREY
EZHPERARRRKERE S KA
#) e AT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Within one year —F R 11,129 10,518
In the second to fifth year inclusive $£ -2 hF(ERMFESBIEERN) 22,601 22,477
Over five years BiBRF 18,379 27,367
52,109 60,362

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one
year to twenty years.
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46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

47.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure
the general credit facilities granted to the Group:

RE B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

46. EEE R

RmERTER - THEEDEA TR
R BEHRE FRASEDNS -—REER
BZHER:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHET

Investment properties wEME 213,820 222,270
Property, plant and equipment Y ZE - BN 726,950 427,396
Prepaid lease payments 8 1+ & B 194,488 190,925
Bank deposits (note) RITHFE R (M aE) 408,448 473,683
Other intangible assets EmELEE 2,320 23,776
Stock of properties MERE 49,555 49,814

1,595,581 1,387,864

In addition, the Company pledged its investment in certain
subsidiaries of a book value of approximately
HK$411,572,000 (2014: HK$217,246,000) to secure the
facilities granted.

note: The pledged bank deposits included approximately
RMB320,227,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$399,784,000)
(2014: RMB352,700,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$440,875,000) which were denominated in RMB and deposited

B ARBRETHBARZKER®A
& #9411,572,0007% 7T (2014 : 217,246,000
BILIETER EAMERT®RE 2 &
1R o

M BERBRITITFRBE"ZAEOVARE
320,227,0007T ( #8 & M #399,784,0007%
J0) (2014 + A R #352,700,0007C © # & R
49440,875,0008 L) U AR B EL EF

in Hong Kong. RNEBEZFIE °
COMMITMENTS 47. EIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Expenditure contracted for but not HUEEATIEE ETHERRD
provided in the consolidated financial BEVBmMERANBE I RAZ
statements in respect of acquisition of:
— Property, plant and equipment — E - B R 8,034 5127
— Investment properties —BmEME 4,213 -
— Project under development — EREFIEE - 1,356
12,247 6,483
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

48. BBEA IR G R &

BALANCES
@ KREaHMBRxEMBIBES
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated Sh FR - AREEIR & TR
financial statements, the Group also entered into the TEIUATEARR S :

following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:

Class of related party Nature of transactions 2015 2014
BEALTZER XEHE HK$’000 HIK$'000
FER FET
()  Associates of the Group Interest charged by the Group 2,659 2,350
REEZHE QT 7N & E U ER ) B
Interest charged to the Group 6,784 7,046
REBIZNFE
Service fees charged by the Group 1,038 1,196
RNEE W R B
(i) Joint ventures of the Group  Service fees charged by the Group 707 359
REBZEERE 7N 5 B U B AR 75 B
Rentals charged to the Group 521 530
REBEZNES
(iiy  Entity controlled by senior  Service fees charged to the Group 365 154

management (note)
BRERABEHNCER
(Kt 5t)

AEEXNREE

note: These transactions constituted the de minimis connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

Other than the related party transactions set out in
the Note 48(a)(iii) above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules.

220 P(l:) PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report

Wit ZEXFERETRAEZTTA
REREKFHBERS -

B b 3B 5 48(a)i BT & = B B A L+
THHN - BEI FFTE 2 R A T
FERETHRAUMARATEZHERS
RIFEMERS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 48. BB AT R B R &R @)
BALANCES (continued)
b EFEREMFEEEEREZHS
(o)  The remuneration of directors and other members of THFMEEE2EMAIABZE
key management, which is determined by the BEMISEAMERT  FEOT:

remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends, is as

follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Short-term benefits %2 B4R A 25,760 24,709
Post-employment benefits SRR 8 F 730 692
Share-based payment expense  LRH T2\ HBL 2,068 -
28,558 25,401
Details of the share options for the Company’s FARTESFREAMFZEERBKEAR
shares granted to the directors and other members WARTEABARRARD ZEREZFE
of key management and outstanding during the year BTN
are set out below:
Granted
Exercise Outstanding during Outstanding
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period price per share as at 1.4.2014 the year as at 31.3.2015
M2014%4 818 A2015F 35318
AR A REBH TS SRITEE e R AT fE FR|H e R 4T
HK$
AT
Directors
)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 27.6.2014 27.6.2014 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 - 15,000,000 15,000,000
2B R 27.6.2014 27.6.2015 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 - 15,000,000 15,000,000
27.6.2014 27.6.2016 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 - 15,000,000 15,000,000
Chan Shu Kin 29.9.2014 29.9.2014 - 28.9.2017 0.1720 - 4,500,000 4,500,000
PR 151 B2
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 29.9.2014 29.9.2014 - 28.9.2017 0.1720 - 4,500,000 4,500,000
EER
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond ~ 29.9.2014 29.9.2014 - 28.9.2017 0.1720 - 4,500,000 4,500,000
E—M
Other members of
key management  27.6.2014 27.6.2014 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 - 24,502,400 24,502,400
HthxBEEE
RE 27.6.2014 27.6.2015 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 - 24,502,400 24,502,400
27.6.2014 27.6.2016 - 26.6.2017 0.1624 - 24,502,400 24,502,400
Total 4251 - 132,007,200 132,007,200
(c) Details of the balances with associates and joint ) RBEMTHEF BBEAAREE
ventures at the end of the reporting period are set EZEHRFBHINAN T8 34
out in Notes 28, 34 and 35. 5235 °
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49. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the

reporting period includes:

49. XA Tz KER

RMEMTHER  ARB M BEERBR

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Assets BE 2,806,254 2,370,619
Liabilities =R (440,750) (393,191)
NET ASSETS EEFHE 2,365,504 1,977,428
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital A% 7 457,736 457,736
Reserves (note) () 1,907,768 1,519,602
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS BRRES 2,365,504 1,977,428
note: Bt aF -
Share-
based
Share payment Retained
premium reserve profits Total
MR B XA
B3 E RIERE B8 32 A &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 R2013F 4 A1H 494,694 — 645,628 1,140,322
Distribution (Note 15) Dk (B aE15) — - (45,774) (45,774)
Profit for the year FE A - - 425,144 425,144
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3 A31H 494,694 — 1,024,998 1,619,692
Recognition of equity-settled TERIZ IS FE 4 B LA D S+
share-based payment expense FIER X — 2,068 — 2,068
Distribution (Note 15) Dk (B zE15) — — (45,774) (45,774)
Profit for the year FEE R — — 431,782 431,782
At 31 March 2015 MR2015F 3 A31H 494,694 2,068 1,411,006 1,907,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50. x EffB A a HE A AaRka®

all

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EXER
(@ Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at @ ARFAEZWEREN2015F K&

31 March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 20143 A31B 2B T

Place of

incorporation/

registration/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Percentage of issued share
capital/registered capital

BERITKRE FEMEXEIL

held by the

subsidiaries/ attributable to

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* the Group Principal activities
mHEAE
B ERTRAZERE A E*
Ff | D B & 7B EEME EMER ®5F AEBEEGE TEXR
2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % %
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BlEFR AR BB ordinary shares JEER
10,0007% 7T & i AR A& 1

Jiangsu Wanhua Real The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Estate Development /R registered capital and sale of properties
Co., Ltd. (note (i) below) MEBRR RERHEE

IHEERME 8,800,000 T 5t fit & A&

HERRAR (R Bt aEa)

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC US$100,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment
Investment and + (2014: US$60,000,000) and sale of land,
Development Co., registered capital infrastructure and port
Ltd. (“Jiangsu (note (ii) below) related facilities
Yangtong”) 100,000,000 7T Ty BERRAEOEH

I BRARRE (2014 : 60,000,000 7T.) RiEER KRERIHEE
BRQE M E AR (T X aE(i)

(DIscxml)

Jiaxing Feeder Port Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment Limited &8 ordinary share infrastructure investment

REAMERE 1B TEBRKN BOEERERRKRE
BRATE

Jiaxing International The PRC RMB232,800,000 90 90 90 90 Port operation
Container Feeder & (2014: RMB207,800,000) BOEE

Port Limited registered capital
5 B B R (note (i) below)
ST A R ¥ 232,800,000 7T
ERRQFE (2014 : AR®
207,800,000 7T)

R E AR R A (i)

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

224  pri

"~
L 4

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

50. T EMBAT  HEELATIREE
%58 @)

Percentage of issued share

capital/registered capital

BRITKRE HMEXESL

held by the
subsidiaries/

attributable to

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* the Group Principal activities
HHEAE
R BERTRBZERE PN
F D B & 1B EEME AEMEL ®5E AEBEELE TEXK
2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % %
Nation Cheer Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100 Securities investment
Investment Limited & /& ordinary shares BEHIRE
TEREFRRAA 1,200,000 7T
ZBRR 5
Paul Y. Corporation Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Limited BB ordinary shares infrastructure investment
RESEBRDA 2B g mR R BOEERREERE
Paul Y. Investments Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited BB ordinary shares ‘EER
2B T BRI
PY! Infrastructure British Virgin Us$1  100* 100" 100 100 Investment holding
Group Limited Islands ordinary share ‘EER
KERLZHS 1ETEBRERG
PYI Management Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Management services
Limited a&E ordinary shares EERYG
REEEER 2B T EBBRRND
BRAA
PYI Min Sheng Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited &5 ordinary shares "B TR
RERERSE 2B T EBBKRRND
BERAA
PYI Properties (HK) Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited BB ordinary share "B TR
REFE(FHB) 1B T EBERRG
BERAA
PYI Xingdong The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Properties (Jiangsu) registered capital and sale of properties
Limited (note () below) MEER KERBEE
RERFE X OLH) 20,000,000 7T
BRLAE EMEARCFH W)

» PYI Corporation Limited
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

PPN

ARE B AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE20165F3A31HILFE

50. T EMBLAT  BELATIREE

T EE R @
@ (&)

Percentage of issued share
capital/registered capital

ERTREA EMEXAETI L
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the
registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* the Group Principal activities
HEAR
B3 BERTRARZRE AT
F B 2 ) B 1B EEME A E A ¥8 AEBEG TEXEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % %
PYI Yichang Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment Limited &/ ordinary share infrastructure investment
REBERE 1B T EBRKND BOLERERRE
BERAE
Yichang Port Group The PRC RMB203,690,000 51 51 51 51 Port operation
Limited G registered capital BOBE
HEAKE (note (i) below)
BEREMERA A R 208,690,000 7T
& AR R X At (i)
WIERERMAR(ILSE  The PRC US$41,000000 100 100 100 100 LPG and CNG distribution
ARATA Ly registered capital and logistics
(note (i) below) RAL A B R & E R
41,000,000 7T RARD HEDR
M E A (F X))
IR AERRAEIR The PRC US$18,950,000 100 100 100 100 LPG technical research
BiT#ERAR AR + registered capital and development
(note (i) below) MY R SR A A 9T
18,950,000 % 7T N#ER
& A (R XA 7))
mRtEeEEE The PRC RMB45,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment
ABRAF # registered capital and sale of properties

*

(note (i) below)
A R # 45,000,000 7T
M E AR R A (i)

The company is directly held by the Company.

MERR RERHEE

* FZRBBHARBEERE -

D rezmaran 055% %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

'
Py

(@)

(Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.
notes:

(

) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.
(ii) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

Remark: The registered capital of all principal subsidiaries
registered in the PRC were fully paid up during the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries are engaged in
investment holding and corporate services, which
operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Principal place of

50. T EMBAT  BELATIREE
%58 @)

Voting rights held by

@)

Profit (loss) allocated to

(#8)

FiFTEMBARMY ABR AR
Hiat -

0] LWERRAIINEBEERE -

(i) WERRR/RIAELERT -
B MAERTEIM EEWE R AR

H E20154 K2014E3A31 B IF4F
EREHREMER -

R|MEHTHES  AAREAEMY
AEBMETIBEARZHMBEARF - %
EHBRARBOINETREERK
ERY REERTEEE-

*E)EEMTE“TE CERBEITEME
ﬁ%uﬂ

AEEREEAFERERZ IR
BEMBRRZFE:

Accumulated

Name of entity business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EEFERERZ
mEREEE TEEHBY FERESSAZRER R (&5 18) REtFERES
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET FER FET
Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC 25% 25% 41,055 42,844 414,105 296,694
TTERF R $
Yichang Port Group The PRC 49% 49% 1,455 7,369 260,193 260,743
HEBBEER s
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests (123) 140 34,241 26,499
AR R s 2 18R
FEKRMER A
42,387 50,353 708,539 583,936

®» PYI Corporation Limited 2015 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZE2015F3A31HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50. x EffB A a HE A AaRka®

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (continued) %58 @)

(o)  (Continued) () (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of each EEAEEHAENFIERERZ
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non- MEARSg 2l BsERDT -

controlling interests is set out below.

Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group
IEER HEBKE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET TET FET
Results of the entities: HEEE:
Turnover - - 480,095 217,486 201,625
Profit for the year F % F 164,221 171,376 2,970 15,038
Profit for the year, N
attributable to FE & F
— equity holders of the —ARAER
Company BB A 123,166 128,532 1,515 7,669
— non-controlling interests — IR 41,055 42,844 1,455 7,369
164,221 171,376 2,970 15,038
Other comprehensive income LA A+ fE(L
(expense), attributable to Ht2HEls
(%)
— equity holders of the — AR
Company BB A (1,185) (815) (336) 247
— non-controlling interests — JEPE PR RE RS (395) (270) (324) 236
(1,580) (1,085) (660) 483
Total comprehensive income, AT A TG
attributable to PHEWEEE
— equity holders of the —AREER
Company BEA 121,981 127,717 1,179 7,916
— non-controlling interests — JEIE R RS 40,660 42 574 1,131 7,605
162,641 170,291 2,310 15,521

Dividends paid to non-controlling & 1 3£ 1% & # %5
interests = - — 1,681 —

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

50. T EMBAT  BELATIREE
%58 @)
(o)

(Continued) () (&)

Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group

Pyl

"~
L 4

SIEGER HEBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT FET FHET
Financial position: B
Non-current assets EREBEE 1,311,274 891,850 1,117,745 1,089,669
Current assets MEEE 1,618,273 1,390,323 247,344 307,661
Current liabilities BB E (354,672) (355,040) (387,358) (471,624)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (918,456)  (740,358) (446,161) (393,057
Non-controlling interests FE4 BR A =S - — (563) (521)
1,656,419 1,186,775 531,007 532,128
Equity attributable to AT AT
T &=
— equity holders of the — RNRFEER
Company (= Y=UN 1,242,314 890,081 270,814 271,385
— non-controlling interests — JEFERRRERS 414,105 296,694 260,193 260,743
Net assets attributable to the  E§&# £ A (L
owners of the entities BEFHE 1,656,419 1,186,775 531,007 532,128
Cash flows: RERE -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from & & %58 > 84
operating activities O ) A
B (63,909)  (27,318) 5,225 89,036
Net cash outflow from KEFH RS
investing activities Feih e (151,578)  (112,719) (5,100)  (130,053)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BMEFH EE
from financing activities A G )
E =g 304,569 89,139 (61,500) 58,781
Effect of foreign exchange HINEE [ 2R i
rate changes 2 (119) 141 (284) 1,302
Net cash inflow (outflow) BWEmACRL)
58 88,963 (50,757) (61,659) 19,066

» PYI Corporation Limited
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

()

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2015

and 2014 are as follows:

Name of associate

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

IPAN

=a
For the year ended 31 March 2015

%58 @)

BF 5 R Ak MY

HZE20165F3A31HILFE

50. TEMBLR HEQXAREE

© ARRMEEHEZETZHBLERR
MR20164F R20145E3A31H 7 # 1%

mE

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable
to the Group

BRTRARRE FEEERGEBRITRE

Principal activities

BENRER BRI/ R 2 EMER AMERB DL TEXK
2015 2014
% %
Paul Y. Engineering Group British Virgin HK$123,868,229 47.52 47.52  Investment holding in
Limited Islands ordinary shares companies engaged in
REZEEEERAA RBRAHS 123,868,229 7T provision of comprehensive
LA R, engineering and property
— related services
REZRNEEREZE
ITERDERBREZ
NE]
Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. & registered capital AO2E
TRt Bl R ERMATEE (note below)
BRRAA AR
400,000,0007T
&R
(FXHst)
Nantong Port Group Limited The PRC RMB966,004,400 45 45 Port operation
MABASEAERAA H registered capital BOBE
(note below)
AR
966,004,400 7T
&R
(FXftst)
note: Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures. et WERRAFINEELERNT -

D rezmaran 055% %
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IPAN

%ﬂ_’\l:u

§F 5 R Ak MY

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE201543A31HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

230 pn1

"~
L 4

» PYI Corporation Limited

Particulars of the Company’s joint ventures at 31

March 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
Name of joint venture registration

RELEER B B

Fully paid
registered
capital

CAEEMER

50.

TEWBAR  BEATREE
%58 @)

@ AEARAzZEED®ER2015F k2014
FIAZAZFEWMT

Percentage
of registered
capital attributable
to the Group
FEBEGEMER
Ao
2015 2014
% %

Principal activities

TEEK

WIEHEEERAA The PRC

 E

MMEEMZREERAE  ThePRC

HE

note: Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

2015 Annual Report

RMB53,000,000
registered capital
(note below)
AR
53,000,0007T
EERII =N
(Tx k)

RMB10,000,000
registered capital
(note below)
AR
10,000,0007T
ERIE=¥N
(FXfiat)

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
provide details of other subsidiaries and associates would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
excessive length of particulars.

50 50  Investment holding

RERR

50 50  Property holding

BEME

Kt WERRRIEBEDRE -

LRV REERR/RIENEAKEFE
EEIARAREBARBDEEFEZA
RAMBRARLBERE KAABEER
B HNEMHBAR REE QR ZER
K< R\BILE -



Financial Summary

B E

For the year ended 31 March
HZE3A3MHLLFE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FET FHB T
RESULTS E4
Turnover -t 5,357,200 5,159,142 6,497,590 098,652 523,557
Profit before taxation R B BT i A 466,040 560,612 418,756 318,299 331,849
Taxation A (166,852)  (191,595)  (114,230)  (182,360) (203,434)
Profit for the year FREHF 299,188 369,017 304,526 135,939 128,415
Attributable to: &AL -
Owners of the Company " QA & %A A 200,104 334,072 262,343 85,586 86,028
Non-controlling interests ~ JE 128 & #& %5 99,084 34,945 42,183 50,353 42,387
299,188 369,017 304,526 135,939 128,415
At 31 March
A3H31H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET FHE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER & E
Total assets 1 14,804,955 11,827,762 9,625,328 9,097,182 9,431,923
Total liabilities wafE (8,569,395) (6,539,504) (4,252,979) (3,590,572) (3,879,350)
6,325,560 5,288,258 5,372,349 5,506,610 5,552,573
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to KAREBAZ
owners of the Company  J& {5 # 2 4,500,613 4,609,939 4,841,175 4,922,674 4,844,034
Non-controlling interests ~ JE 22 J& # 2% 1,824,947 678,319 531,174 583,936 708,539
6,325,560 5,288,258 5,372,349 5,506,610 5,552,573

D rezmaran 055% ﬁ



Particulars of Principal Properties

TEYEFHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES wREYHE
Group’s
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
rEE
NEREE BERZ HH it R
Nantong International Trade Center with gross floor area Rented for Leasehold with 100%
of about 6,000 sg m hotel operation ~ medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
PEDI# S mmms)l KEesn HEE FHEERE
FEEBEERE S F O B 5 A
25 TE 18 496,000 F 75 K
Commercial shops with gross floor area of about 5,000 sq m Rented for Leasehold with 51%
169 Yanjiang Road, Wujiagang District, Yichang City, commercial  medium term
Hubei Province, the PRC use
REDAIEE E S M IR E R ST KB 1695 HHEE  FHEERS
729 4 2 ST 1B 495,000 F 77 oK [EER:EES
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER BRI EY ¥
DEVELOPMENT
Estimated
Stage of completion Group’s
Location and area Existing use completion date interest
rEH
NEREE RERZ TR MErER A Frih R &
2 sq km land under development located Undetermined Land leveling ~ March 2016 75%
at the west of the outer gate of Yangkou Town, use stage
Rudong County, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
FENI#A R BT RS F O EINE A WARERR T FEER 201643 A

2T HRBRMER LM
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= i b 2k
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Hamilton HM 11
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B

REHE

5 B 78 51 5%
REDFE P L3312
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